
 

 

Please ask for Amanda Taylor: Telephone 01775 764837  

e-mail: amandataylor@sholland.gov.uk 

 

REVISED 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 

 

Committee - CABINET 

 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 13 January 2015 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Cabinet: 
 
Councillors: G A Porter (Leader of the Council), C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the 
Council), P S Przyszlak (Deputy Leader), M G Chandler, R Gambba-Jones, H R Johnson, 
C J Lawton and G J Taylor. 
 
No substitutions permitted. Revised quorum 4. 
 

Note:  Cabinet reports may be referred to Council or Scrutiny Panels.  They 
should therefore be kept for future reference during the current 
committee cycle.   
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   8 January 2015 
 



A G E N D A 
 
1.  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Cabinet held on 7 October 2014 (copy enclosed).   
 

(Pages 
1 - 10) 

3.  Declarations of Interest. 
 
(Members are no longer required to declare personal or prejudicial 
interests but are to declare any new Disclosable Pecuniary Interests that 
are not currently included within their Register of Interests. 
 
Members are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to 
participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of transparency, 
members may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, in 
relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed 
within the Code of Conduct.)    
 

 

4.  Questions raised by the public under Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4.  
 

 

5.  To consider any matters which have been subject to call-in.  
 

 

6.  To consider matters arising from the Policy Development and 
Performance Monitoring Panels in accordance with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure or the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules.  
 

 

7.  Quarterly Performance Overview Report - To provide an update on the 
delivery against the 2011-2015 Corporate Plan for the Quarter 2 period 
(1 July 2014 to 30 September 2014). (Report of the Portfolio Holder for 
Internal Services, Performance and Business Development is enclosed) 
 

(Pages 
11 - 28) 

8.  Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Draft 2015-16 Estimates - To consider 
the draft service estimates for 2015-16 and approval of proposed rent 
and charges increases. (Report of the Shared Housing Manager is 
enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
29 - 42) 

9.  Draft Budget, Medium Term Financial Plan and Draft Corporate Plan - 
To consider the Draft Budget, Medium Term Financial Plan and 
Corporate Plan.  (Joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Strategic 
Finance & Strategic Planning, Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, 
Performance & Business Development and the Executive Director 
(Place) (S151) enclosed.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Pages 
43 - 
138) 



10.  Write Off's - To recommend writing off irrecoverable debts. (Joint report 
of Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic Services and 
the Assistant Director Finance (s151 Officer) is enclosed) 
 
(Please note that the appendices associated with this report are not 
for publication by virtue of Paragraphs 1 (Information relating to 
any individual), 2 (Information which is likely to reveal the identity 
of an individual) and 3 (Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information)) in Part 1 of Schedule 12a of the Local 
Government Act 1972, and are therefore attached to this agenda as 
Item 13. ) 
 

(Pages 
139 - 
142) 

11.  Any other items which the Leader decides are urgent.  
 
Note:  (i) No other business is permitted unless by reason of 

special circumstances, which shall be specified in the 
Minutes, the Leader is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of urgency.   

 
(ii) Any urgent item of business that is a key decision must 

be dealt with in accordance with paragraphs 15 and 16 of 
the Constitution’s Access to Information Procedure 
Rules. 

 

 

12.  To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of 
part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
 

 

13.  Write Offs Appendix (Enclosed)  (Pages 
143 - 
150) 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 17 - 

 

 

 Minutes of a meeting of the CABINET held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 7 October 2014 at 6.30 pm. 
 

 PRESENT  

  
G A Porter (Leader of the Council) 

 

C N Worth (Deputy Leader 
of the Council) 
P S Przyszlak (Deputy 
Leader) 

M G Chandler 
R Gambba-Jones 
H R Johnson 
 
 

C J Lawton 
G J Taylor 
 

Junior Portfolio Holders:  
 

A Casson, P E Coupland, S-A Slade and A R Woolf 

The Chief Executive, Executive Director (Place) (S151), Public Protection Manager, 
Planning Manager and Corporate Improvement and Perfomance Team Leader, the 
Democratic Services and Legal Manager and the Democratic Services Officer. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillor A Harrison 
(Chairman, Policy Development Panel), and Graham Scorthorne (South Lincolnshire 
Community and Voluntary Service).   
 
In Attendance:  Councillor B Alcock (Chairman, Performance Monitoring Panel), 
Councillor G R Aley (Chairman, Governance and Audit Committee and Chairman, 
Leisure Task Group) and Councillor A M Newton (Independent Group Leader).  
 
Community Representatives:  Councillor Reginald William George Boot (Parish 
Councils), Harry Drury (Chamber of Commerce), Councillor Roger Perkins (South 
Holland Citizens Advice Bureau) and Jim Tyner (Lincolnshire Police). 
 
 Action By 

25. MINUTES   

  

 The minutes of the meeting held on 2 September 2014 were 
signed by the Leader as a correct record.  

 

   

26. MATTERS ARISING - GREATER LINCOLNSHIRE LOCAL 

ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP PROJECTS UPDATE  

 

  

 At the last meeting, consideration had been given to a report on 
the Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership (GLEP) 
Projects.  Updates were received on a number of the decisions 
that had been made, as detailed below: 
 
1. That the development of outline business cases for Council 

led projects i) and ii) below for the next funding round of 
GLLEP Growth Deal and European Regional Development 
Fund (ERDF) bidding be approved – i) South Holland 
Business Growth and Employment Project (Crease Drove – 
Growth Deal); and ii) Grants4Growth Phase 2 (ERDF). 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2.



- 18 - 

 

CABINET - 7 October 2014 

 

 

 

• South Holland Business Growth and Employment Project 
(Crease Drove – Growth Deal) – The Portfolio Holder for 
Localism, Economic Development and Big Society advised 
that the Economic Development department had submitted 
an outline business case for the Crease Drove project and 
were still waiting to hear if this had been approved to go 
forward to the next full business case stage.  The 
Economic Development department was working with 
Assets on the full business case so the Authority was 
ready to submit within the tight timescales set by the 
GLLEP programme for the next round of Growth deal 
funding.  Should the bid not go forward in this round, a full 
business case was ready to take advantage of future 
rounds or alternative GLLEP funding sources. 

 

• Grants4Growth Phase 2 (ERDF) – The Portfolio Holder for 
Localism, Economic Development and Big Society 
reported that this outline business case had been 
submitted and would form part of the business support 
GLLEP Growth Hub programme, and was likely to be 
funded through the European Regional Development Fund 
(another LEP funding source).  A full business case was 
currently being worked up ready for submission in early 
2015 when the programme had been finally agreed with 
the EU and had been signed off with central government 
and UK LEPS.  

 
2. That the partner led projects identified within the GLLEP 

Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and projects i), ii), iii) and iv)  
below that meet strategic SEP alignment priorities be 
supported by the Cabinet in priority order – i) Spalding 
Western Relief Road Phase 2 and 3; ii) Holbeach Campus; iii) 
Peppermint Junction; and iv) Rail Freight Interchange. 

 

• The Portfolio Holder for Localism, Economic Development 
and Big Society confirmed that the above ranking order of 
SHDC priorities would be reflected in all future strategic 
documents and submissions. 

 
3. That a potential project to provide and extend Spalding Town 

bus service be researched to ascertain if it met the criteria. 
 

• The Portfolio Holder for Localism, Economic Development 
and Big Society advised that following some research, the 
Economic Development Manager had advised Councillor A 
Newton (who had raised the original question of GLLEP 
funding for an extension to Spalding bus services), that this 
type of project would not meet the GLLEP funding criteria 
due to its scale and nature.  Economic Development 

Page 2



- 19 - 

 

CABINET - 7 October 2014 

 

 

 

officers were currently investigating any alternative sources 
of funding which may be able to assist. 

 
4. That an update on the schedule for funding of Phase 1 of the 

Spalding Western Relief Road be provided to the next meeting 
of the Cabinet. 

 

• The Planning Manager provided the following update. 
 

Work to develop and deliver the Spalding Western Relief 
Road (SWRR) has been ongoing for a number of years 
and pre-dates the adoption of the 2006 Local Plan.  The 
main drivers presently centre on the need to deliver 
substantial housing growth to Spalding in tandem with 
achieving a long-term and realistic solution to mitigate the 
impact of additional mainline train services running through 
the town. 
 
Phase 1 of the SWRR has outline consent and its delivery 
relies upon developer contributions associated with the 
delivery of Holland Park.  In order to achieve early delivery, 
engagement with the County Council as highways authority 
and developer has been both key and has been highly 
constructive.  The present position is that the County 
Council has agreed in principle to front-fund early delivery 
of Phase 1 with the developer refunding these costs in 
stages as the approved 2,250 houses and other associated 
development comes on-stream.  Detailed work on route 
alignment and geophysical surveys has been undertaken 
and engineering drawings prepared by the County Council.  
These will be submitted to the Council very shortly as part 
of the Reserved Matters and condition-set associated with 
the outline consent.  It is presently anticipated that, as a 
consequence of permission being recently granted for 312 
houses accessed from The Broadway, construction work 
on housing will commence on site prior to Christmas.    
Once the detailed consent is granted for the precise 
alignment of Phase 1 to the SWRR this will enable it to be 
built and linked into the Primary Street approved as part of 
the first phase to Holland Park.  Completion and opening of 
this section of the SWRR is required prior to the delivery of 
500 houses.  It is presently anticipated that this will occur in 
2016/17. 
 
Phase 2 to the SWRR, that section leading from Holland 
Park to Pinchbeck Road, is critical to both Spalding’s 
longer-term growth ambitions and as a means of providing 
traffic relief to the town.  It is identified as ‘critical 
infrastructure’ within the emerging South East Lincolnshire 

Page 3



- 20 - 

 

CABINET - 7 October 2014 

 

 

 

Local Plan and the route is identified by the County Council 
within LTP4 as one of its four County-wide priorities.  
Phase 2 of the SWRR (a combination of earlier iterations of 
a previously considered three-stage approach) would see 
the delivery of the remainder of the SWRR road, this 
including two further bridges, in its entirety.  Further, Phase 
2 would provide a longer-term solution to anticipated levels 
of growth in tandem with providing an overall solution to 
both present and predicted future levels of traffic flow and 
the anticipated level-crossing down-times associated with 
the upgrading of the mainline service running through the 
centre of town.  A funding model is being developed in 
tandem with the County Council and this will need to 
include engagement with current landowners/potential 
developers, this again predicated on early delivery of the 
whole.  As this critical piece of infrastructure is central to 
the delivery of anticipated growth in Spalding up to 2031, 
funding is equally critical.  The estimated cost of the works 
associated with Phases 1 and 2 to the SWRR is in the 
region of £96m, so say £100m.  Whilst the costs 
attributable to Phase 2 will again need to be borne by 
future anticipated growth a piecemeal approach to delivery 
ought ideally to be avoided and front-funding is highly likely 
to need to be supplemented with additional external 
funding in order to achieve in-time delivery. 
 
Recognising all of the above, a Steering Group comprising 
officers of this Council and the County Council has met 
regularly for the past three years in order to monitor and 
plan project delivery.  It is timely that a recent restructure at 
County has now combined, under one umbrella, strategic 
highways and planning functions.  This presents the 
opportunity to embed delivery with Local Plan production 
as County are also partners in the Local Plan process. 
 
The delivery of a further significant housing development in 
Spalding over the next 25 years would contribute 
substantially towards funding Phase 2 of the relief road but 
would, consequently, be likely to deliver little else.  In 
recognition of this officers and County are presently 
working on identifying priorities within the County-wide and 
District-wide Infrastructure Delivery Plans.  Phase 2 to the 
SWRR is recognised as one of the County’s key priorities 
and its early delivery is seen as the stimulus to future 
growth of the District.  Funding is critical to the process 
and, whatever form this takes, it requires a mechanism 
whereby Phase 2 to the SWRR is delivered prior to 
significant numbers of additional housing in order to better 
manage traffic within the town.  At this stage it is difficult to 

Page 4



- 21 - 

 

CABINET - 7 October 2014 

 

 

 

predict what the final funding arrangements will be in detail.  
However front-funding, whether by the County Council/LEP 
or both in conjunction with others, with the developers 
refunding all or part in stages, is the only realistic method 
of achieving delivery of the whole.  Clarity on delivery 
mechanisms and timescales will need to be provided prior 
to the Examination in Public of the emerging Local Plan.  
As a consequence, we are currently working on modelling 
and costing delivery mechanisms in tandem with the 
County Council and it is anticipated that the Planning 
Service will be in a position to provide greater clarity and 
advise Members accordingly early next year.  For the 
present, it is fair to say that this is probably the Planning 
Services key priority in Spalding and one which it will 
continue to work on with County to deliver. 
 

(The Planning Manager left the meeting at 6.40 pm, following 
discussion of this item.)  

   

27. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

  

 No interests were declared.   

   

28. QUESTIONS RAISED BY THE PUBLIC UNDER CABINET 

PROCEDURE RULE 2.4  

 

  

 No questions were raised under Cabinet Procedure Rule 2.4.   

   

29. MATTERS SUBJECT TO CALL-IN   

  

 There were no matters subject to call-in.   

   

30. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANELS  

 

  

 Interim report of the Leisure Task Group 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Leisure Task Group 
containing recommendations which had been approved by the 
Policy Development and Performance Monitoring Panels. 
 
The Performance Monitoring and Policy Development Panels had 
established the Joint Task Group on 30 April 2013.  The Terms of 
Reference for the Task Group has been agreed at its first meeting 
on 21 January 2014, which were as follows: 
 

• Establish what leisure provision the District Council 
presently provides, examining costs, resident satisfaction 
and competitiveness in order to identify ways of increasing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 5



- 22 - 

 

CABINET - 7 October 2014 

 

 

 

income or reducing expenditure; 
 

• To understand what the District Council wishes to provide 
and what the public and major employers need; and 

 

• To examine the options for future provision either to be 
supplied by the Council, the private sector or shared 
management. 

 
It had been agreed that the Leisure Task Group would provide an 
interim report to the Panels and Cabinet during the autumn of 
2014, with the anticipation of a final report to Cabinet in February 
2015. 
 
The Chairman of the Task Group presented the interim report to 
the Cabinet, and the following issues were raised: 
 

• Stating that the facilities were ‘not fit for purpose’ was not in 
context with some other comments within the report which 
stated that the facilities were well used.  The language on this 
issue should therefore be reconsidered. 

• The work of the Task Group was generally good, and where it 
was leading was helpful.  The Authority had to be prepared in 
plenty of time before the current contract expired in 2018. 

• Had the results of a previous review of leisure facilities 
undertaken in 2012 been utilised?  The Authority should not 
duplicate work that had already been undertaken if some of 
this information was still valid. 

• Had the Task Group looked into how a new/refurbished facility 
could be sustainable?  The Chairman responded that 
consideration had been given to this when visiting other 
facilities and that this would be one of the areas in the next 
phase of the Task Group’s work. 

• One of the recommendations within the interim report was that 
a provisional sum be provided to the Task Group in the sum of 
£20,500 to allow a full consultation exercise to be carried out.  
Cabinet were concerned at this level of expenditure at this 
time and wanted further consideration of the previous research 
to take place. 

• Care should be taken with questions to be asked of the public 
within the survey in order that expectations were not raised.  

• Leisure facilities did not necessarily have to be provided by the 
local authority.  Consideration should also be given to its 
provision by the private sector. 

• It was suggested that consideration be given to including 
provision of new/refurbished leisure facilities within the 
Corporate Priorities, however, the Leader was uncomfortable 
including it here at the moment.  He suggested that the 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



- 23 - 

 

CABINET - 7 October 2014 

 

 

 

Corporate Management Team look at the interim report and 
the  issues raised within the discussion of it, that  this be fed 
into the work of the Task Group, and that a further report be 
presented to the Cabinet in due course. 

 
DECISION: 

 
a) That at present the interim report of the Leisure Task Group 

be noted for the work undertaken to date, but the 
recommendations not be accepted; and 

 
b) That the Corporate Management Team look at the interim 

report and the issues raised within the discussion of it, that this 
be fed into the work of the Task Group, and that a further 
report be presented to the Cabinet in due course. 

  
(Other options considered: 

• To agree the interim report and its recommendations for 
approval without amendments; or 

• Not to agree the interim report and its recommendations. 
Reasons for decision: 

• To inform Cabinet of the work of the Leisure Task Group to 
date; and 

• To enable the Corporate Management Team to review the 
issues raised and to provide feedback to the Leisure Task 
Group prior to a further report being presented to Cabinet. 

(The Public Protection Manager left the meeting at 7.20pm, 
following discussion of this item.)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PA  

GA 

SF 

 

 

AG 

JK 

MO'M 

RW 

PA 

GA 

SF 

VT 

LW 

   

31. PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR QUARTER 1 2014-15   

  

 Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder 
for Internal Services, Performance and Business Development 
and the Executive Director of Commissioning and Governance 
which provided an update of delivery against the 2011-15 
Corporate Plan for the period 1 April 2014 to 30 June 2014. 
 
At the meeting of Cabinet on 10 June 2014,  the Leader had 
requested that more relevant detail be added to the Performance 
report.  This additional information was now included within the 
report.   
 
Members questioned the poor performance in relation to the 
percentage of major planning applications determined within 13 
weeks.  It was confirmed that loss of personnel within the 
department and subsequent recruitment had caused a drop in 
performance.  However, the department was working hard to 
rectify the situation and thus improve performance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



- 24 - 

 

CABINET - 7 October 2014 

 

 

 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Localism, Economic Development and 
Big Society clarified the following issues that had been raised at a 
recent meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel: 
 

• Holbeach Town Centre Regeneration – This concerned 
projects around the proposed Peppermint Junction roundabout 
and housing. 

 

• CCTV – The system was currently being tested and it was 
hoped to be in place by the end of October/mid November.  
With regard to Parish Councils, once the system had been 
tested, they would be contacted to discuss locations. 

 

• Anti-Social Behaviour – Inspector Tyner advised that training 
was currently taking place to ensure understanding of new 
legislation that replaced DPPOs (Designated Public Place 
Orders). 

 
DECISION: 

 
That the content of the report be noted.  
 
(Other options considered: 

• Not to approve the recommendations; or 

• To make recommendations for change 
Reasons for decision: 

• Reporting against the delivery of the Council’s Corporate 
Priorities was good practice and part of the local government 
transparency agenda.)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KK  

   

32. WRITE OFFS   

  

 Consideration was given to the joint report of the Deputy Leader 
and Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Strategic Planning 
and the Finance Manager which recommended writing off 
irrecoverable debts. 
 
A breakdown of the individual debts were attached as item 11 
within the agenda, which was not for publication by virtue of 
Paragraphs 1 (Information relating to any individual), 2 
(Information which is likely to reveal the identity of  
any individual) and 3 (Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information).   
 
Members agreed that only the principles of the report would be 
discussed and there was therefore no need for the meeting to go 
into private session. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



- 25 - 

 

CABINET - 7 October 2014 

 

 

 

 
Comment was made that in some instances, enforcement took 
too long and it was agreed that an explanation on this was 
needed. 
 
DECISION: 

 
That the following debts be written off: 
 
Council Tax  £15,067.48 
Business Rates  £14,180.07 
Accounts Receivable  £Nil 
Former Tenant Arrears  £2,349.82 
Housing Benefit Overpayments  £3,648.08 
Total  £35,245.45 
 
(Other options considered: 

• Do nothing; or 

• Approve the recommendations with amendments 
Reasons for decision:     

• All recovery methods available had been considered and 
where appropriate pursued before making the decision to 
write off.)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MW  

   

 
(The meeting ended at 7.35pm). 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
These minutes are published on Friday 10 October 2014.  In accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed above will, unless otherwise stated, 
come into force and may then be implemented on Monday 20 October 2014 (i.e. after 
the expiry of 5 working days from the date of publication of these minutes), unless 
during that period a notice which is signed by at least one member of the Council and 
complies with the requirements of Rules 15(b), (c) and (d) of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules is served on the Democratic Services and Legal Manager 
requesting that the decision be called-in and the Democratic Services and Legal 
Manager approves the request for call-in.  Where a decision is called-in it will firstly 
be considered by the Performance Monitoring Panel on a date to be fixed. 
 
Any FINAL DECISIONS and any URGENT DECISIONS take effect immediately. 
 
Any RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL detailed above will be submitted for 
consideration to the meeting of the full Council on Wednesday 15 October 2014. 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Gary Taylor – Executive Member for Internal Services, Performance and 

Business Development 
 
To: Cabinet 13 January 2015 
 
(Author:) Kim Kerrigan – Senior Performance Analyst 
 
Subject: Quarterly Performance Overview Report – Quarter 2 
 
Purpose: To provide an update on the delivery against the 2011-2015 Corporate Plan 

for the Quarter 2 period (1 July 2014 to 30 September 2014) 
 

Recommendation:  
 
1)  To note the content of the report 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Quarterly Performance Overview report (Appendix A) provides Members and residents 

with information about the Council’s delivery against its Corporate Priorities and on the 
Council’s Corporate Health. 

 
1.2 Below is a summary of the status of the Council’s key projects and indicators, as well as a 

summary of the direction of travel since the previous quarter. 
 
1.3 Areas of success, where performance has improved since the last report (Q1 2014/15) are 

also brought to Members’ attention in this covering report, as are areas of concern where 
performance is below anticipated outcomes or is worsening.  These items were discussed 
at Performance Board on 23 October and will be highlighted to CMT on 10 November.  
Actions agreed are included in the summary below and in the commentary of Appendix A. 

 
1.4 Key Projects 
 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7.



 

1.5 Current Status of Key Projects:  Project performance in quarter 2 is assessed as ‘good’, 
with 11 projects (85%) marked ‘Green’, meaning they are on track for delivery within 
anticipated timescales and resource.  2 projects (15%) are ‘Amber’ meaning these projects 
are experiencing minor issues, but are still deliverable.  There are no ‘red’ projects. 

 

                     
 

1.6 Project Direction of Travel.  The overall direction of travel of key projects is assessed as 
‘stable’, with the status of all projects remaining as reported in quarter 1.   

 

1.7 Key Performance Indicators 

 
 

1.8 Current status of key performance indicators:  Indicator performance in quarter 2 is 
assessed as ‘fair to good’, with 8 indicators (40%) marked ‘Green’, meaning that 
performance is as expected and the anticipated outcome has been met or exceeded.  5 
indicators (25%) are ‘Amber’ meaning performance in these areas is below the level of 
expected performance but is within tolerance, and 5 indicators (25%) are ‘Red’, meaning 
performance has not been achieved or is below the agreed tolerance.  Data was not 
provided within the required timeframe for 2 indicators (10%). 

Page 12



 
 

1.9 Performance Indicator Direction of Travel:  The overall direction of travel of key 
performance indicators is assessed as ‘stable’.  No indicators have improved since the last 
report, 15 indicators (83%) are stable and 3 (17%) have worsened. 

 

1.10 The indicators that have worsened are: 
 

• % of building consultancy applications responded to within 21 days – status 
changed from ‘Amber’ in Q1 to ‘Red’ in Q2.  Further detail is provided in the ‘Areas of 
Concern’ section at 1.13 below. 

 

• % of Planning applications determined (within statutory time periods) – status 
changed from ‘Amber’ in Q1 to ‘Red’ in Q2.  Further detail is provided in the ‘Areas of 
Concern’ section at 1.13 below. 

 

• Non-Domestic rates in year collections rate – status changed from ‘Green’ in Q1 to 
‘Amber’ in Q2.  Performance to be monitored. 

 

1.11 Areas of Success 
 

1.12 The following indicators have achieved very high performance, or their performance has 
improved since the last report: 

 

• Occupancy of the industrial unit portfolio – average occupancy levels remain high 
and have improved again in the 2nd quarter.  At 92.33% performance is above the 
anticipated outcome of 85% and has significantly improved against the same time last 
year. 

 

• Taxi Inspections – Performance is high at the end of quarter 2 with the year end 
anticipated outcome of 10% having already been exceeded at the half year point. 

 

• Number of successful Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit sanctions and 
prosecutions – Performance is high at the end of quarter 2 with the number of 
successful sanctions and prosecutions almost double the anticipated outcome.  This is 
the last time this indicator will be reported, following the transfer of responsibility for 
benefit fraud investigation to the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) from 
October 2014. 

Page 13



 

1.13 Areas of Concern 
 

1.14 The following indicators have fallen significantly below the anticipated outcome, or their 
performance has worsened since the last report: 

 

• Missed collections – This continues to be an issue within the service since last 
quarter.  Initially this was thought to be through crew error applying incorrect stickers to 
bags; however there continues to be a problem.  The Operations Supervisor will be 
thoroughly investigating the matter and reporting to Performance Board and the 
Portfolio Holder in November with an update on the situation.  

 

• Licensed Premises Inspections – Performance remains significantly behind the 
anticipated outcome in quarter 2.  The Licensing team has experienced resourcing 
issues and focused resources on high risks areas as a result.  Despite this, the number 
of inspections over the current reporting period has doubled compared to quarter 1.  
The service has over-performed against taxi inspections (see ‘Areas of Success’ 
above), having reached the anticipated outcome at the end of quarter 2, and by 
focusing on premises inspection the service is aiming to reach the anticipated outcome 
by year end. 

 

• Building consultancy applications - Performance has fallen considerably since 
quarter 1.  The service advises that this is an issue with vacancy levels and that while 
under resourced, the service took a business decision to focus on Disabled Facilities 
Grants rather than Energy work, to ensure that vulnerable residents remained 
supported.  Recruitment activity is underway and performance is expected to improve 
for the remainder of the year. 

 

• Planning applications – Performance in all planning application indicators has fallen 
short of the anticipated outcomes for quarter 1 and quarter 2.  The service manager 
attended Performance Board to discuss issues in detail and escalate these to the 
corporate management team.  The primary issue is vacancy levels, with the loss of 
established staff members from the service that have proved difficult to replace in a 
buoyant planning market, combined with increases in workload volumes.  Recruitment 
activity is underway but has been slow with management capacity having been an issue 
in progressing this.  The service manager has been asked to attend the Performance 
Monitoring Panel meeting to provide a full update to Members. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 No recommendations made.  Report for information and to be noted only. 
 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
3.1 No recommendations made.  Report for information and to be noted only.  
 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 Not applicable. 
 
 
 

Page 14



5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 

5.1.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the 
Report Author that there are no implications. 

 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 Constitution and Legal Issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 

Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 

5.3.1 Contracts implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 
there are no implications. 

 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 

5.4.1 Corporate Priorities implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 
Author that there are no implications. 

 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 

5.5.1 Crime and Disorder implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 
Author that there are no implications. 

 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 

5.6.1 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights implications have been considered and it is the 
opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 

 
5.7 Financial  
 

5.7.1 Financial implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 
there are no implications. 

 
5.8 Health & Wellbeing 
 

5.8.1 Health & Wellbeing implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 
Author that there are no implications. 

 
5.9 Risk Management  
 

5.9.1 Risk implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that there 
are no implications. 

 
5.10 Staffing 
 

5.10.1 Staffing implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 
there are no implications. 

  
5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.11.1 Stakeholder / Consultation / Timescale implications have been considered and it is the 

opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 

Page 15



 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 No Wards or Communities are affected 
 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
 

Background papers:- None 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Kim Kerrigan – Senior Performance Analyst 
Telephone Number: 01362 656866 
Email: Kim.kerrigan@breckland.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
Name and Post:  Jessica Woodhouse – Corporate Improvement and Performance 

Team Leader 
 
Key Decision:  No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
 
Appendices attached to this report: (list appendices or delete) 
Appendix A  Quarter 2 Performance Report 
 

 

 

 

Page 16



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT 

 
Quarter 2 2014/15

 1Page 17



Foreword 
 
The quarterly performance report is a collection of our key indicator and projects that report in this quarter.  
Monitoring the performance of these indicators or projects helps us to endure we are on track to achieve 
the priorities we have set in our Corporate Plan, working together with our partners, to feed upwards as a 
‘golden thread’ to achieve the overall vision for the district. 
 
 
To find out more information on the way we manage or performance, please follow the link… Performance 
Management Framework 
 
Our Corporate Plan identified a vision and five key priorities for our district, to find out more information 
please follow the link… Corporate Plan 2011-2015 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
How to interpret this report 
 

R 
Performance has not been achieved or is below the anticipated outcome. 
 
 

A 
Performance is below level of expected performance but is within the tolerance of the anticipated 
outcome.  
Project is experiencing some minor issues but is still deliverable. 

G 
Performance is as expected and the anticipated outcome has been met or exceeded.  
Project is on track for delivery within anticipated timescales and resource. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 2Page 18



 2 

 

SH 1 To Be a Forward Looking Council 

 
 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – House Building Project G G 
The final scheme of this initial phase (Broadgate, Whaplode 
Drove) will be completed in mid October 

Preparation of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) G G 
Work on the preparation of the CIL remains closely linked to 
progress on the preparation of the Local Plan. 

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
YtD 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

To maintain occupancy levels above 85% of 
the industrial units portfolio 

91.33% G 85.00% 92.33% G 
Quarter 1 occupancy rate was 91.33%. 
Quarter 2 occupancy rate is 93.33%.                  
Year to date occupancy rate is 92.33% 

 
 
SUMMARY: Performance against ‘occupancy levels’ has improved from Qtr 1 to Qtr 2 with year to date figure being well above the anticipated outcome.  
This is a significant improvement in terms of rental compared to the same time in 2013/14. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 19



 3 

SH 2 To Enable our Communities 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 
Current 
Actual 

Comments 

Members Designated Budgets – Number of initiatives 
supported 

27 No. 61 No. 

To date 61 initiatives have been supported, which have involved a total of 37 
district councillors from 18 district wards.  Approximately £48.5k has been 
spent on projects.  Quarter one projects included contributions towards the 
2012 Summer Challenge event, purchase of a defibrillator, provision of  
fencing, Spalding People’s Parade and Community Action projects, etc.  
Quarter two projects included contributions towards In Bloom Groups, 
Mencap projects, Scouts projects and the provision of litter bins, etc. 

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Average time to re-let SHDC property 
17.67 
Days 

A 17 Days 18 Days A 

We are continuing to monitor the effect of 
asbestos inspections/works and are liaising 
closely with contractors to reduce the number 
of days lost where possible. 

Number of affordable homes built 
 

25 No. G 42 No. Data not available Data not available 

 
 
Summary: Asbestos continues to be monitored against the performance measure ‘Average time to re-let SHDC property’ the average time to inspect is 
approx one week which is having an impact on void times.  Month on month continues to fluctuate, with September void times being an average of 13 days.  
Performance is expected to worsen next quarter as areas of low demand are taking longer to let, and this issue has been raised with the management team for 
attention. 
 
The performance measure ‘Number of Affordable Homes’ has not been updated.   This is due to a data lag on this indicator, which causes a one month 
delay in reporting this data.  Action agreed to review the timeframe for reporting performance against this indicator. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 20



 4 

 
 

SH 3 To Have Pride in South Holland 

 
 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Preparation of South East Lincolnshire Local Plan G G 
The revised timetable for the submission of the Local Plan to the 
Planning Inspectorate remains December 2015. 

 
 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

% of refuse that goes to recycling 31.90% G 32.00% 31.30% G 

With the decrease in recycling in quarter 2 the 
year to date performance has slightly dropped. 
However confidence still remains that 
performance will remain as anticipated after 
quarter 3 with a significant number of 
campaign planned for the rest of the year. 

Kgs of residual waste collected 123.5 G 133.0 127.10 G 

Due to the increase in waste sent for disposal 
in quarter 2 this has decreased year to date 
performance however with the increase in 
number of campaigns planned for quarter 3 it 
is anticipated that this will increase 
performance for the following quarters. This 
performance will continue to be monitored to 
ensure targets are met. 

Number of missed collections per 100,000 
households 

29.10 
No. 

R 14.0 No. 33.0 No. R 

As a result of the further drop in performance 
for quarter 2, year to date performance 
continues to fall. A monitoring exercise by the 
Operations Supervisor will now commence 
with vigour to understand the reasons why 
performance continues to struggle. An update 
on these findings will be conveyed during 
quarter 3. 

P
age 21



 5 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

3,165.00 
CO2e 

 
2013/14 

A 
2,646.00 

CO2e 
3,008.00 

CO2e 
A 

Projects carried out to reduce emissions 
include installation of free air cooling and LED 
lighting at Priory Road, replacement of 
inefficient storage heaters at Ayscoughfee Hall 
Museum with controllable electric radiators. 
These projects are expected to contribute 
further savings for the 2014/15 financial year. 
 

 
 
Summary: The measure 'Number of missed collections per 1000 households' (refuse and recycling collections) continues to be an issue within the 
service.  Initially this was thought to be through crew error applying incorrect stickers to bags; however there continues to be a problem, which is also being 
experienced nationally.  The Operations Supervisor will be thoroughly investigating the matter and reporting to Performance Board and the Portfolio Holder in 
November with an update on the situation. 
 Page 22



 6 

 

SH 4 To Support our Local Economy 

 
 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

East Midlands LEGE (‘Grants for Growth’) G G 
21 Businesses engaged, 10 grants offered, 6 grants paid in full, 1 
part paid 

Spalding Town Centre Regeneration G G 
Comments on draft development brief returned to Messrs 
Longstaff, await further response. 

Holbeach Town Centre Regeneration G G 
LCC submitting a bid for Single Local Growth Funding for 
Peppermint Junction Roundabout 

S106 funding for Spalding Town Centre G G 
TCM start date confirmed as 1st November. First Management 
Board meeting arranged for 14th October. 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

% of building regulations responded to with 
21 days of receipt 

92.81% A 100% 98.10% A 

This quarter’s result is fairly good only 4 
applications went over time, 3 in the latter part 
of the quarter. This was mainly been due to 
resourcing issues. 

% of building consultancy applications 
responded to within 21 days 

84.00% A 90.00% 56.92% R 

The quarter started well, however due to 
resourcing issues the service has struggled to 
maintain performance. Recruitment activity is 
underway.   

 
Summary: Following excellent final outturn performance in 2013/14, the Building Control service set a stretching target for 2014/15 by increasing the 
anticipated outcome for ‘% of building regulations responded to with 21 days of receipt’ from 90% to 100%.  However, it is now accepted that this may 
have been somewhat ambitious and an action has been agreed to work with the service to set a more realistic outcome for the remainder of this year and 
agree appropriate tolerances. 
 
Performance against the ‘% of building consultancy applications responded to within 21 days’ has fallen considerably since quarter 1.  The service 
advises that this is an issue with vacancy levels and that while under resourced, the service took a business decision to focus on Disabled Facilities Grants 
rather than Energy work, to ensure that vulnerable residents remained supported.  Recruitment activity is underway and performance is expected to improve 
for the remainder of the year. 

P
age 23



 7 

SH 5 To Develop Stronger Communities 

 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Coordinated Response to Anti Social Behaviour 
 

A A 

Meeting held on 2nd September to discuss internal response to 
Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014. Key actions 
have been fed to Community Development Manager. Training on 
the new legislation has been arranged for November. 

CCTV A A 
Contractors have continued testing of sites and best technology. 
Final timescales and project plan is due in October. 

South Holland Centre – Developing young people’s 
engagement with LOV arts venues 

G G 

The LOV Young Peoples Programme continues to make an 
impact across ten of the counties arts venues - engaging young 
people across a range of activities and art-forms.  Highlights in the 
past quarter have included the Third Music in the Market Place 
event in Spalding, a group of YP going to the Edinburgh Festival 
and reporting to LOV managers on their programming 
recommendations; and 6 new production and marketing interns 
being employed to work alongside an emerging Lincolnshire 
theatre company this Autumn.  Meanwhile, applications for funding 
to continue this successful project have been submitted to the 
Paul Hamlyn Foundation and the Esmee Fairburn Foundation.  
Decisions should be known in December/ January - these will 
inform the planning for the coming year.  Match funding for the 
Project is already secured through LOV venues Arts Council 
funding awards which have now been confirmed for the 2015-18 
period. 

Health Initiatives G G 

Health Programmes which include; Walking for Health, Exercise 
Referral, Fit Kids and Kitchen Garden Project are all on track in 
terms of performance and participation. There have been some 
delays due to staffing changes this quarter but this has not 
affected the delivery end of the project. 

Kitchen Garden project G G 

Project continues to run on track. There have been some staffing 
changes but this has not affected delivery. New sites for 
allotments have been discussed with community groups. Cooking 
courses have run across the district and further sessions are being 
programmed in. 

P
age 24



 8 

Project Title 
Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Orchestras Live Partnership Project. G G 

A final planning meeting with Orchestras Live, City Of London Sinfonia, 
South Holland Centre, Arts Development Officer and the South Holland 
Centre Youth Takeover group took place during this quarter. The group 
have identified musicians to take part. From September the group are 
working on this as their main project, with an initial focus on marketing 
and publicity. The workshops with the orchestra will take place in 
November. There are no resource or delivery issues with this project. 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 
Current 
Actual 

Comments 

Net additional dwelling stock (including demolitions and 
conversions) 

57 No. 
No data 
available 

No data available. 

House building completions - % that are affordable 
homes 

43.00% 
No data 
available 

No data available. 

Anti-social behaviour – number of cases referred to 
ASB Officer 

14 No. 30 No. 

There have been a number of cases, year to date, dealt with by the Anti-
Social Behaviour Officer that are very complex and have required a multi-
agency approach. The cases logged are when the Anti-Social Behaviour 
Officer is the lead on a case however ongoing work continues to support 
the Police and Housing Associations with cases in which they lead along 
with issuing warning letters and the management of Acceptable Behaviour 
Contracts. 

Anti-social behaviour – number of cases resolved by 
the council’s ASB officer within 3 months 

7 No. 7 No. 
The majority of cases are resolved within a three month period. This is a 
positive sign that effective early intervention can assist with resolving anti-
social behaviour cases. 

Anti-social behaviour – number of cases resolved by 
the council’s ASB officer within 6 months 

11 No. 3 No. 

Although the majority of cases are dealt with within a three month period, 
some cases are much more complex and require longer term work either 
by supporting the victim or work being undertaken with the alleged 
perpetrator. 

Overall participation in cultural activity 
110,294.00 

No. 
223,790.00 

No. 

The first half year for 2014/15 has been positive across the leisure 
facilities with the Castle Sports Complex meeting its usage targets despite 
necessary works to the pool changing disrupting services for two months.  
The South Holland Centre had drawn in a consistent numbers of 
customers making use of the various services of the venue audiences for 
cinema and live shows, some regular room hirers, and new activities such 
as the youth music events, compensating the slight reduction in large 
catered functions. A large-scale WWI commemoration event in July at 
Ayscoughfee Hall & Museum was very popular, as were ongoing smaller 

P
age 25



 9 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 
Current 
Actual 

Comments 

scale events and exhibitions. The lack of school participation at the Peele 
Leisure Centre since April has had the biggest impact on the overall levels 
of usage. Arts Development figures slightly down due to some bespoke 
projects programmed for Quarter 3 in this financial year rather than 
Quarter 2 as last year. 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

Spend on community grants £50,647.50 G £63,665.00 £65,512.50 G 

Year to date spend is on track. Some core 
grants are paid quarterly, some twice yearly 
and others once a year depending on the 
amount and funding agreement. Payments 
are released when satisfactory monitoring 
reports have been received. 

 
 
Summary:  ‘Spend on Community Grants’ continues to deliver on track. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 26



 10 

Corporate Health 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 
Current 
Actual 

Comments 

Number of Planning enforcement actions taken 1 No. 4 No. 
1 enforcement notice & 2 S215 notices issued this quarter compared to 1 
PCN in previous quarter. 

Council Tax in year collection rate. 30.43% 58.45% 

Collection of council tax is slightly behind compared with the same period 
last year and slightly behind the September anticipated outcome. The 
council tax cash received on 30 Sep is not reflected in these figures.  It is 
assumed that 100% of these monies were intended for current year 
liabilities, actual performance would be 58.61% and would almost reach 
the September anticipated outcome.  This will be reflected correctly in 
next month’s figures.   The opportunity for customers to pay over 12 and 
not 10 instalments means that the current baseline for profiling is no 
longer an accurate reflection of the current situation. 

 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

To carry out a programme of inspections 
for licensed premises within the district 
based on a 10% sample per annum 

0.88% R 5.00% 2.43% R 

The service is behind target due to 
resourcing issues.  To date eight 
inspections have been completed, not 
including ad hoc work such as reviews.  
The remainder of the year will be 
challenging due to continuing resourcing 
issues, however the service aims to 
achieve the outcome by end of Q4. 

To carry out a programme of inspections 
for taxis (private Hire and Hackney 
Carriage) within the district based on a 
10% sample per annum 

56.96% G 5.00% 10.83% G 
To date 17 taxi inspections have been 
completed and we have achieved the year 
end target at end of Q2 

% of households where the council has 
acted to prevent homelessness 

24% 
Not YtD 

G 20.00% 
Data not 
available 

Data not 
available 

Data not available 

% of rent collected against rent charged 92.15% G 94.00% 95.63% G 

Officers continue to monitor accounts 
closely: liaising with Housing Benefit, 
identifying cases for DHP, offering tenancy 
support, referring to CAB for advice. 

P
age 27



 11 

Indicator Title 
Previous 

Actual 

Previous 
Reporting 

Period 

Anticipated 
Outcome 

Current 
Actual 

Current 
Reporting 

Period 
Comments 

% of Major planning applications 
determined within 13 weeks 

44.44% R 60.00% 50.00% R 
8 major applications determined YTD with 4 
in time.  Seeking to address by agreeing 
extensions of time. 

% of Planning applications approved 90.00% A 92.00% 87.82% A 
Of the 326 applications determined in YTD 
290 were approved. 

% of Planning applications determined 
(within statutory time periods) 

52.1% A 70.00% 42.86% R 
Significantly below profile, due to number 
and nature of applications coupled with 
resourcing issues. 

% of benefit paid correctly 99.34% G 99.00% 99.00% G 
Work is underway to enhance the training 
and quality assurance function to maintain 
and improve performance in this area.   

Number of successful Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax Benefit sanctions and 
prosecutions per 1,000 caseload (by 
CPBS) 

1.82 No. G 1.75 No. 3.4 No. G 

NB – this will be the last time this KPI is 
reported, as DWP are responsible for 
benefit fraud investigation from 1 October 
2014 

Non-Domestic rates in year collections 
rate 

32.28% G 59.50% 58.02% A 

Collection of non-domestic rates is down on 
the same period last year and behind the 
monthly target. The shortfall in monthly 
performance (compared to previous years) 
was anticipated as a number of businesses 
are taking advantage of their new ability to 
pay their liabilities over 12 months rather 
than 10 months.   

 

 
Summary: Performance against the measure ‘To carry out a programme of inspections for licensed premises within the district based on a 10% 
sample per annum’ remains significantly behind the anticipated outcome in quarter 2.  The Licensing team has been short staffed and resources have been 
focused on high risks areas.  Despite this, the number of inspections over the current reporting period has doubled compared to quarter 1.  The service has 
over-performed against taxi inspections, having reached the anticipated outcome at the end of quarter 2 , and by focusing on premises inspection the service is 
aiming to reach the anticipated outcome by year end. 
 
The performance measures '% of Major Planning Applications determined with 13 weeks', ‘% of Planning applications approved’ and ‘% of Planning 
applications determined (within statutory time periods)’ have all fallen short of their anticipated outcomes for quarter 1 and quarter 2.  The service 
manager attended Performance Board to discuss issues in detail and escalate these to the corporate management team.  The primary issue is vacancy levels, 
with the loss of established staff members from the service that have proved difficult to replace in a buoyant planning market, combined with increases in 
workload volumes.  Recruitment activity is underway but has been slow with management capacity having been an issue in progressing this.  The service 
manager has been asked to attend the Performance Monitoring Panel meeting to provide a full update to Members. 
 

P
age 28



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Duncan Hall Shared Housing Manager 
 
To: Cabinet 
 
(Author: Richard Scorthorne Housing Landlord Manager 
 
Subject: Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Draft 2015-16 Estimates 
 
Purpose: To consider the draft service estimates for 2015-16 and approval of 

proposed rent and charges increases. 
 

Recommendation:  

 That Cabinet recommends to Full Council: 
 
a) The draft Housing Revenue Account Budget for 2015-16 is approved 

 
b) The proposed average rent increase of 2.2% is approved and the statutory period of 
notice is served on tenants 

 
c) The HRA Intensive Landlord service charges, transitional scheme, heating, water 
and room hire charges are approved. 

 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 

1.1 The appendices to this report outline the draft 2015-16 revenue and capital estimates for  
           the Housing Revenue Account; the outline capital programme through to 2019-20 and the     

           30 year HRA operating account. 
 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 

2.1      To approve the recommendations  
 

2.2       The Cabinet may wish to make amendments to the base Housing Revenue Account  
            budget, by considering alternative levels of rent increases, Wardens Service Charges   
            and Supported Housing charges increases, revised capital investment programmes      
            or variations to expenditure plans. 
 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

3.1  To comply with the budget and policy framework  
 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 

4.1      To set rents to comply with the statutory period of notice to tenants, and to provide  
           an early view on the financial position of the Housing Revenue Account. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8.



5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 

 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.8 Health & Wellbeing 
 

 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.9 Risk Management  
 

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.10 Staffing 
 

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 

5.11.1 The Council will consult on this draft HRA budget prior to final approval in January 2015.  
            The draft budget and business plan have been reviewed by the Governance and Audit     
            Committee.  
 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 The implications cover all wards 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 HRA -Housing Revenue Account 
 

Page 30



Background papers:- (a) Estimate Working Papers 
  (b) HRA Business Plan 
     (c) Housing Strategy 

    

 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Richard Scorthorne Housing Landlord Manager  
Telephone Number: 01775 764671 
Email: Rscorthorne@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
Name and Post:  Duncan Hall Shared Housing Manager, Richard Scorthorne HRA 

Landlord Manager, Alison Wild Snr Business Partner 
 
Key Decision:  No 
 
Exempt Decision: No  
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A ;Appendix B 
Appendix C 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



 

APPENDIX A 
Draft  2015-16 HRA Budget and 30 Year Business Plan 
 
1. Executive Summary 

• Draft budgets have been prepared for 2015-16. These have been presented to 
Governance and Audit. 

• Expenditure Budget 2015-16 £17.885m (2014-15 £17.766m) an increase of 0.24% 

• Income Budget 2015-16 £17.738m (2013-14 £16.936m) an increase of 1.09%. 

• Stock numbers as at 1 April 2014 (excluding shared ownership properties) were 
3,864. Stock numbers expected to be 3,861 at 1 April 2015 and in addition 17 new 
builds/ non original stock additions at affordable rent. 

• Proposed average weekly dwelling rents in 2015-16 to increase by 2.2% (2014-15 
7.06%) line with  Government guidelines CPI +1% (2.2%). 

• Interest of £2.347m 2015-16 (£2.347m 2014-15) has been included on HRA self-
financing debt of £67.456m. 

• Revenue financing of the Capital Programme is included at £7.130m. 

• The Supported Housing Service new service has been running since April 2014 

• Rents will be collected over 52 weeks, not 50 weeks, for 2015-16 onwards. This will 
result in a lower weekly charge, but there will not be any rent free weeks.  

• Average rent proposed for existing dwelling rents £77.95 (52 weeks) compared to 
actual rent £76.27 (52 weeks). This was approved on a 50 week basis for 14-15, at 
£79.33 per week.  

• Average affordable rent for new builds and newly acquired properties will be £99.44 
per week over 52 weeks, compared to actual rent £97.30 over 52 weeks. Affordable 
rent is estimated at 80% of market rent.  

 
2. Introduction 
 
This appendix outlines the 2015-16 budgets for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and 
sets out the proposals for the setting of rent and discretionary fees and charges.  
 
The HRA is a ring-fenced account, which means that it may not be supported by the General 
Fund and Council Tax or vice-versa.  Expenditure and income that may be charged to the 
account are defined either by statute or regulation.  The HRA is not permitted by law to be in 
deficit.  The HRA holds balances at 1 April 2014 of £6.835m with an additional £200k in 
reserve for insurance. 
 
The HRA set a net expenditure budget for 2015-16 of £0.147m (2014-15 £0.830 m). The 
latest forecast  for 2014-15 is for an in-year surplus of £1.065m, which includes a forecast 
capital programme slippage of £1.757m giving an estimated balance of £5.847m at 1 April 
2015 (as at Quarter two forecast). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



Housing Revenue Account Reserves Unallocated Amount 
Available  £’000  

2014-15 
Insurance Reserve 200 
Sub total  200 

Cumulative Working Balance  5,213 
Outturn  2,860 

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 
under statute (1,238) 

Balance on the HRA at 31.3.14 6,835 

Total HRA unallocated reserves at 31.3.14 7,035 

  

(830) Approved HRA budget 2014-15 

Rollover of capital programme from 2013-14 approved 
Q1 (2,253) 

Forecast Surplus (investment income) 18 

Quarter 2 forecast net budget savings 120 

Revision to capital programme Q2 1,757 

Total HRA unallocated reserves forecast at 31.3.15 5,847 

 
 
3. Integrated Business Planning and Budgeting 
As part of the Council’s integrated planning and performance framework, the budget and 
business planning process links to our corporate priorities. The business plans for each 
service reflect how we will deliver our corporate priorities over the next five years. Heads of 
Service have prepared their budgets to reflect their plans and strategies and are in 
accordance with the principles outlined in the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). 
 
 In my opinion, as S151 officer, the estimates for 2015-16 are robust and the level of 
reserves adequate. A sensitivity analysis has been carried out on the key components of 
the budget. 
 
In addition to adopting the main principles incorporated in the MTFP, budget holders have 
also followed the principles of the 30 year HRA Business Plan in preparing their estimates. 
Planned maintenance budgets are in line with expenditure needed to achieve and maintain 
Decent Homes Plus standard. Rent increases are in line with the Government guidelines.  
 
 
 
The estimates have been prepared in accordance with the Housing Strategy, so that 
resources are directed towards HRA priorities. The Council’s key priorities for housing are: 
 

• To provide more high quality affordable housing 

• Target capital expenditure on the Council housing stock to continue to achieve the 
decent homes standard 

• Reduce the incidence of homelessness  

• Work with others in support of the housing needs of the district. 
The 30 year HRA business plan finance model becomes more important as the Council has 
to rely on its own resources to maintain a positive HRA Reserve given the constraints of the 
Housing Debt Cap £74.701m .  

Page 33



 
4. Consultation and Scrutiny 
The Council has consulted on this draft HRA budget prior to final approval in January 
2015. The draft budget and business plan has been reviewed by Governance and Audit 
Committee.  
 
5. Value for Money 
A review will be undertaken of how costs associated with ancillary services are dealt with, 
to ensure a consistent and equitable approach is applied across the Council's housing 
stock. Any proposed changes will be within the limits of the rent income formula. As part of 
this review, it will be important to track and consider the impact on tenants of any changes 
to housing benefit regulations, specifically on some services potentially no longer being 
'eligible' for the purposes of housing benefit. 
 
6. Supported Housing  
 
The contractual arrangements with Lincolnshire County Council for the Supported Housing 
service ceased from 1 April 2014. SHDC provide the new “intensive landlord” service, 
funded through service charges and recharges. This service will undergo an annual review 
after its first year of operation.  
 
 
7. Draft HRA Estimates for 2015-16 
 
The following table shows the HRA estimates by type of spend presented as required by 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 

Description 

2014-15 
Estimate 
£'000 

2015-16 
Estimate 
£'000 

Variance 
£'000 

Variance 
% Ref 

Employees 2,310 2,450 140 0.06 7.1 
Premises 2,362 2,675 313 0.13 7.2 

Transport 287 283 (4) (0.01) 7.3 
Supplies & Services 1,994 2,096 102 0.05 7.4 
Third Party Payments 600 600 0 0.00 7.5 
Support Services  242 253 11 0.00 7.6 

Depreciation 1,600 1,596 (4) 0.00 7.7 
Direct Revenue Financing 6,001 5,534 (467) 0.00 7.7 
Financing 2,370 2,398 28 0.01 7.8 

Total Expenditure 17,766 17,885 119 0.24  

      
Rents (15,341) (15,736) (395) 0.03 7.9 

Fees & Charges (1,212) (1,210) 2 0.00 7.10 
Recharges (383) (792) (409) 1.07 7.11 

Total Income (16,936) (17,738) (802) 1.09  

      

 830 147 (683) (1)  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 
 
7.1 Employee Costs 
The estimates are based on the approved establishment as at 1st September 2014 For 
2015-16 employees are budgeted at 98% of establishment, to take account of staff 
turnover ratios. The estimates assume pay award for 2.2% 2015-16 and CSU craft pay 
award agreed for Craft operatives . The reduction in budget also reflects the change in the 
Supported Housing Service.  
 
7.2 Premises Costs 
The premises budgets include the repair and maintenance costs of the Council’s housing 
stock, both planned and responsive, and are in line with the HRA Business Plan in order to 
achieve the Decent Homes Plus standard. The increase in budget relates to and additional 
amount for damp proofing £15k and materials for void repairs (£285k) kitchen and 
bathroom upgrades, fully rechargeable to the capital programme £400k.  
 
7.3 Transport Costs 
Transport costs relate to the mileage costs and lump sums payable to officers as well as 
vehicle contract payments. Lease arrangements for the CSU vehicles, reflect in the 
estimates for 2015-16. 
 
7.4 Supplies and Services 

 The impairment allowance for bad debts has been assumed to increase by £8k in 2015-16 
to £393k, as a result of Welfare Reforms. Significant items not included last year are CSU 
vehicle tracking software licence costs £50k, materials for kitchen and bathroom upgrades 
in voids £108k (fully rechargeable to the capital programme) and £60k for sheltered 
housing carpet replacement. Some of this cost is offset by savings in professional fees and 
miscellaneous expenses £150k. 
 
7.5 Third Party Payments 
Third party payments represent payments for the back office services provided by Compass 
Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd (CPBS) and legal services provided by 
Lincolnshire Legal.  
 
7.6 Support Services 
Central support service charges are for services provided by the central Council 
departments, such as communications, risk and performance management. 
 
7.7 Capital Charges and Capital Financing (DRF) 
Depreciation is shown as a charge over the useful life of the Council asset. This is a notional 
charge to the accounts.  Direct revenue financing (DRF), is the way that the HRA finances 
the majority of the Capital programme spend. A provisional contribution of £7.130m has been 
made from revenue to finance the draft 2014-15 HRA Capital Programme (See Section 9-
Capital Programme). This is a reduction of £467k compared to 2014-15.  
 
7.8 Financing 
Interest of £2.347m 2015-16 (£2.347m 2014-15) has been included on HRA self-financing 
debt of £67.456m, the remainder being notional internal borrowing. 
 

Income 

Page 35



The majority of income comes from weekly rents of the housing stock. The estimates take 
account of the proposed increases in housing rent levels and other rents and charges.  
 
7.9 Rent 
Rent levels for 2015-16 have been increased in line with Government’s guidance. For 
2015-16 the draft estimates are increased by 2.2% (CPI+ 1%).  
 

 
 
The proposed average rent for 2015-16 is therefore £77.95 (52 weeks). The current 
average rent of £79.32 (50 weeks) which is only fractionally above the £79.33 average rent 
figure reported in January 2014 due to revised rents following relet at formula rent in line 
with the Council’s policy).  
 
 
During 21014-15 rent was collected with 2 rent free periods. During 2015-16 there will not be 
any rent free weeks, spreading the cost to tenants, including sheltered housing. Tenants will 
pay a lower amount throughout the year, as opposed to a higher amount over 50 weeks. This 
proposal was outlined in the rent setting report approved in January 2014. 
 
7.10 Fees and Charges   
Charges for sewerage are increased in line with the annual increase applied by Anglian 
Water. Currently, the HRA funds a shortfall of around £215,000 that being the difference 
between the expenditure incurred in operating the sewage treatment service, and the 
income recovered through sewage charges. Further legal work may be undertaken to 
establish where the Council may increase its charges. Subject to this work being 
concluded, it is anticipated that charges will be increased to close the gap in the subsidy 
the HRA provides. 
 
It is proposed to increase some of the fees and charges in 2015-16 for Sheltered Housing 
in line with rent increases. The service charges for the Community facilities and Intensive 
Landlord Sheltered Housing service charges  detailed in Appendix B, include a 2.2% 
increase payable over 52 weeks. Alarm monitoring charges will stay the same fee per 
week, but will be payable over 52 weeks, as opposed to 50 weeks during 2014-15.  
 
Transitional Relief 
The Sheltered Housing budget is a ring-fenced account within the HRA and is expected to 
cover its costs. The alarm monitoring service draft 2015-16 estimate, is estimated to return a 
surplus of £42k. Where tenants are not on Housing Benefit, a discretionary transitional relief 
scheme has been applied over 3 years (2015-16 year 2), so that the Service charge cost is 
phased in with the full service charge being met by the tenant by year 4. The cost of the 
Transitional Relief is a cost to the HRA and has been built into the draft estimates 2015-16 
and 30 year Business Plan. Transitional Relief costs are estimated at £15.7k year 1, £10.5k  
year 2 (2015-16), £5.2k year 3. 

Page 36



 
Service Charges are listed in Appendix B  
 
7.11 Recharges 
Support service recharges and internal recharges show under this category. The variance 
between the 2014-15 and 2015-16 recharge budget is due to the kitchen and bathroom 
recharge of works carried out by the CSU, to the capital programme. The expenditure is 
shown in supplies and services and premises costs. 
 
 
8. Forward Estimates  
The Council has modelled the HRA financial plans over a thirty year period using a 
business planning tool provided by Sector. This models the estimated expenditure and 
income associated with the HRA over this period and shows what funds are available to 
support the asset management strategy. The 2015-16 model indicates that the Council’s 
financial plan is viable, meeting and maintaining identified capital investment in 
accordance with stock condition survey and maintaining a viable revenue account 
throughout the life of the business plan, with surpluses accruing. 
 
The 30 Year Operating Account is attached at Appendix C.  
 
9. Capital Programme 
The Council prepares a rolling five year capital programme, approved annually before the 
start of the year. The changes to the HRA financing regime potentially provide wide 
ranging options for the HRA’s capital investment programme. As a result a baseline 
programme has been prepared, which presents an affordable programme of new build, 
major repairs, disabled adaptations and other capital spend. This is set out in the following 
table. This is based upon the major repairs programme produced from stock condition 
information and is in line with current asset management plans.  
 
The Business Plans indicates that surpluses will be available for investment in HRA stock. 
Members will wish to consider options for further investment arising from the business plan 
report and these will be included into this baseline programme as they are approved 

 

Page 37



 
 
 
 
10. Risk/Sensitivity 
The Council must set a budget for the HRA, which is a realistic statement of its estimated 
income and expenditure for the coming year based upon information currently available. 
The HRA cannot, by law, be in deficit. As a ring-fenced account the HRA maintains its own 
reserves. The minimum level of working capital balances is set at £1.5m. In addition, the 
HRA holds an amount of £200k earmarked for insurance payments.  
 
Key risk areas which impact on the HRA are as follows: 

 
Financial Management - As service budgets are reduced it is imperative that sound 
financial management practices are adopted by budget managers to avoid potential 
overspends and to identify issues swiftly so that they can be dealt with promptly. 
 
Housing Policy - Policy and practice within the HRA will be comprehensively reviewed, in 
consultation with tenants, in the light of the opportunities in the Localism Act. These will be 
fully costed and the financial impact on the business plan assessed.  
 
Welfare Reforms- 
The Governments’ Welfare Reforms began implementation at the beginning of April 2013. 
The Under Occupancy Charge and the Benefits Cap came into effect in April 2013. 
Universal Credit will start to be rolled out in South Lincolnshire from 23rd March 2015. The 
reduction in Housing Benefit entitlement for those tenants under occupying their homes 
and the reduction in benefit for tenants affected by the benefits has started to have an 
impact on rent collected by the Housing Management Team. The level of arrears is being 
closely monitored and staff training has been organised for January 2015 to further 
improve arrears management and rent collection. There is uncertainty over the impact the 
Universal Credit will have. There are likely to be restrictions on the opportunity to arrange 
direct payments of benefit to the Council. It will be important to closely monitor the 
payment of rent through the new benefit over the months ahead. 
 
Future Government Policy – The HRA 30 year Business Plan is based on current 
Government policy, which is likely to change over the life of the plan. The plan is reviewed 
and updated . 
 
Housing Growth Company- The Council is currently working on a business plan for a 
Housing Growth Company. This may potentially impact on the HRA business plan.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



APPENDIX B

HRA FEES AND CHARGES

Proposed Fees and Charges for the

Sheltered Accommodation Service

charge 

2013-14

£

Hire of Community Centres (Per Hour)  - VAT 

exempt

       Hire of Centre for Day Care 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 -          

       Hire of Centre (community rate) 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 -          

       Hire of Centre (commercial rate) 16.25 16.25 16.25 16.25 -          

Charge for Hire of Kitchen at Centre             10.50 12.50 12.50 12.50 -          

Hire of Guest Room (per night) -  including 

VAT at Standard Rate – Tenant Guests

       -  Non En suite room 15.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 -          

       -  En suite room 18.00 19.00 19.00 19.00 -          

       -  Homelessness  21.00 22.00 22.00 22.00 -          

Water Charges (Per Week)

       Trinity Court – (No’s 1-21) 2.21 2.21 2.13 2.13 -          

       Trinity Court – (No’s 22) 2.97 2.97 2.86 2.86 -          

       Glen Haven – (No’s 1-12) 3.02 3.02 2.90 2.90 -          

       Glen Haven – (6a) 3.52 3.52 3.38 3.38 -          

       Nene Court (No’s 1-12, 17-22,25-30) 1.05 1.05 1.01 1.01 -          

       Nene Court (No’s 23 & 24) 1.09 1.09 1.05 1.05 -          

       Nene Court (No’s 13 - 16 & 31 - 34) 1.24 1.24 1.19 1.19 -          

Heating Charges (Per Week)

      Glen Haven (No’s 1 - 12) 10.73 10.73 10.32 10.32 -          

      Glen Haven (6a) 12.49 12.49 12.01 12.01 -          

       Nene Court (No’s 1-12, 17-22,25-30) 3.95 3.95 3.80 3.80 -          

       Nene Court (No’s 23 & 24) 4.10 4.10 3.94 3.94 -          

       Nene Court (No’s 13 - 16 & 31 - 34) 4.68 4.68 4.50 4.50 -          

70 71 71 71 -          

140 140 140 140 -          

35 62 62 62 -          

65 50 50 50 -          

35 41 41 41 -          

     - Urgent Replacement (1 key) 21 22 22 22 -          

     - Urgent Replacement (2 keys) 28 31 31 31 -          

     - Non-Urgent Replacement (1 key or more 

each key)

10 11 11 11 -          

HRA FEES AND CHARGES

Proposed Fees and Charges for the

Sheltered Accommodation Service

Increases in the charges for guest rooms are proposed as shown above. In line with fees and charges for

the meeting rooms at the South Holland Centre it is proposed that theses remain the same. 

Water and sewerage charges for sheltered housing residents have been reviewed. The charges are set to

recover the estimated cost in 2015-16

Where communal heating is provided costs are recharged to tenants based on the previous year’s 

estimated expenditure.

Where items are fitted or recharged to residents, these proposed charges represent full cost recovery.

Supply and Fit Door Chain – including VAT at 

Standard Rate

Supply and Fit Replacement lock with keys – 

including VAT at Standard Rate

Replacement pendant – including VAT at 

Standard Rate (where applicable)

Recharge of lost lifeline Equipment – including 

VAT at Standard Rate.

Charge 

2014/15 

50 weeks

% 

Increase

Supply and Fit Key Safe – including VAT at 

Standard Rate

Proposed 

Charge 

2015/16 

52 weeks

Charge 

2014/15 

52 weeks

Page 39



Appendix B

Draft Service Charges 2015/16

2014 15 

Rebased 

52 weeks

2014 15 

Rebased 52 

weeks

Proposed 

2015 16 

Proposed 

2015 16 

Alarm 

Monitoring

Intensive 

Landlord

Community 

Facilities

Intensive 

Landlord

Community 

Facilities

Poplar Court 12 2.80 5.60 -                5.72 -                 

Willders Garth 10 2.80 5.77 -                5.9 -                 

Churchgate 20 2.80 5.77 -                5.9 -                 

Moulton 15 2.80 5.77 -                5.9 -                 

Alderlands Close 10 2.80 5.77 -                5.9 -                 

Chappell Road 16 2.80 5.77 -                5.9 -                 

Cowley Road 15 2.80 5.77 -                5.9 -                 

Sheppersons Avenue 9 2.80 5.77 -                5.9 -                 

Charles Road 16 2.80 5.78 -                5.91 -                 

Irby Crescent 20 2.80 5.77 0.25              5.9 0.26

St. Margarets 18 2.80 6.16 -                6.3 -                 

Dozens Bank 12 2.80 6.57 -                6.71 -                 

Lyndis Walk 50 2.80 6.06 5.57              6.19 5.69

Sezanne, Speyer & 

Parkside 112 2.80 5.84 5.57              5.97 5.69

Brownlow/Glen Ave 38 2.80 5.78 5.57              5.91 5.69

Spring Gardens 99 2.80 5.90 5.57              6.03 5.69

Lime Court 123 2.80 5.90 5.57              6.03 5.69

Thames, Severn, Wensum 60 2.80 5.78 5.57              5.91 5.69

Cecil Pywell 64 2.80 5.89 5.57              6.02 5.69

St. Matthews Drive 63 2.80 5.86 5.57              5.99 5.69

Linden Court 43 2.80 5.88 5.57              6.01 5.69

Fleet 33 2.80 5.77 5.57              5.9 5.69

St. Mary's Gardens 33 2.80 5.78 5.57              5.91 5.69

Weston 33 2.80 5.88 5.57              6.01 5.69

Arthurs Avenue 34 2.80 7.14 5.57              7.3 5.69

Nene Court 34 2.80 11.57 10.64            11.82 10.87

Glen Haven 13 2.80 23.04 10.64            23.55 10.87

Trinity Court 18 2.80 19.32 10.64            19.75 10.87

Total

Property Name

No. of 

properties

 

Page 40



South Holland District Council

HRA Business Plan

Operating Account 
(expressed in money terms)  

Income Expenditure

Year Year

Net rent 

Income

Other 

income

Misc 

Income

RTB 

Admin

Total 

Income Managt. Depreciation

Responsive & 

Cyclical

Other 

Revenue 

spend

HRA 

Cost of 

Rent 

Rebates

Misc 

expenses

Total 

expenses

Capital 

Charges

Net Operating 

(Expenditure) RCCO

Surplus 

(Deficit) for 

the Year

Surplus 

(Deficit) 

b/fwd Interest

Surplus 

(Deficit) 

c/fwd

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

1 2015.16 15,180 1,894 0 10 17,084 (3,652) (1,596) (4,006) (52) (10) (11) (9,327) (2,398) 5,358 (5,534) (175) 5,847 29 5,700  

2 2016.17 15,628 1,932 0 10 17,570 (3,594) (1,627) (4,178) (53) (10) (5) (9,467) (2,398) 5,704 (5,963) (258) 5,700 42 5,484  

3 2017.18 16,121 1,970 0 10 18,101 (3,681) (1,660) (4,265) (54) (10) 0 (9,670) (2,474) 5,958 (6,080) (122) 5,484 122 5,484  

4 2018.19 16,635 2,010 0 10 18,655 (3,770) (1,695) (4,353) (55) (10) 0 (9,883) (2,474) 6,298 (6,201) 98 5,484 124 5,706  

5 2019.20 17,496 2,050 0 10 19,557 (3,861) (1,730) (4,444) (56) (12) 0 (10,103) (2,474) 6,980 (6,268) 712 5,706 136 6,555  

6 2020.21 17,714 2,091 0 10 19,816 (3,955) (1,766) (4,537) (57) (11) 0 (10,326) (2,474) 7,016 (6,390) 626 6,555 155 7,335  

7 2021.22 18,280 2,133 0 10 20,423 (4,051) (1,803) (4,631) (58) (11) 0 (10,555) (2,474) 7,395 (6,515) 880 7,335 175 8,390  

8 2022.23 18,864 2,175 0 10 21,049 (4,149) (1,840) (4,728) (60) (11) 0 (10,788) (2,474) 7,788 (6,642) 1,146 8,390 202 9,737  

9 2023.24 19,466 2,219 0 10 21,695 (4,249) (1,878) (4,827) (61) (11) 0 (11,027) (2,474) 8,195 (6,775) 1,420 9,737 235 11,392  

10 2024.25 20,469 2,263 0 10 22,742 (4,352) (1,917) (4,928) (62) (13) 0 (11,272) (2,474) 8,997 (6,911) 2,085 11,392 280 13,757  

11 2025.26 20,717 2,308 0 10 23,036 (4,458) (1,957) (5,023) (63) (13) 0 (11,514) (2,474) 9,048 (5,432) 3,616 13,757 350 17,724  

12 2026.27 21,370 2,355 0 10 23,735 (4,565) (1,998) (5,127) (64) (13) 0 (11,768) (2,474) 9,493 (5,542) 3,951 17,724 443 22,118  

13 2027.28 22,042 2,402 0 10 24,454 (4,676) (2,039) (5,234) (66) (13) 0 (12,028) (2,474) 9,952 (5,654) 4,299 22,118 546 26,963  

14 2028.29 22,734 2,450 0 10 25,194 (4,789) (2,082) (5,343) (67) (14) 0 (12,295) (2,474) 10,425 (5,768) 4,658 26,963 659 32,280  

15 2029.30 23,447 2,499 0 10 25,956 (4,905) (2,125) (5,455) (68) (14) 0 (12,567) (2,474) 10,915 (5,884) 5,031 32,280 783 38,094  

16 2030.31 24,645 2,549 0 10 27,204 (5,023) (2,169) (5,569) (70) (15) 0 (12,845) (2,474) 11,886 (6,003) 5,883 38,094 923 44,900  

17 2031.32 24,935 2,600 0 10 27,545 (5,144) (2,214) (5,685) (71) (15) 0 (13,129) (2,474) 11,942 (6,124) 5,818 44,900 1,076 51,793  

18 2032.33 25,712 2,652 0 10 28,374 (5,268) (2,260) (5,803) (73) (15) 0 (13,419) (2,474) 12,481 (6,248) 6,233 51,793 1,235 59,262  

19 2033.34 26,512 2,705 0 10 29,227 (5,395) (2,307) (5,924) (74) (16) 0 (13,717) (2,474) 13,037 (6,374) 6,663 59,262 1,408 67,334  

20 2034.35 27,336 2,759 0 10 30,105 (5,525) (2,355) (6,048) (75) (16) 0 (14,020) (2,474) 13,611 (6,503) 7,109 67,334 1,595 76,037  

21 2035.36 28,725 2,814 0 10 31,550 (5,659) (2,404) (6,174) (77) (17) 0 (14,331) (2,474) 14,745 (4,666) 10,079 76,037 1,824 87,941  

22 2036.37 29,005 2,870 0 10 31,886 (5,788) (2,451) (6,300) (79) (18) 0 (14,635) (2,474) 14,777 (4,764) 10,013 87,941 2,091 100,045  

23 2037.38 29,799 2,928 0 10 32,737 (5,912) (2,495) (6,426) (80) (18) 0 (14,931) (2,474) 15,333 (4,868) 10,465 100,045 2,369 112,879  

24 2038.39 30,615 2,986 0 10 33,612 (6,039) (2,539) (6,554) (82) (19) 0 (15,234) (2,474) 15,905 (4,974) 10,930 112,879 2,663 126,472  

25 2039.40 31,453 3,046 0 10 34,509 (6,169) (2,585) (6,685) (83) (19) 0 (15,542) (2,474) 16,494 (5,083) 11,411 126,472 2,974 140,858  

26 2040.41 32,314 3,107 0 10 35,431 (6,302) (2,631) (6,819) (85) (20) 0 (15,857) (2,474) 17,100 (3,780) 13,320 140,858 3,319 157,497  

27 2041.42 33,837 3,169 0 10 37,016 (6,438) (2,678) (6,956) (87) (21) 0 (16,179) (2,474) 18,363 (3,866) 14,497 157,497 3,707 175,701  

28 2042.43 34,107 3,232 0 10 37,349 (6,576) (2,726) (7,095) (88) (22) 0 (16,507) (2,474) 18,369 (3,953) 14,416 175,701 4,115 194,232  

29 2043.44 35,040 3,297 0 10 38,347 (6,718) (2,775) (7,237) (90) (23) 0 (16,842) (2,474) 19,031 (4,036) 14,995 194,232 4,539 213,766  

30 2044.45 35,998 3,363 0 10 39,372 (6,862) (2,825) (7,381) (92) (24) 0 (17,184) (2,474) 19,714 (4,121) 15,593 213,766 4,985 234,345  

P
age 41



 

P
age 42



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance & Strategic Planning, Portfolio Holder 

for Internal Services, Performance & Business Development and the 
Executive Director (Place) (S151) 
 

To:   Cabinet - 13 January 2015  
             
(Author:  Jo Russell – Interim Corporate Improvement & Performance Manager and  
   Mark Finch – Shared Manager - Finance) 
 
Subject: Draft Budget, Medium Term Financial Plan and Draft Corporate Plan 
 
Purpose: To consider the Draft Budget, Medium Term Financial Plan and Corporate 

Plan  
 

 
Recommendation:  
 
1) That the contents of the draft Budget, Medium Term Financial Plan and Draft Corporate 

Plan are noted and any feedback provided by committee as part of the consultation 
process.  

 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 This report and its appendices outline the draft Corporate Plan and priorities (2015-19); 

2015-16 revenue and capital estimates for the General Fund; the proposals for the setting 
of discretionary fees and charges; the outline position to 2018-19; the Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) and the Capital Strategy. 
 

1.2 The Medium Term Financial Plan sets out the framework within which the budget is to be 
set to ensure that it enables the Council to achieve its corporate objectives.  The capital 
strategy sets out the framework for the capital budget setting. 
 

1.3 During recent years the council, alongside many public sector service providers, has 
experienced a period of unprecedented financial pressure, including in various 
combinations; public sector funding cuts as part of our national austerity measures, all time 
low returns on cash deposits and a national economic downturn affecting jobs, housing and 
business growth.  During this same period the basis on which the public sector is funded 
has undergone substantial reform; radical changes that affect the Council’s financial 
funding position (directly and indirectly) include National Welfare Reform, Localisation of 
Council Tax Relief, Business Rates Retention and New Homes Bonus.  In addition, there 
has been the reduction and in some cases, the removal of a range of grant funding 
sources. Each change bringing elements of uncertainty in terms of impact. 
 

1.4 In keeping with many local authorities, the challenge the council faces to identify savings in 
the future becomes increasingly difficult and complex as the need to deliver further 
efficiencies continues.  Against this backdrop, Members will recall the basis of the budget 
setting for 2014-2015, which utilised reserves in the short term.  This was as an integral 
part of a clear financial strategy to identify and deliver the more complex transformational 
changes in the medium and longer term, which are required to meet the significant financial 
challenges of future years. 

 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9.



1.5 Securing a sustainable financial position across the medium term remains a key challenge 
for the future. In keeping with good financial practice, to secure this longer term stability the 
council will focus its future financial strategy on the medium term. This will drive a shift in 
our financial focus, away from the traditional incremental approach to annual budgeting to a 
more strategic outcome focussed approach. 

 
1.6 Delivering efficient and effective services that represent value for money remains a critical 

aspect of our business. To continue to drive down cost whilst maintaining our service 
commitment will demand innovative approaches to service delivery alongside a commercial 
focus to maximise our income in order to continue to provide the widest benefit to our 
communities. 
 

1.7 The authority is able to present a balanced budget for 2015-16. Section 2 in Appendix A 
sets out the draft revenue budget, and highlights the cost pressures, efficiency savings, and 
changes in funding that create this position. As part of that budget the authority intends to 
apply an element of New Homes Bonus which is the funding received as a result of 
successful delivery of housing growth in the district The draft budget also introduces new 
income sources arising from the council’s planned delivery of a range of new housing 
solutions in the coming year via a new Housing Growth Company that it is in the process of 
setting up, alongside other income generating opportunities.. 
 

1.8 Corporate planning is a key part of running a successful organisation.  A corporate plan 
ensures: 
 

a. Everyone in the organisation is working to the same priorities, pulling in the same 
direction and clear about what they are trying to achieve 

b. It helps ensure that risks are effectively managed 
c. It provides a tool to measure performance, success and hold people to account 
d. It enables the organisation and its managers to plan resource and the budget more 

effectively 
 

1.9 The Council has an existing Corporate Plan that runs from 2011 to 2015.  As this expires 
shortly, a new Corporate Plan has been drafted in order to set the vision for the 
organisation (appendix I).   Four priorities are proposed: 
 

a. To develop safer, stronger, healthier and more independent communities whilst 
protecting the most vulnerable 

b. To have pride in South Holland by supporting the district and residents to develop 
and thrive 

c. To provide the right services, at the right time and in the right way 
d. To encourage the local economy to be vibrant with continued growth 

 
1.10 These priorities will be supported by a series of Critical Activities that the Council will 

undertake.  The progress of these will be monitored through the Corporate Delivery Plan 
and Performance Management Framework.  Progress will be reported on a quarterly basis 
to Scrutiny Committee and to Cabinet. 
 

1.11 Consultation on the draft Corporate Plan and budget will take place during the month of 
January and early February 2015 to enable any feedback to be considered and changes 
made as appropriate in the final documents, which will go forward for a decision in 
February. 
 

1.12 The existing Corporate Plan 2011-15 will be closed down via a review undertaken of key 
achievements and these are included within the proposed new plan. 

 

Page 44



2.0 OPTIONS 
 

2.1 That the draft capital and revenue budget estimates, medium term financial plan and capital 
strategy are noted as part of the consultation.  Any feedback as a result of the consultation 
will be considered before the final position is presented to Cabinet and Council in February. 
 

2.2 There are no alternative options presented. 
 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To comply with the budgetary and policy framework. 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 To set an affordable and balanced budget for 2015-16 which delivers on the Council’s 

priorities. 
 
4.2 To set a clear direction for the Council resulting in improved transparency and clearer 

objectives being able to be set for all employees. 
 
4.3 The revised Performance Management Framework will ensure that the delivery of these 

priorities will be able to be more effectively measured and monitored. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 Approval and ratification of a final Corporate Plan will set the Council’s priorities and the 

Critical Activities that support their delivery.  The budget should support the Council’s 
priorities. 

 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 The report is of a financial nature and all implications are covered within the appendices. 
 

Page 45



5.8 Risk Management  
 
5.8.1 Risks have been given careful consideration and have been reported within the 

appendices. 
 
5.9 Staffing 
 
5.9.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.1 The main Corporate Plan will be taken to Overview Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet in 

January 2015.  There will be public consultation via appropriate routes, alongside the draft 
Budget.  The final Corporate Plan will be taken to Full Council on 25 February 2015. 

  
5.11 Health & Wellbeing 
 
5.11.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.12 Other  
 
5.12.1  No other impacts identified 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 As this sets the direction of the Council going forward, all wards and communities are 

indirectly impacted. 
  
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 BPI – Basic Performance Increase 
 CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
 CLG – Communities for Local Government 
 CMT – Corporate Management Team 
 LABV - Local Asset Backed Vehicle 
 LCTRS – Localised Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
 LEGE – Local Enterprise Growth & Efficiency 
 LEP – Local Enterprise Partnership 
 NHB – New Homes Bonus 
 NNDR/NDR – National Non-Domestic Rates (Business Rates) 
 NPDO – Non Profit Distributing Organisation 
 PFI – Private Finance Initiative 
 PRP – Performance Related Pay 
 RSG – Revenue Support Grant 
 S31 – Section 31of the Local Government Act 1972 
 VFM – Value For Money 
 

Background papers:- None 

 

Page 46



Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Jo Russell, Interim Corporate Improvement & Performance Manager 
         Mark Finch, Shared Manager - Finance 
Telephone Number: 01362 656840 
Email: jo.russell@breckland-sholland.gov.uk; Mark.finch@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting: 
Maxine O’Mahony – Executive Director of Governance and Commissioning 
Julie Kennealy – Executive Director (Place) (S151) 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No  
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A – Budget estimates and medium term financial plan 
Appendix B – General Fund Summary 
Appendix C – Spalding Special Expenses 
Appendix D – Reserves  
Appendix E – General Fund Capital Programme 
Appendix F – Capital strategy 
Appendix G – Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
Appendix H – Fees and Charges 
Appendix I – Corporate Plan 
 
 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Appendix A 

 

General Fund Budget 2015-16 and Financial Medium Term Plan 
 2015-16 to 2018-19. 
 

This appendix is the combined budget estimates and Medium Term Plan 2015-19.  
The Medium Term Plan is the link between the Corporate Plan, which sets out the 
aims and ambitions agreed with our partners, and the Medium Term Financial Plan 
which sets out the current and forecast future costs of the services the Council is 
currently providing.  The plan also establishes a set of financial policies and principles 
which provide a sound basis for maintaining the financial integrity of the Council over 
the medium term. The Housing Revenue Account estimates and business plan are 
dealt with under a separate report following scrutiny by Governance and Audit 
Committee. 
 
1. Budget Summary 
 

The following table shows the headline figures relating to the budget estimates for 
2015-16 compared to the 2014-15 position: 
 
 
Description 

2014-15 
£’000 

2015-16 
£’000 

South Holland precept requirement * 3,980 3,980 

Local Government Settlement-RSG 3,392 2,381 

Local Government NNDR baseline 2,980 3,037 

Retained Business Rates (NNDR)  Income and S31 
Grant 

 
764 

 
720 

Collection Fund (Deficit) NNDR (95) (299) 

Community Right to Bid and Challenge 16 16 

Council Tax Freeze Grant 39 47 

New Homes Bonus applied - 262 

Special expenses account 193 195 

Collection Fund Surplus C Tax 42 67 

(Efficiency)/contingency requirement - - 

   

Council Tax Band D  £155.61    £154.84    

Tax Base  25,579 25,707 

Band D cost per week £2.99 £2.98 

 
*Of all the homes in our area 59.46% are in Band A or B, and 84.12% are in Bands A to C. 
Therefore the majority of homes pay less than the £2.98 per week Band D equivalent towards 
the District services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



  

 
The following table details the Band D Council Tax levels for all precepting authorities 
over the last nine years: 
 

  
Lincs County 

Council 
Lincs Police 

Authority 

South Holland 
(excl special 
expenses) Average Parish Total 

    Increase   Increase   Increase   Increase   Increase 

  £ % £ % £ % £ % £ % 

2005-06 
    

899.82  4.90% 
 

119.43  6.42% 
 

134.56  4.75% 
 

19.81  2.96% 
 

1,173.62  5.02% 

2006-07 
    

944.73  4.99% 
 

125.37  4.97% 
 

140.28  4.25% 
 

23.12  16.71% 
 

1,233.50  5.10% 

2007-08 
    

987.21  4.50% 
 

131.58  4.95% 
 

145.19  3.50% 
 

23.68  2.42% 
 

1,287.66  4.39% 

2008-09 
 

1,021.77  3.50% 
 

165.78  25.99% 
 

149.18  2.75% 
 

25.55  7.90% 
 

1,362.28  5.80% 

2009-10 
 

1,039.68  1.75% 
 

174.06  4.99% 
 

153.13  2.65% 
 

26.50  3.72% 
 

1,393.37  2.28% 

2010-11 
 

1,065.69  2.50% 
 

179.28  3.00% 
 

157.03  2.55% 
 

27.35  3.21% 
 

1,429.35  2.58% 

2011-2 
 

1,065.69  0.00% 
 

179.28  0.00% 
 

157.03  0.00% 
 

28.04  2.52% 
 

1,430.04  0.05% 

2012-13 
 

1,065.69  0.00% 
 

186.39  3.97% 
 

156.60  -0.27% 
 

31.94  4.10% 
 

1,440.62  0.74% 

2013-14 
 

1,065.69  0.00% 
 

190.08  1.98% 
 

156.15 -0.29% 33.26  4.13% 
 

1,445.18  0.32% 

2014-15 
 

1,065.69  0.00% 
 

193.86  1.99% 
 

155.61 -0.35% 34.94  5.05% 
 

1,450.10  0.34% 

 
The following chart shows the Band D Council Tax levels (excluding parish precepts) 
for Lincolnshire Councils for 2014-15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 50



  

 
 

2. 2015-16 Estimates 
 
The table below shows the budget estimates for 2015-16 by type of 
expenditure/income split over the standard CIPFA classifications.  Notes explaining 
the major variances between the two years are given below the table. 
 
Appendix B shows the General Fund estimates over the medium term.  
 
 

 
 
 
 

Explanation of Variances 
 
Employee Related Expenses 
Increase is as a combined result of incremental pay progression, national pay award 
and changes in structure to support service delivery in Planning and Environmental 
Services. There is a 2% vacancy factor built into the estimates. The budget also 
includes the additional resources which have been funded by the Waste Collection 
Support Grant, Grants for Growth and Planning grant. The national pay settlement has 
now been agreed at approximately 2.2% from 1 January 2015 to 31 March 2016. 
Actual pension contributions are based on 17.5% of gross pay plus an increasing lump 
sum amount currently agreed to 2016-17.  
 
Premises Related Expenses  

Page 51



  

The main variances are savings made in utilities, business rates (£18k), premises 
insurance (£12k) and responsive repairs (£40k). These savings are as a result of a 
comprehensive analyses of prior year’s outturn and current year actual expenditure. 
There will also be a further assessment of the planned and response maintenance 
programme, of which the planned repairs is funded by the repairs and renewals 
reserve.A proportion of the footway lighting is now charged to the HRA £38k. 
 
Transport 
The Council has adopted a prudent policy of replacing previously leased commercial 
vehicles previously leased in Environmental Services with outright purchase of wholly 
owned new vehicles. Revenue savings arising from this are reflected within transport 
costs (£154k) alongside slightly increased maintenance costs of £4k. Fuel budgets 
have been reduced by £37k in line with 2013-14 outturn, with current fuel price 
reductions being monitored on an ongoing basis. Savings have been made where 
possible on leased car, mileage and lump sum budgets. 
 
Supplies & Services 
Main variances in supplies and services include additional expenditure all funded by 
income, Waste Incentive grant, Health promotion grant and Grants for Growth. 
Delegated members ward budgets have been maintained at £5k for each member. 
The funding mechanism has been adjusted slightly with £3k new revenue funding and 
the remaining £2k funded from the earmarked reserve once members have fully 
committed their initial £3k.  
Impairment allowance for bad debts increases the supplies and services budgets by 
£86k which is partially offset by housing benefit overpayments and court income.  
 
Course fees have been centralised into the Human Resources training expenses 
shown under employee expenses. This will enable better monitoring in year and 
ensure fair access to training for all, as opposed to smaller service area budgets. 
 
Third Party Payments 
This budget includes contractual commitments to both Compass Point Business 
Services and Lincolnshire Legal Services. Compass Point has been budgeted at 5% 
savings year on year, in addition to a £50k non-recurring contract cost. Inflationary 
pressure of £20k for the Leisure Contract is offset by (£8k) savings estimated for 
Lincolnshire Legal services. 
  
Transfer Payments 
These budget variances include the payment of Rent allowances £597k and Rent 
Rebates £1.509m, reflecting current case loads. Additionally it covers grants and 
contributions paid where the Council does not benefit from the provision of a service 
(£134k), including the ‘Grants for Growth’ project. Housing benefit payments are 
funded through Government subsidy and are included under Grants, Contributions and 
Reimbursements.  
 
Other variances are Grants for Growth expenditure offset by income, rent allowances 
and rent rebates. Budget savings have been made in areas where possible.  
 
Transfer to and from earmarked reserves 
Movements from reserves are higher than 2014-15 due to investment in the County 
wide Broadband capital scheme £607k and £299k for smoothing the business rates 

Page 52



  

collection fund deficit. Further details on reserve contributions are detailed in the 
reserve section below.  
 
Rents Rental income has increased by (£53k) which is mainly due to additional third 
party properties being managed by the Council. Maintenance costs are shown in 
premises expenditure.  
 
Fees & Charges 
 
Fees and charges have been reviewed as increased where the market permits and in 
accordance with individual fees and charges policies. £262k has been estimated from 
the new housing growth initiative. 
 
Recycling Credits 
 
Recycling credit negotiations with LCC have now been finalised and recycling credits 
will cease 31st March 2015.  The 5 year phased income reduction has an impact of 
£43k in 2015-16  
 

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Budget Budget Budget Budget

£ £ £ £

Recycling Credits previously budgeted (324,600) (324,600) (324,600) (324,600)

Agreed proposal (281,952) (218,981) (156,009) (86,054)

Loss (gain) of Income 42,648 105,619 168,591 238,546  
 
Waste Supplementary services will continue as part of an arrangement with LCC for 
providing a Saturday morning service. Income has been budgeted at £40k. 
 
Planning application fees have been estimated to increase from £475k in 2014-15 to 
£600k in 2015-16 providing additional income of £125k. Fixed term additional 
resources have recently been agreed to cover the extra demands of the service. 
 
Court income and is expected to increase by £100k offset by increases in housing 
benefits overpayments of £50k and an estimate for the impairment allowance of bad 
debts shown under supplies and services.   
  
Grants, Contributions & Reimbursements 
This includes additional Government subsidy for rent allowance subsidy payments 
(£593k), rent allowances HRA (£1.5m) offsetting costs included in Transfer Payments 
above. Additionally this includes reprofiled Government grants reimbursements and 
contributions, such as the Grants for Growth project and Waste Incentive grant £712k. 
Housing Benefit Admin grant has impacted on the budgets by being an £85k cost 
pressure.  
 
Recharges 
Recharges will be reviewed as part of  the final budget setting process and include 
recharges to the Housing Revenue Account, to reflect its share of the Corporate and 
Democratic Core and its share of support services.  
 
 
3. Principles of Budget Preparation 

Page 53



  

 

The following principles have been used in the budget preparation process in order to: 
o Provide a consistent and authorised approach to the preparation of revenue 

and capital estimates. 
o Ensure estimates are prepared in line with available resources. 
o Ensure that estimates are prepared to reflect corporate priorities. 

 

Budget principles: 
o Detailed working sheets are maintained for all budget headings and these are 

prepared by the budget manager, with the exception of central items. 
o Central items are calculated by the CPBS accountancy team.  The central items 

include items such as: salaries, insurance, support service recharges, capital 
accounting entries, interest paid and received, pensions, National Insurance 
(NI), special expenses, mobiles phones and postage. 

o The full effect of known pay awards is incorporated into the estimates and a 
provision made for future years, based on national guidance (taking into 
account any Central Government policies). 

o Staffing estimates are prepared on the basis of approved staffing levels as 
provided by Human Resources and have been signed off by budget managers.  
These estimates include an allowance for employers NI, superannuation 
contributions and lump sum amounts.  

o  Budget Managers have signed off the salary allocations, so expenditure occurs 
where officer time is spent, within in each service area; 

o Controllable expenditure is defined as expenditure on employees, premises 
(excluding business rates), transport, supplies and services, but excluding 
internal recharges. 

o There will be no allowance for inflation, unless contractual or related to salaries. 
o We should seek additional scrutiny and challenge for accessing capital 

resources and ensure that the programme only reflects schemes that are 
sufficiently scoped to allow delivery. 

o A review of fees and charges to ensure optimisation of income where consistent 
with policy. 

o Some service areas of high or unpredictable spend in previous years have been 
considered in detail others remain largely viable budgets and have not been 
zero based 

o Working papers have been prepared by budget managers for each controllable 
budget. This will assist future challenge.  

o To set a balanced budget with no long term dependency on General Balances. 
o To work towards a zero balance on the collection fund. 
o Only the 2015-16 budget will be formally approved, future years are indicative 

only for both revenue and capital but form an important picture of our financial 
sustainability. 

 
 
 

4. Grant Settlement Assumptions 
 
On the 18 December 2014, the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government announced the provisional 2015-16 settlement. This determines how 
much grant central government will give to each local authority.  The Final Local 
Government Settlement for 2015-16 will be confirmed February 2015. Variations from 
the provisional settlement are expected to be relatively small, and therefore will any 

Page 54



  

adjustments required will be made through appropriations to or from the Council Tax 
Reserve.  
 
Only a small amount of the Local Government Settlement is now received in the form 
of Revenue Support Grant (RSG).  Instead of receiving a fixed funding amount from 
government, from 1 April 2013 we are now reliant on a new model which is geared 
towards the local raising of funds.  Changes to schemes in respect of non-domestic 
rates (NDR) and localised council tax reduction scheme (LCTRS) have brought a 
greater degree of risk and variability to the Council’s funding. 
 
Under this government policy a proportion of NDR income is retained by district and 
county councils through a system of top-ups and tariffs.  The remaining NDR income is 
centralised by government and distributed back to local authorities through the formula 
grant process, thus allowing the government to retain a proportion of business rates 
centrally to meet public expenditure targets.  This formula grant element has previous 
specific grants “rolled into” it (eg. the council tax freeze grant and the homelessness 
prevention grant).  Whilst the headline figures of this scheme quote a 40% share of 
NDR income retained by district councils, in reality this is not the case.  The tariff 
system reduces the NDR income retained by South Holland to a “baseline funding” 
figure calculated by government which is actually around 12.5% of the overall NDR 
income collected by the Council.   
 
As well as the potential for the authority to attract additional income through retained 
business rates there is also the risk of uncertainty through a reduction in the amount of 
business rates that it collects. One of the key areas of uncertainty relates to appeals 
against rateable values for business premises, with the potential for successful 
appeals being backdated for a number of years. The most significant risk to South 
Holland District Council relates to the two power stations, which are subject to a 
national valuation tribunal hearing that will affect all gas-fired power stations. The 
decision from the hearing (which took place in October) is expected to be announced 
in January 2015. This will determine whether the council will have to repay business 
rates collected from the power stations and how much we will be able to collect in the 
future. Any reduction in rateable value will also have an ongoing detrimental impact on 
the business rates that the council is able to retain. 
 
Any growth over and above the NDR income that Government has assumed for 2013-
14 is shared between central and local government, with our local share equating to 
20% of the total growth. Whilst in the first year we used the Government target figure 
for retained NDR, this year we have forecast collection amounts to set a budget for the 
amount the district council will retain.  These forecasts are based on actual amounts 
collectable at October 2014 which are then adjusted for local knowledge (i.e. for 
appeals, charitable relief, etc) and uplifted by an inflationary increase to allow for the 
increase in NDR multiplier each year.   
 
It is likely that Revenue Support Grant will continue to be reduced over the coming 
years, as greater emphasis is placed on generating business rates growth and 
increasing the taxbase through encouraging the development of additional homes and 
bringing privately owned empty homes back into use.   
 
 

The table below shows the estimated level of budgeted central grants.  

Page 55



  

 
 
 
A number of specific grants have been rolled into the Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 
and Business Rates Baseline Funding. The funding assumptions used in the medium 
term plan for future years beyond the Local Government Settlement are based on the 
Local Government Association’s (LGA) modelling tool.  
 
CLG has announced continuation of the council tax freeze grant.  This funding 
provides authorities with the equivalent of a 1% council tax increase if council tax is 
not increased in 2015-16.  
 
The New Homes Bonus scheme commenced in April 2011. For 2015-16, South 
Holland’s allocation will be £1.362m. This scheme is designed to provide incentives 
and rewards for councils and communities who build houses in their area.  
 
Annual grant allocations will be transferred to the Council Tax Reserve for one-off 
schemes and projects, and will not be used to support the base budget. 
 
 
5. Collection Fund 
 
Each year the Council is required to calculate the balance on its Collection Fund.  In 
the current difficult economic climate, the Medium Term Plan target is to have a 
minimal balance on the Collection Fund, forecasting a zero balance in future years. 
Figures indicate an NNDR deficit of £299k and a £67k surplus for council tax and a 
zero balance in future years.   
 
 
 
  

6. Tax Base 
 
Delegated authority has been given to the S151 Officer to approve the taxbase, as 
legally the taxbase can only be set in the window 1 December to 31 January. At this 
stage provisional figures have been used for the draft budget pending finalisation of 
the figures. 
 
Council on 17 December 2014 confirmed the local council tax support scheme for 
2015-16. This is a continuation of the 2014-15 scheme with up-rating for working age 
claimants, and limits the level of Council Tax Support award to 75% of entitlement for 
those who do not receive protection. Protection for pensioners and war widow(er)s 
continues.  
  

Page 56



  

In 2015-16 the Council will pay grants totalling £29k to parishes as part of the 
transitional arrangements for implementing the local Council Tax Reduction Scheme. 
This will be the final year for this payment. 
  
The tax base for all parishes will be included in the Council Tax Setting report, to be 
approved at Full Council in February 2015. 
 

7. Other Budget Assumptions 
 
The budget estimates and Medium Term Plan cover the period 2015-16 to 2018-19. 
Over this timescale it is important that we make realistic assumptions as to how costs 
rise or fall. This section details the key assumptions made. 
The key assumptions used are: 

o Revenue budgets will be used to deliver services during the year for which they 
are approved. 

o There will be allowance for unavoidable growth on services (i.e. new statutory 
obligations and contractual inflation) but will not allow for any increase for 
general inflation. 

o Estimates are prepared on the understanding that appropriate service budgets 
were produced for the previous year (2014-15) which will then be adjusted to 
reflect the changing financial circumstances that the public sector is required to 
prepare for. 

o Where service delivery is dependent on a specific grant we will only assume 
continuation of the grant and expenditure where such notification has been 
received. 

o Council tax levels are estimated to reduce by approximately 0.5% in 2015-16 
and freeze the years after 

o Details on the grant settlement and assumptions made are shown in section 4. 
 

The key assumptions made for the setting of these budget estimates, which influence 
the four year financial plan are as follows: 
 
 

 2014/15 2015-16 2016-17 2017/18 2018/19 

RPI 2.5% 2.9% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 

National pay increase 1% 2.2% 1.5% 2% 2% 

Staffing Salary Level 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 

Pension contribution rate 25.8% 17.5% 
plus 

£297k 

17.5% 
plus 

£326k 

17.5% 
plus 

£326k 

17.5% 
plus 

£326k 

Tax base 25,579 25,707 25,861 26,016 26,173 

Council Tax 155.61 154.84 154.84 154.84 154.84 

 

8. Future Developments 
 
The Universal Credit is due to be rolled out nationally between February 2015 and 
March 2016 as part of a package of measures under the Welfare Reform Act. It will 
change the way that benefits (including Housing Benefits delivered by local authorities) 
are administered. It is not yet clear what role local authorities will have in this 
administration, or what the financial consequences will be. This implementation will 

Page 57



  

occur in 4 tranches. While it has been confirmed that South Holland will not be in the 
first tranche, it is not clear when the changes are likely to impact the district  
 

Government is creating a centralised fraud service as part of preparations for 
Universal Credit, with staff being transferred from local authorities.  As a result 
Housing Benefit (HB) admin grant is expected to reduce by 20% in 2016-17. 
 
 

9. Strategy, Aspirations and Forward Projections 
 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is shown below: 

1) To manage a budget process that will make progress in re-directing and 
focusing the budget on corporate priorities and in so doing, recognise the 
intrinsic link between this strategy, the Capital Strategy, and the Treasury 
Management Strategy. 

2) Adopt a corporate approach to budget preparation and continue to provide 
strong timely budget control. 

3) Use sound modern financial systems procedures and principles and promote 
electronic record keeping and approval processes.  Ensure financial 
performance reporting remains integrated with financial reporting and business 
planning. 

4) Ensure there is a rigorous scrutiny of the financial planning process and work 
towards a more effective consultation process to engage the public and 
stakeholders. 

5) Maintain balances and reserves that will provide for known risks and liabilities 
and provide capacity for managing peaks in expenditure. 

6) Operate strategies on capital and external funding that supports the Council’s 
corporate objectives. 

7) Undertake a risk assessment of material items of income and expenditure and 
report the risks to Members as part of the budget setting process (see section 
14). 

8) Manage and use our resources to deliver value for money and better 
sustainable outcomes and efficiencies for local people. 

9) Set realistic targets for trading accounts and if services fail to achieve these 
they will be subject to a more fundamental review. 

10) Aim for a minimum balance on the Collection Fund. 
11) Prepare robust and realistic income and resource requirement plans for the 

next five years. 
12) Promote take up of benefits and reliefs. 
13) Maximise income collection. 
14) Recognise our role in the community throughout and beyond the period of 

economic hardship by providing assistance to individuals, groups and 
businesses.  

 
A key aspect of the Council’s strategy to cope with the financial challenges that it 
faces was the creation of Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd, 
(CPBS), a company jointly owned with East Lindsey District Council. This innovative 
development is designed to deliver greater efficiency in the provision of back office 
services. The company is established to provide Information Technology, Human 
Resources, Financial Services, Customer Services and Revenues and Benefits. It is 
projected to make savings totalling over £30m over a10 year period, with South 
Holland’s share being in excess of £10m. 

Page 58



  

These strategies will be achieved through the working practices set by the relevant 
departments.  The effectiveness of these strategies and the underlying principles can 
be monitored by key outputs such as: 
 

o Annual audit letter 
o Financial plan 
o Governance and Audit Committee reports 
o Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
o Grants returns submitted to deadlines 
o Governance and performance reports 

 
In 2016-17 and beyond a funding gap has been identified which will need to be 
addressed in order to present a balanced and sustainable budget and medium term 
plan. The graph below shows the cost pressures increasing and government funding 
reducing over the medium term. 

9,400

10,400

11,400

12,400

13,400

14,400

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19

Net Cost

of

Services

Total

Income

 
  
Full consideration of transformational efficiencies focussed on digitalisation alongside 
important income generation opportunities and alternative revenue funding sources 
will be given to address the authority’s immediate funding needs to ensure that the 
Council has a balanced budget in 2015-16 and a sustainable position across the 
medium term 

 
 

2014-15 Outturn 
 
A proactive approach to ensure reliance can be placed on the quarter 3 forecast has 
been adopted. In line with good practice this early assessment of the 2014-2015 
outturn will inform the reliance that can be placed on the baseline used for the 2015-16 
estimates. 
 
At September 2014 (Quarter Two) an estimated underspend of £588,000 was been 
forecast for 2014-15. Whilst a number of budget pressures and savings have been 
identified, Budget Managers will continue to review the financial performance of their 
services to identify further in-year savings and estimate if these are ongoing into future 
financial years.  In preparing the budgets for 2015-16, services have reflected the on-
going pressures and savings in their new budget estimates.   
 
11. Budget Requirement and Forward Estimates 
 

Page 59



  

Outline estimates through to 2018-19 are shown in Appendix B. In compiling these 
figures we have followed the assumptions shown in sections 4 and 7 of this report and 
made specific adjustments to service budgets as and where budget holders have 
advised of a change over the medium term. 
 
It should be recognised that that budget managers will be closely reviewing their 
budgets again in order to balance its budget for 2015-16. In addition significant 
reductions in expenditure or increases in income will be required from 2016-17 
onwards, to take account of the reductions in Government funding. 
 
 Work has been carried out to challenge budget costs in order to reduce both in-year 
and on-going base budgets without impacting on core service levels. However the 
Council will experience increasing inflationary pressures on core budgets and 
continuing reductions in government grant funding, as well as further uncertainty on 
business rates retention. These factors will require the Council to consider policy 
changes if it is to rise to the challenge and balance its budgets in the medium term. An 
efficiency and income generation programme is currently being developed to reduce 
the funding gap which will in turn underpin a sustainable financial position.  
 
 A number of potential schemes to generate savings and increased income have been 
explored at officer level. However these ideas and others will be examined further 
during budget consultation and beyond to determine Council’s appetite to introduce 
such changes. Areas to consider which currently have a high level of spend or will 
require a greater review to reduce costs and provide services differently  

• Consideration of fees and income policies (including Internal review and 
benchmarking exercise) 

• Review of public owned assets including a strategic asset plan review 

• Grants Review  

• Alternative management models for key assets  
• Further shared service opportunities 

• Growth opportunities including generating income streams from asset 
ownership 

• Green Waste and further waste opportunities 

• Housing Growth Company 
 
Spalding Special Expenses are a separate charge to the residents of Spalding for 
services provided in their town and are charged as a supplement to the main council 
tax. The Spalding Special Expenses budget for 2015-16 is estimated at £194,600 
(2014-15 £193,100). The tax base used for 2015-16 is 8,423 (2014-15 8,316). A 
proportion of the Council Tax Support Grant Funding has been allocated to finance 
Spalding Special expenses in order to maintain the current Band D charge at, with a 
0.52% reduction (2014-15 £23.22) £23.10.  
 
Detailed estimates are shown at Appendix C.  
 

The Council’s 2015-16 budget and forward estimates include amounts for Internal 
Drainage Boards (IDB). These are levies charged to the authority over which the council 
has little control and form part of the revenue budget. For 2015-16 £2.288m (2014-15 
£2.243m) has been included.  
  
 
12. Fees and Charges 

Page 60



  

 
Income from fees and charges is an important source of revenue income for the 
Council.  Charges have a central role to play in service delivery, raising income, 
controlling access, responding to competition, funding investment and affecting public 
behaviour. 
 
As part of our overall income strategy we will seek to: 

o Maximise the return from the Council’s asset holdings and continue to attract 
rental income by optimising the usage of office space at Priory Road. 

o Ensure that the yield from fees and charges matches the increase in base 
budget for services that levy fees and charges, otherwise the shortfall will fall 
upon the Council Tax payer 

o Annually review fees and charges for discretionary services 
o Ensure that statutory charges are implemented 
o Monitor compliance with the corporate charging policy and corporate debt policy 
o Set targets for income collection and level of arrears and monitor performance 

against these targets. 
o Treat windfall income as a corporate resource 
o Use enforcement remedies effectively 
o Seek to minimise benefit subsidy losses 
 

 
Fees and charges have been reviewed and updated where necessary. Demand for 
services has also been reviewed and changes in demand have also been reflected in 
the budgeted level of fees and charges income. Appendix H outlines the proposals for 
fees and charges. 
 
In total £3.645m (2014-15 £3.354m) is due from fees and charges in the 2015-16 
budget. The chart below shows the main categories of budgeted fee income in 2015-
16 (and 2014-15 for comparison).  £262k additional income has been budgeted from 
the new housing growth company from 2015-16 onwards. 
 

Fees & Charges Comparisons 2014/15 & 2015/16

£0

£100

£200

£300

£400

£500

£600

£700

Car Parking Licensing South Holland

Centre and TIC

Building Control Development

Control

Markets Land Charges Recycling

Income

Service

E
s
ti

m
a

te
 £

'0
0

0

Estimate 14/15

Estimate 15/16

 

Page 61



  

 
 
13. Reserves and Balances 
 
In order to comply with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
Council undertakes a review of the level of reserves as part of the annual budget 
preparation.  It is therefore a target of our medium term plan that a review of reserves 
is carried out and reported to Cabinet for consideration.  The review includes analysis 
of current and future risk assessments, including an assessment of risk registers, 
pressures upon services, inflation and interest rates and any underwriting 
arrangements. 
 
Appendix D outlines the position statement on reserve balances.  The proposed 
budget does not require any long term support from reserve balances, however the 
challenging economic environment has required us to undertake a robust sensitivity 
analysis should these events require us to draw on balances.  Whilst it is apparent 
these risks could be financially significant, SHDC reserves are at a reasonable level.  
Moving forward the General Fund balance stands at £2.034 which is believed to be 
prudent for the Council at this time.  
 
We also have a Council Tax reserve with a current balance of £4.609m at 31 March 
2016, taking into account the New Homes Bonus for 2015-16 of £1.1m (£1.362m less 
a contribution of £262k to balance the budget). This is an important and relatively new 
revenue based funding source. The council has been prudent to date in seeking to 
strip out excessive costs in advance of applying any new funding, as a reserve it can 
be used to smooth out fluctuations and pressures on the General Fund. Continuation 
of this important source of funding policy is uncertain in the face of the forthcoming 
national election.   
 
This table shows a summary of the estimated New Homes Bonus payments held 
within the Council Tax Reserve over the term of MTFS. 
 

 
 
 

The tables below give a summary of reserve movements: 
 
General Fund Working Balance 14-15 

£'000 
15-16 
£'000 

16-17 
£'000 

17-18 
£'000 

18-19 
£'000 

Brought forward 2,034 2,034 2,034 2,034 2,034 

Page 62



  

In - - - - - 

Out - - - - - 

Carried forward 2,034 2,034 2,034 2,034 2,034 

 
 

 
 
 
 

These are the observations from the review of reserves for the 2015-16 budget: 
 

o The general fund balance at 1 April 2014 is £2.034m. This represents 
approximately 16.77% of the Council’s net budget requirement and is adequate 
for the Council’s purposes. 

o Transfers to Reserves include an annual contribution of £136,000 to the 
Replacement and Refurbishment Reserve to assist the Council in maintaining 
its asset base. For 2015-16 contributions from the repairs and renewals reserve 
stand at £223,900.  

o The Planning Reserve is to be used to deliver the Local Development 
Framework and fund additional temporary posts.   

o All New Homes Bonus Scheme grant excluding £262k per annum over the 
period of the Medium Term Financial Plan has been taken into the Council Tax 
Reserve.  

o £241,400 is shown as a movement from the Organisational Development 
reserve, to cover expenditure from the Waste incentive grant, in accordance 
with the grant scheme plan. The final amount of £23,100 is also drawn down 
from the recycling contract compensation. 

o An amount of £298,900 (2015-16) has been transferred from the council tax 
reserve to smooth the South Holland share of the collection fund nndr deficit. 

o An amount of £75,000 has been transferred from the Council Tax reserve for 
the cost of the District elections. 

o An amount of £607,000 has been drawn down from the Capital reserve for the 
Broadband County scheme which had previously been set aside for this 
purpose in an earlier year. 

 

In setting the level of General Balances, consideration has been given to the adequacy 
of financial control, the overall financial position, medium-term financial plans and the 
strategic, operational and financial risks facing the Council. Following this review, it is 
proposed that the General Fund remains set at a minimum level of £2 m. 
 

14. Risk, Key Issues, Sensitivity and Monitoring 
 
The Council must set a budget which is a realistic statement of its estimated income 
and expenditure for the coming year, based upon information currently available.  The 
Council has a duty to take into account the demand for its services and the effect on 
council tax payers of meeting those demands at varying levels of services. Given the 

Page 63



  

good management practices and sound financial and performance monitoring 
delivered in the past, the Council has the platform and expertise to deliver a balanced 
budget.    
 
 

The following table details the key risks and issues identified and how we intend to 
treat them. 
 
 
Risk 

Likeli-
hood 

 
Impact 

 
Action 

Reduced public sector funding 
from Central Government 

High High Keep up to date with developments 
and make prudent budget 
assumptions.  

Low income levels from fees and 
charges 

Medium Medium Revise spending plans 

Continuation of low interest rates High High Market advice and forecasting.  
Mitigation by diversification 

Business rates retention 
proposals leave Council exposed 
to economic fluctuations and 
rating appeals 

Medium High Monitor developments & set aside 
appropriate reserves and provisions 
to help with potential initial pressures 
and fluctuations 

Pension fund deficit Medium Medium Close  links with LCC pension fund 
Increased contributions following 
triennial review 

Additional bad debts as a result 
of economic circumstances 

Medium Medium Pro-active debt management and pre-
pay fee policies 

Increased maintenance costs of 
ageing physical assets 

Medium Medium Asset management plan.  Pro-active 
rather than reactive maintenance 
programme 

Inflation rises by more than 
budgeted projections 

Medium Medium Budget assumptions kept up to date 
with most recent projections 

Diminishing capital resources will 
mean that borrowing will be 
required at some point in the 
future 

High High Continue to closely monitor and 
prioritise the Council's Capital 
Financing Requirement. A radical 
review of the capital programme and 
wish list will be undertaken to inform 
the final budget. Utilise S106 funding 
and revenue reserves where 
appropriate 

Compass Point Business 
Services may be unable to 
deliver an effective service within 
the agreed reduced contract 
price. 

Low Medium Reviewing Service Level Agreements, 
activity levels and service priorities 

Recycling credit income High High Recycling credit income will cease as 
at 31.3.15. There will be increased 
pressures on the services once the 
parachute payments from LCC have 
depleted. It is thought the income will 
cease after 5 years.  

Court Income High Low Court income projections are 
considerably increased following 
welfare reforms. However the budget 
has not been increased due to 
concerns over collectability of this 
income. A year-end review will be 

Page 64



  

undertaken to inform future year’s 
budgets. 

Housing Benefit Overpayments High High The level of Housing Benefit 
Overpayments and their recoverability 
needs to be monitored closely 
through the year in order to ensure 
budget levels are appropriate.  

Universal Credit   High Medium The implementation of the Universal 
credit may impact on the General 
Fund both in terms of running costs 
for the Benefits service and additional 
demand on other council services. 
This will be closely monitored. 

Increased risk that liability 
insurance premiums will increase 

Medium Low Prepare to go to the market again if 
premiums exceed market trends. 

 
 
 
 

15. Consultation, Timetable and Links to Other Strategies 
 
The budget will be put out to consultation on the website and commentary invited from 
council tax payers, business rate payers and key stakeholders  
 
It is important to have clear and agreed timetables for the budget process so that 
statutory requirements are met.  Each year a timetable will be agreed with Corporate 
Management Team prior to the start of the process (i.e. around July each year). 
 
The Council has adopted a corporate risk management strategy and financial risk 
management is integrated into the Council’s overall management and decision making 
processes. This ensures a robust and well integrated risk management programme, 
which will help the Council to identify and manage key strategic risks facing it, in 
pursuit of its corporate objectives. 
 
A Performance Framework has been developed to manage delivery of the new 
priorities described in the Council’s Corporate Plan. The annual business planning 
process will run alongside the budget setting process to ensure an integrated 
approach of performance and finance. 
 

16. Capital Strategy and General Fund Capital Estimates 
 
The Council’s Capital Strategy (Appendix F) focuses on the core principles that 
underpin capital investment. 
 
The development of a robust five year capital programme is constrained by the level of 
available resources that the Council has at its disposal.  
 
The existing capital programme (Appendix E) has been amended to reflect revised 
profiling and scheme estimates. A high level summary and associated financing is 
shown below. 
 

Page 65



  

The HRA capital requirements will be dealt with separately. 
 
 
 
 

Capital Programme by Department 14-15 
Original 
Budget 
£’000 

15-16 
 
 

£’000 

16-17 
 
 

£’000 

17-18 
 
 

£’000 

18-19 
 
 

£’000 

19-20 
 
 

£’000 

Assets and Property - 49 29 19 - - 

Community Development 49 - - - - - 

Environmental Services 2,112 49 - 130 - - 

Environmental Health -      

Economic Development - 607 - - - - 

Housing 442 1,001 451 451 451 451 

ICT  80 - - - - - 

Total 2,683 1,706 480 600 451 451 

 

Financing 14-15 
Original 
Budget 
£’000 

15-16 
 
 

£’000 

16-17 
 
 

£’000 

17-18 
 
 

£’000 

18-19 
 
 

£’000 

19-20 
 
 

£’000 

Borrowing 1,512 - - 130 - - 

Capital Receipts - 4     

Capital Grants and Contributions 902 1,001 451 451 451 451 

Replacement and Refurbishment 
Reserve 

 
30 

- - - - - 

Organisational Development 
Reserve 

- - - - - - 

Direct Revenue Financing 239 701 29 19 - - 

Total 2,683 1,706 480 600 451 451 

 
 

As part of the 2015-16 budget process Service Managers were asked to submit new 
bids for essential schemes to be incorporated into the Capital Programme over the 
next five years. Each scheme is supported by a capital bid form, formulated where 
appropriate after the consideration of options. The cash flow implications of all 
schemes and the impact on revenue need careful consideration before new schemes 
are incorporated within the capital programme. The joint preparation of both a capital 
and revenue budget should ensure a sustainable position for the Council.  
 

Due to the constraints around financing, some schemes have yet to be included in the 
Capital Programme that were submitted and will be being reviewed by Finance Board 
to then do a full review of the approved programme and proposed projects to co-
ordinate resourcing requirements with the efficiency programme and deliverability.  
 
The current programme includes budget and funding for providing grants for carrying 
out disabled adaptations to properties. With the introduction of the Better Care Fund to 
deliver better outcomes and greater efficiencies through more integrated services for 
older and disabled people involving the NHS and local authorities it is likely that the 
current system of disabled facilities grants will fundamentally change from 2015-16 
with pooled budgets being introduced. The capital programme continues to recognise 
these schemes based on the current arrangement; however this will need to change 
once local plans affecting South Holland’s residents are drawn up and adopted. 

Page 66



  

 
The HRA capital programme has been dealt with separately with the HRA budget and 
Business Plan. 
 

17. Treasury Management Policy and Investment Strategy 
 
The Treasury Management Policy and Investment Strategy (Appendix G) pulls 
together the decisions of capital investment, use of reserves, our cash flow and 
revenue budgets.  
 
The Treasury Management Strategy covers two main areas: 

• Capital plans and associated Capital Prudential Indicators 
• Treasury management issues including borrowing and investment strategies 

and associated Treasury Prudential Indicators. 
 
No major changes are proposed to the Treasury Management Policy. The investment 
strategy may be updated in the light of the low returns on investments and the 
opportunities that may arise as a result of the proposed new housing development 
company. It is proposed that the temporary delegation for the property investment fund 
is absorbed as an integral element of the budget framework. 
 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft Medium Term Financial Plan Appendix B

Area 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Related Expenditure 6,405 6,731 6,793 6,848 6,958

Premises Related Expenditure 1,051 967 952 893 910

Transport Related Expenditure 1,016 825 825 824 824

Supplies & Services 3,361 3,437 3,331 3,254 3,332

Drainage Board Levies 2,243 2,288 2,334 2,380 2,428

Parish Precepts 603 620 632 645 658

Third Party Payments 2,722 2,682 2,597 2,563 2,530

Transfer Payments 19,784 21,922 21,776 21,423 21,423

Depreciation and Impairment Losses 973 627 567 503 472

Grant payment to parishes 58 29 -                -                -                

Income  (25,480)  (27,714)  (27,591)  (27,167)  (27,097) 

COUNCIL SUB-TOTAL 12,736 12,414 12,216 12,166 12,438

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Expenditure 269 701 29 19 0

Capital Charges Contra Entry  (1,158)  (702)  (642)  (578)  (547) 

Minimum Revenue Provision 16 254 250 259 286

Interest on borrowing 34 34 34 34 34

Contributions to Reserves 815 136 136 136 136

New Homes Bonus Contribution to Reserves 1,114 1,100 1,378 1,301        1,081        

Contributions From Reserves  (798)  (1,811)  (333)  (162)  (155) 

NET COST OF SERVICES 13,028 12,126 13,068 13,175 13,273

Funding shortfall -                -                (903)  (1,362)  (1,931) 

BUDGET REQUIREMENT 13,028 12,126 12,165 11,813 11,342

Financing

Local Government Settlement RSG  (3,392)  (2,381)  (1,813)  (1,387)  (979) 

Local Government Settlement NNDR Baseline  (2,980)  (3,037)  (3,160)  (3,273)  (3,391) 

Retained NNDR income and S31 Grant  (764)  (720)  (720)  (720)  (720) 

Community Right to bid and challenge  (16)  (16) 0 0 0

New Homes Bonus Grant  (1,114)  (1,362)  (1,640)  (1,563)  (1,343) 

Council Tax Freeze Grant  (39)  (47) 0 0 0

Spalding Special Expenses  (193)  (195)  (196)  (197)  (198) 

Town & Parish Councils  (603)  (620)  (632)  (645)  (658) 

Share of Collection Fund Deficit/(Surplus)-NNDR 95 299 0 0 0

Share of Collection Fund Deficit/(Surplus)-C Tax  (42)  (67) 0 0 0

SOUTH HOLLAND PRECEPT REQUIREMENT 3,980 3,980 4,004 4,028 4,053

TAX BASE 25,579 25,707 25,861 26,016 26,173

SOUTH HOLLAND BAND D COUNCIL TAX 155.61 154.84 154.84 154.84 154.84

PERCENTAGE DECREASE (0.35) (0.50) -            -            -            

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
 

Appendix C 
 Spalding Special Expenses Account 

  2014-15 
Budget 
£ 

2015-16 
Budget 
£ 

Variance 
 

£ 

Spalding Cemetery   45,900 54,160 8,260 

Spalding Allotments  1,800 2,500 700 

      Ayscoughfee (excluding gardens)  11,710 11,510 (200) 

      Halley Stewart  30,200 48,400 18,200 

      Thames Road  13,470 13,480 10 

      Fulney Road  10,320 10,320 0 

      Monkshouse Lane  37,310 37,710 400 

Contribution to Voluntary Car Scheme 8,500 8,500 0 

Christmas Decorations  13,200 13,200 0 

Contrib. St Mary & St Nicolas Parish Church 750 750 0 

Administrative Support 4,690 4,000 (690) 

Bus Shelter maintenance 370 370 0 

Play Areas 1,000 1,000 0 

Spalding Town Centre Promotion  2,930 1,500 (1,430) 

Crime prevention  7,700 7,700 0 

Chairman’s Special Events 750 750 0 

Contribution to Reserves 15,805 2400 (13,405) 

Share of council Tax Reform Grant (13,305) (6,650) 6,655 

Use of reserve  (17,000) (17,000) 

Total Expenditure 193,100 194,600 1,500 

Tax Base 8,316 8,423 107 

Council Tax Band D Equivalent 23.22 23.10 (0.12) 

Reserve Account (Rounded)    

Balance at 1 April (128,195) (128,195)  

Use of reserve (inc 14-15 forecast outturn)  
 

36,460  
Contribution to Reserve (inc 14-15 forecast 
outturn) (15,805) (36,205)  

Balance at 31March (144,000) (127,940)  

Earmarked for crime prevention 4,380 4,380  

Eamarked for Christmas Decorations 5,710 0  

Earmarked for Capital Expenditure 41,130 60,340  
Agreed minimum balance 5% of 
expenditure for contingency 10,320 10,320  

Available Balance (82,460) (52,900)  

Page 71



  
 

 
Appendix C 

SPALDING SPECIAL EXPENSES ACCOUNT- FIVE YEAR FORECAST 
 

            

5 year Forward Estimates Spalding Special Expenses     

  2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Employee Costs 11,440 10,020 10,120 10,370 10,630 

Premises Costs 176,220 205,320 186,330 186,500 186,650 

Transport Expenses 100 100 100 100 100 

Supplies and Services 22,950 28,820 28,640 30,330 32,040 

Third party payments 6,700 5,700 5,700 5,700 5,700 

Support Services 6,490 6,690 6,710 6,880 7,050 

Capital Charges 18,000  12,900  12,900  12,900  12,900  

Contribution to reserve 15,805  2,400  0    

Total Expenditure 257,705 271,950 250,500 252,780 255,070 

Total Income (51,300) (53,700) (54,770) (55,870) (56,990) 

Share of Parish Grant (13,305) (6,650) 0 0 0 

NET COST OF SERVICES 193,100 211,600 195,730 196,910 198,080 

      

Use of reserves  (17,000)    

      

TO BE RAISED FROM COUNCIL TAX 193,100  194,600  195,730  196,910  198,080  

      

TAXBASE 8,316 8,423 8,474 8,524 8,576 

      

BAND D COUNCIL TAX £ 23.22  23.10  23.10  23.10  23.10  

      

PREVIOUS YEAR COUNCIL TAX £ 23.28  23.22  23.10  23.10  23.10  

      
PERCENTAGE INCREASE 
(DECREASE) (0.26%) (0.52%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

 

P
age 72



Appendix D

Reserve 31/03/13 IN OUT 31/03/14 IN OUT 31/03/15 IN OUT 31/03/16 IN OUT 31/03/17 IN OUT 31/03/18 IN OUT 31/03/19

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund Working Balance 2,034        -              -              2,034        -                -              2,034        -              -              2,034        -              -              2,034        -              -              2,034        -              -                 2,034        

Specific Reserves

Affordable Housing 118            0 0 118            0 0 118            0 0 118            0 0 118            0 0 118            0 0 118           

Capital Reserve 562            200 0 762            0 0 762            0 (607) 155            0 0 155            0 0 155            0 0 155           

Climate Change Reserve 44              3 0 47              0 0 47              0 0 47              0 0 47              0 0 47              0 0 47             

Community Cohesion Reserve 69              0 (25) 44              0 (25) 19              0 (19) -                 0 0 -                 0 0 -                 0 0 -                

Council Tax Reserve 2,078        1,765 (95) 3,748        1,716 (1,371) 4,093        1,100 (584) 4,609        1,378 0 5,987        1,301 0 7,288        1,081 (75) 8,294        

Insurance Reserve 257            0 0 257            0 (20) 237            0 (20) 217            0 (20) 197            0 (20) 177            0 (20) 157           

Organisational Development Reserve 1,094        1,207 (174) 2,127        38 (533) 1,632        0 (265) 1,367        0 (50) 1,317        0 0 1,317        0 0 1,317        

Planning Reserve 313            18 (21) 310            0 (93) 217            0 (75) 142            0 (75) 67              0 (67) -                 0 0 -                

Replacement and Refurbishment Reserve 358            136 (203) 291            136 (219) 208            136 (224) 120            136 (188) 68              136 (75) 129            136 (60) 205           

Section 106 Reserve 11              29 0 40              0 0 40              0 0 40              0 0 40              0 0 40              0 0 40             

Spalding Special Expenses 94              50 (16) 128            16 0 144            0 (17) 127            0 0 127            0 0 127            0 0 127           

Property Acquisition Reserve -                 0 0 -                 1,000 0 1,000        0 0 1,000        0 0 1,000        0 0 1,000        0 0 1,000        

Emergency Planning Reserve 10              0 0 10              0 0 10              0 0 10              0 0 10              0 0 10              0 0 10             

Total Specific Reserves 5,008        3,408      (534) 7,882        2,906        (2,261) 8,527 1,236 (1,811) 7,952 1,514 (333) 9,133 1,437 (162) 10,408 1,217 (155) 11,470

Total General Fund Reserves 7,042        3,408      (534) 9,916        2,906        (2,261) 10,561      1,236      (1,811) 9,986        1,514      (333) 11,167      1,437      (162) 12,442      1,217      (155) 13,504      

General Fund Reserve Statement - 2015 16 estimates

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total

Scheme Description Projected

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Asset and Property

Priory Road - Air Conditioning Council Chamber 20 20

West Marsh Road Depot New Roller Shutters 10 10

Leisure Contractor Pool & Hall Works 136 39 29 19 224
156 49 29 19 254

Community Development

Fulney Field Skate Park 10 10
10 10

Economic Development

Broadband Lincolnshire 607 607
607 607

Planning

PSICA 22 22
22 22

Corporate Finance

Municipal Bonds Agency 50 50
50 50

Environmental

Holland Road Car Park 12 12

Environmental Health Restructure 54 54

Extension to Spalding Cemetery 49 49

Refuse Freighters 2,110 130 2,240
2,176 49 130 2,355

Housing

Gypsy and Traveller Sites 83 550 633

Disabled Facilities Grants - Private 334 376 376 376 376 376 2,214

Decent Home Grants/Loans 37 75 75 75 75 75 412

455 1,001 451 451 451 451 3,259

ICT

Software

Migration to Exchange 2010 11 11

Microsoft Lync 10 10

2 Factor Authentication 12 12

Perpetual Licences for AIM Income Management 51 51

Hardware

Replacement of Sharepoint 2003 23 23

PAYE.net/MOTO 5 5

IT Virtual Services Oracle 83 83

Storage Area Network 18 18

Network Upgrade 8 8

Radio Links 9 9

New Tape deck solution for backups 20 20

Oracle Servers 14 14

262 262

GRAND TOTAL 3,130 1,706 480 600 451 451 6,819

FUNDING

GF Borrowing 1,540 130 1,670

GF - Capital Receipts 25 4 30

Capital Grants and Contributions 1,053 1,001 451 451 451 451 3,858
Direct Revenue Funding (DRF) 512 701 29 19 1,261

Total Funding 3,130 1,706 480 600 451 451 6,819

Direct Revenue Financing Met From

In Year Revenue 220 84 29 19

Specific Reserves 227 607 - -

R&R 66 10

512 701 29 19

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2015/16 TO 2019/20

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Appendix F 

 

 

1.0  INTRODUCTION 

In line with best practice South Holland District Council (SHDC) renews its 
Capital Strategy on an annual basis, ensuring the strategy maintains a strong 
and current link to our Corporate Plan.   
 
For the benefit of the reader the strategy has 3 key parts; 

• Introduction 

• Core Strategy 

• Strategic Context  
 
Please have a read of our strategy, we hope it provides you with the 
understanding you seek with regards to how we will manage the increasingly 
limited capital resources at our disposal to deliver our priorities.  
 
The Strategy focuses on core principles that underpin capital investment. It 
gives a position statement with regards to capital expenditure and the 
resources available in terms of funding. The Strategy projects where the 
Council will be in five years’ time and importantly how it intends to get there.  It 
also includes some of the key issues and risks that may impact on the delivery 
of the Capital Investment Strategy, and that the correct governance 
framework is in place to ensure the Strategy is delivered. 
 

2.0 CORE STRATEGY 

 

The core strategy explains how we will manage our capital resources to 
deliver our proposed capital programme.  
 
From 2015-16 to 2019-20 the Council is likely to need investment to advance 
the priorities stated within its Corporate Plan, whilst recognising the reductions 
in funding as a result of the situation in the wider economy. In order to do this 
we will need to deliver efficiencies, seek additional funding, and periodically 
review both the consumption of our capital resources and our stated priorities. 
With fewer resources we may well be unable to maintain assets’ obligatory 
long term maintenance needs. We will manage this through four core 
principles, as set out in Appendix 1.  

3.0 STRATEGIC CONTEXT 

3.1 Strategic Links 

This strategy is a high level summary of SHDC’s approach to capital 
investment in the future of the district. It is driven by the Corporate Plan which 
lays out South Holland’s visions and priorities. The Corporate Plan is 
supported by Service Business Plans, and is reviewed annually alongside the 
budget setting process to ensure an integrated approach to performance and 

Page 77



 2 

finance. The delivery of our priorities is closely monitored in accordance with 
the council’s performance framework.  
 
Schemes will be considered for inclusion in the Capital Programme based on 
affordability, value for money and deliverable outputs that meet the authority’s 
Corporate Plan.   
 
3.2 Capital Resources 

Balance of Funding 
 
The Council needs to consider how its future capital requirements can be 
financed. It also needs to consider ways of innovation that maximise 
resources, especially given the expected further reductions in available 
funding over the coming years. The Council is required to have regard to the 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, to demonstrate that 
proposals are affordable, sustainable and prudent. 

 
A brief description of the resources available to fund capital expenditure is 
given in Appendix 2. 
 
Current Funding Situation 
 
The medium term financial plan details the General Fund Capital Programme 
and financing over the next 5 years, with the HRA capital spending plans 
being contained within its 30 year  Business Plan. 
 
A summary of the combined General Fund and HRA Capital Programme is 
shown below: 
 

Resources 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Total Capital 
Programme 

8,962 8,071 8,339 8,342 8,446 

Finance applied (8,962) (8,071) (8,209) (8,342) (8,446) 

Financing to be 
identified 

 
- 

 
- 

 
130 

 
- 

 
- 

 
The Council has limited resources available for funding future programmes. 
By March 2019, the Capital Receipts reserve will stand at an estimated 
£1,500,000.  £365,000 is already earmarked for the Crowland Investment. At 
this stage we have been prudent and have not forecast any additional Capital 
Receipts over the medium term apart from keeping the Right To Buy sales of 
Council Houses at a similar level to 2014/15. 
 
S106 monies are available for capital schemes which meet the conditions of 
the individual planning agreements. There will be additional capital schemes 
brought into the Capital Programme which meet the S106 criteria and utilise 
this valuable resource.  
 
The Council has earmarked revenue reserves, which can be used for 
financing capital investment. These reserves will be used to fund projects of 

Page 78



 3 

an ‘invest to save’ nature or to generate income for the authority. The Council 
has a Property Acquisition Reserve which can be used to acquire assets that 
will generate income for the General Fund. 
 
A number of assets have currently been obtained under leasing 
arrangements. These will be reviewed and an appropriate method of financing 
selected to ensure that any replacement of leased assets is included in the 
capital programme and financed in the most cost effective way. 
 
The Council will pro-actively seek out external grants and contributions to 
enhance the infrastructure and environment within the District. 
 
Currently borrowing rates are relatively low and the Council may need to 
consider this form of funding to expand the Capital Programme. 
 
The Council has sufficient resources to maintain its existing housing stock to 
decent homes plus standard and to invest in a programme of new build to 
meet social housing needs in its area.  
 
3.3       Disposals Policy 

 

The Council’s Asset Management Plan details the approach to asset disposal. 
As a principle, the Council releases funding from under utilised assets. Asset 
Management is a key component in the Council’s efficiency strategy. 

 

Generally the Council seeks to achieve ‘best consideration’ in disposing of 
assets, via a sale subject to competition. In certain circumstances it may be 
for less than best consideration, normally where the disposal will contribute to 
the achievement of the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or 
environmental well being of the whole or part of the area. 
 
3.4 Capital Expenditure, Risks and Opportunities 

 

The key issues facing the Council in relation to Capital expenditure are 
summarised in Appendix 3. 
 
 
3.5      Framework for managing and monitoring performance 
It is important, given the risks surrounding Capital Projects that the 
appropriate Governance framework is in place hence the following processes 
are in place: 

• The Capital Strategy itself to be presented annually alongside the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy at Council; 

 

• The overall Capital Programme and financing is subject to approval by 
the Cabinet and Council, with due diligence paid to the application of 
scarce capital resources; 

 

• Progress on the Capital Programme and its financing will be reported to 
Cabinet on a quarterly basis; 

 

Page 79



 4 

• An option appraisal methodology for proposed new schemes is used 
which gives each bid a score, ensuring accordance with corporate 
objectives and best use of assets. 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 
CORE PRINCIPLES 
 

Principle 1 – Managing the impact of investment decisions on our revenue budgets 

We will do this by: 

• Ensuring capital investment decisions do not place unnecessary additional 
pressure on Council Tax or Housing Rents 

• Promoting capital investment which allows “invest to save” outcomes 

Principle 2 – Optimise the availability of capital funding where that funding supports 
the priorities of SHDC 

We will do this by: 

• Disposing of surplus assets and using the proceeds to reinvest in our 
priorities 

• Developing effective working relationships with potential funders 

• Listening to and supporting effective partnering arrangements 

• Having clear policies for the consumption of our reserves 

Principle 3 – Ensure we have effective pre and post project appraisal 

We will do this by: 

• Ensuring a system of competition exists for project approval 

• Building into project appraisal recognition of environmental sustainability 

• Fully considering project risk 

• Carefully considering Value for Money and Efficiency of every project 

• Ensuring all projects are supported by an affordable business plan 

• Reviewing projects on completion taking account of any corporate learning 
opportunities 

Principle 4 – Performance manage our capital programme 

We will do this by: 

• Integrating the capital programme into our performance management 
framework 

• Clearly defining responsibility for the delivery of the capital programme and 
ensuring that there are sufficient resources to deliver projects 

• Ensure that projects clearly defined outputs and benefits and that these 
outputs and benefits are also performance managed     

• Making sure our assets perform at an optimal level through effective ongoing 
asset management, consistent with levels of investment 

 

Page 80



 5 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 
FUNDING SOURCES 
 

Capital Resource Implications with regards to future funding 

Capital Receipt The Council holds a limited number of valuable assets that 
could be transferred into cash.  The Council needs to balance 
cost of maintaining an asset with potential benefits arising 
from disposal, in light of delivering Corporate Objectives, and 
this is therefore politically sensitive. 
 

Section 106 – 
Planning Obligations 

The Council has powers under Section 106 to provide for 
infrastructure and facilities to support the local community 
alongside planning and development projects.  In some cases 
the Council is able to receive cash amounts in lieu of 
developers providing for these requirements directly.   
 

External grants and 
contributions 

The partnership approach to service delivery is a core belief of 
the Council. Through its services, partnership working, 
supportive funding and innovation, the Council will seek to 
attract investment into the District.  The Council is also in 
receipt of Better Care funding to support its Disabled Facility 
Grant programme and is heavily reliant upon this to help it 
deliver these mandatory grants for which there is a significant 
demand from its residents.  

Revenue 
Contributions 

The Medium Term Financial Strategy and Plan, currently 
assumes an annual (and reducing) revenue contribution in 
support of General Fund capital expenditure. The affordability 
of any revenue contribution needs to be considered in context 
of balancing the General Fund budget.  
 
The 30 year HRA business plan indicates that annual revenue 
surpluses will be generated which will allow the current 
programme for major repairs to housing assets to be fully 
funded and provides the opportunity for further capital 
investment. 
 

Balances and 
Reserves 

SHDC holds both general and specific reserves, earmarked to 
support specific service areas. The value of reserves available 
to support capital expenditure is limited and set to reduce in 
the coming years. 
 
The HRA business plan shows that after funding the capital 
programme, significant balances will accrue. These will 
generate investment income for the HRA. Future investment 
plans may draw on these balances and the business plan will 
need to reflect the impact on the revenue account. This 
includes the Major Repairs Reserve 
 

Page 81



 6 

 
 
 
 

Borrowing The Council currently holds £67.456m of Long Term HRA 
debt following the introduction of the HRA Self-Financing 
scheme in 2012. The new system also enables the Council to 
borrow an additional £4.4m to finance capital schemes or 
repay debt at some point in the future. 
 
As non borrowing capital resources diminish, if it is to maintain 
a General Fund capital programme, the Council will need to 
resort to borrowing. Current projections expect this to 
commence during 2014-15 to support the replacement of the 
refuse fleet. 
 
The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy includes a 
borrowing strategy and demonstrates the affordability and 
sustainability of any borrowing on the Medium Term Financial 
Plan, through the application of the Prudential Code.  
 
The Council will ensure its Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP) policy reflects the costs of borrowing included in the 
Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



 7 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 3 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME ISSUES 

 

Area Issue 

Asset 
Management 
Strategy 

The Council’s Asset Management Strategy supports its 
Capital Strategy. Annual reviews of assets aligned to the 
Strategy may identify surplus assets, which may in turn 
generate capital receipts for future capital investment. 
Expenditure pressures are similarly identified where assets 
need replacing or enhancing. 
The HRA Asset Management Strategy has been developed to 
complement the HRA Business Plan by formalising the 
Council’s approach to asset management in respect of its 
housing stock. 
 

Risk Management Each significant capital project will have its own risk log, 
including political, economic, legal and organisational as well 
as financial risks, which are recorded and managed 
throughout the life of the project. 
Monitoring and control of exempt input tax is essential for the 
council. Where exempt input tax exceeds the 5% de minimus 
limit the whole amount is irrecoverable and will represent an 
additional cost to the council.  Each capital investment will be 
closely reviewed to assess its VAT implications. 
 

Sustainability and 
Carbon & Waste 
Reduction 

A Sustainability Appraisal has been developed from the Local 
Development Framework. Key capital programmes will be 
evaluated against sustainability objectives. 
Where appropriate, consideration has been made in respect 
of carbon and waste reduction. This includes consideration of 
energy use, transport and fuel use, water use, production and 
disposal. The installation of solar panel at the Priory Road 
offices is an example of investment that will generate income 
to offset our carbon footprint over the next 25 years. 
 

Procurement The purchase of capital assets should be conducted in 
accordance with the Procurement Strategy, ensuring value for 
money, legality and sustainability at all times.  Contract 
standing orders and rules governing the disposal or write off 
of assets are contained in the Constitution which is 
periodically reviewed 
 

Housing There is increasing pressure with regards to the Council’s 
statutory obligation concerning Disabled Facilities Grants 
(DFGs). In recent years the Council has supplemented 
government funding with contributions from its own resources 
in order to maintain a manageable waiting list for these grants. 
The sustainability of this needs review in light of the Medium 

Page 83



 8 

Term Financial Plan and the change in funding source to the 
Better Care Fund.  
Investment in the adaptation of its own Council Housing stock 
will also increase as part of the HRA business plan. 
A number of grants and loans are available to home owners 
and tenants in South Holland to continue investment in the 
quality and energy efficiency of the district’s housing stock. 
Although currently supported from past receipts of external 
funding, the affordability of supporting these programmes over 
the longer term needs careful review. 
The Council has established South Holland Homes (a Local 
Housing Company) to develop affordable homes. The 
company’s future business plans will look to innovative 
approach to exploit and maximise resources available to it to 
deliver its aims. The  
 

Partnership 
working 

The integration of our capital strategy with those who we seek 
to work with will be necessary to deliver the shared visions we 
hold.  Given the opportunities of the Localism Act and working 
with local communities and the voluntary sector, looking at 
joint asset use will be increasingly important. The 
arrangements with Compass Point Business Services and 
Breckland District Council, as well as the lease of Council 
Offices to several outside bodies are good examples of this.  
The Council will actively seek opportunities to transfer 
community assets to local groups or parish councils. 
 

Invest to save 
schemes and VFM 

Whilst there are revenue implications for investing in capital 
schemes, the Council is keen to invest in areas that result in 
long-term revenue savings and ‘invest to save’ schemes. The 
significant resources applied to capital expenditure require the 
adopted principles of value for money (VFM) to be at the heart 
of our capital strategy and returns on investment are one 
aspect of VFM. 
 

 

Page 84



   

Appendix G 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy 

 

South Holland District Council 
 
2015/16 

Page 85



 2

INDEX 
 

1 INTRODUCTION        3 
 

1.1 Background        3 
1.2 Reporting requirements      3 
1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16    4 
1.4 Training        5 
1.5 Treasury management consultants     5 
 

2 THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2015/16 – 2017/18  5 
 

2.1 Capital expenditure       5 
2.2 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing 

Requirement)        6 
2.3 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement   7 
2.4 Core funds and expected investment balances    8 
2.5 Affordability prudential indicators     8 
2.6 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream    8 
2.7 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on 

council tax        9 
2.8 Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment 

decisions on housing rent levels     9 
2.9 HRA ratios        9 
 

3 BORROWING        10 
 

3.1 Current portfolio position      10 
3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity    11 
3.3 Prospects for interest rates      12 
3.4 Borrowing strategy       13 
3.5 Policy on borrowing in advance of need    15 
3.6 Debt rescheduling       15 
3.7 Municipal Bonds Agency      16 
 

4 ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY     17 
 

4.1 Introduction – changes to credit rating methodology   17 
4.2 Investment policy       17 
4.3 Creditworthiness policy       19 
4.4 Country limits        20 
4.5 Investment strategy       20 
4.6 Investment risk benchmarking      21 
4.7 End of year investment report      21 
 

5 APPENDICES        22 
 

1 Interest Rate Forecasts 2014 – 2018     23 
2 Economic Background       24 
3 Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and 

Counterparty Risk Management     29 
4 Approved Countries for Investments     33 
5 Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation    34 
6 The Treasury Management Role of the Section 151 Officer  35 

 

Page 86



 3

 
 

1.  Introduction 

1.1 Background 

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that 
cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury 
management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with 
cash being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk 
counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, 
providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return. 
 
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of 
the Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing 
need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that 
the Council can meet its capital spending obligations.  This management of longer 
term cash may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term 
cash flow surpluses.  On occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured 
to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  
 
CIPFA defines treasury management as: 
 
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks. ” 
 
The Council’s treasury function is undertaken by Compass Point Business 
Services (East Coast) Ltd (CPBS) on behalf of the Council. CPBS is 
responsible for: 
 

• Production of the annual treasury management strategy  

• Production of regular treasury management policy reports 

• Production of treasury management practices 

• Production of budget and budget variations relating to the treasury 
management function 

• Production of management information reports 

• Provision of adequate treasury management resources and skills, and 
effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management 
function 

• Arrangement of the appointment of external service providers. 
 
1.2 Reporting requirements 
 
The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and 
actuals.  

Page 87



 4

Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy (this report) - 
The first, and most important report covers: 

• the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

• a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital 
expenditure is charged to revenue over time); 

• the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings 
are to be organised) including treasury indicators; and  

• an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be 
managed). 

 
A Mid Year Treasury Management Report – This will update members with 
the progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as 
necessary, and whether any policies require revision. 
 
An Annual Treasury Report – This provides details of a selection of actual 
prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to 
the estimates within the strategy. 
 
Scrutiny 
The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to the Council.  This role is undertaken by the Governance and 
Audit Committee. 
 
1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 
 
The strategy for 2015/16 covers two main areas: 
 
Capital Issues 

• the capital plans and the prudential indicators; 

• the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 

Treasury Management Issues 

• the current treasury position; 

• treasury indicators which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the 
Council; 

• prospects for interest rates; 

• the borrowing strategy; 

• policy on borrowing in advance of need; 

• debt rescheduling; 

• the investment strategy; 

• creditworthiness policy; and 

• policy on use of external service providers. 

 

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
CIPFA Prudential Code, the Communities and Local Government (CLG) MRP 
Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and the CLG Investment 
Guidance. 

Page 88



 5

1.4 Training 

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny.  
Training is arranged as required. 

   

The training needs of CPBS treasury management officers are periodically 
reviewed.  

1.5 Treasury management consultants 

CPBS uses Capita Asset Services as external treasury management advisors for 
the Council. 
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the Council at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon external service providers.  
 
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and 
resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the 
methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and 
documented, and subjected to regular review.  

 

2. The Capital Prudential Indicators 2015/16 – 2017/18 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 
management activity.  The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected 
in prudential indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and 
confirm capital expenditure plans. 

2.1 Capital expenditure 

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure 
plans, both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget 
cycle.  Members approve capital expenditure forecasts as part of the annual 
Budget report. 

** Please note that the budgets are currently being worked on and are 
out for consultation so the figures will be subject to change as well as 
the prudential indicators. The final formal approval will take place by 
Council in February 2015. 

Page 89



 6

 

Capital 
Expenditure 
£’000’s 

2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Latest 

Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

General Fund 1,336 4,019 1,187 560 780 

HRA 5,396 10,056 7,256 7,591 7,739 

Total 6,732 14,075 8,443 8,151 8,519 

 

The table below summarises the capital expenditure plans and how these 
plans are being financed by capital or revenue resources.  Any shortfall of 
resources results in a funding need (borrowing).  

 

Capital Expenditure 
£’000’s 

2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Latest 

Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

General Fund 1,336 4,019 1,187 560 780 

HRA 5,396 10,056 7,256 7,591 7,739 

Total Spend 6,732 14,075 8,443 8,151 8,519 

Financed by:      

Capital receipts 272 164 126 129 132 

Capital grants & 
contributions 839 1,781 451 451 451 

Direct Revenue 
Funding /Use of 
Reserves 5,621 10,620 7,866 7,491 7,726 

Total Financing 6,732 12,565 8,443 8,071 8,309 

Net financing need 
for the year 

 
0 

 
1,510 

 
0 

 
80 

 
210 

 

Other long term liabilities - the above financing need excludes other long term 
liabilities, such as Private Financing Initiative (PFI) and leasing arrangements 
which already include borrowing instruments.   

2.2 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital 
expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital 
resources.  It is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing 
need.  Any capital expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid 
for, will increase the CFR.  

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the MRP is a statutory annual 
revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line with each 
assets life. 

Page 90



 7

The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance 
leases).  Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s 
borrowing requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and 
so the Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes.  The 
Council currently has £254k of such schemes within the CFR. 

As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the CFR 
projections, as follows: 

 

£’000’s 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Latest 

Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Capital Financing Requirement 

CFR - non HRA 741 2,216 1,962 1,792 1,743 

CFR - HRA 69,653 69,407 69,161 68,915 68,669 

Total CFR 70,394 71,623 71,123 70,707 70,412 

Movement in CFR (511) 1,229 (500) (416) (295) 

Movement in CFR represented by 

Net financing need for 
the year (above) 

 
- 

 
1,510 

 
- 

 
80 

 
210 

Less MRP and other 
financing movements 

 
(511) 

 
(281) 

 
(500) 

 
(496) 

 
(505) 

Movement in CFR (511) 1,229 (500) (496) (505) 

Note the MRP includes finance lease annual principal payments. 

 

2.3 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement 

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General 
Fund capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the 
minimum revenue provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake 
additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary revenue provision - VRP).   

CLG Regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve 
an MRP Statement in advance of each year.  A variety of options are 
provided to councils, so long as there is a prudent provision.   

The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP Statement: 

For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will 
be Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

• Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined 
in former CLG regulations (option 1)  

These options provide for an approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need 
(CFR) each year. 

From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance 
leases) the MRP policy will be: 

• Asset Life Method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of 
the assets, in accordance with the regulations (this option must be 
applied for any expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation 
Direction) (option 3) 

Page 91



 8

These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over 
approximately the asset’s life.  

There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision 
but there is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made (although 
there are transitional arrangements in place). 

Repayments included in finance leases are applied as MRP.  

2.4 Core funds and expected investment balances 

The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance 
capital expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget 
will have an ongoing impact on investments unless resources are 
supplemented each year from new sources (asset sales etc.).  Detailed below 
are estimates of the year end balances for each resource and anticipated day 
to day cash flow balances. 

 

*Working capital balances shown are estimated year end; these may be 
higher mid year. 
 
 

2.5 Affordability prudential indicators 

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing 
prudential indicators, but within this framework, prudential indicators are 
required to assess the affordability of the capital investment plans. These 
provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment plans on the 
Council’s overall finances.  As part of the formal governance process, the 
Council approves the following indicators: 

 

2.6 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream. 

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other 
long-term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue 
stream. 

Year End Resources 
£’000’s 

2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

General Fund Balance 2,034 2,034 2,034 2,034          2,034 

HRA Working Balance 6,835 5,847 6,388 6,956 7,629 

Earmarked Reserves  8,083 8,383 8,626 9,017 8,795 

Capital Grants Unapplied 1,612 1,276 1,201 1,126 1,051 

Capital receipts 1,410 1,410 1,410 1,410 1,410 

Receipts in Advance 633 0 0 0 0 

Total core funds 20,607 18,950 19,659 20,543 20,919 

Working capital* 6 6 6 6 6 

Under borrowing (2,901) (4,411) (4,411) (4,491) (4,701) 

Expected investments 17,712 14,545 15,254 16,058 16,224 

Page 92



 9

 

 

 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Non-HRA 0.95% -0.47% 1.49% 1.54% 1.66% 

HRA  25.08% 24.12% 22.68% 21.84% 21.8% 

 

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the 
proposals in this budget report. 
 
2.7 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the band D 
council tax. 
 
This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to 
the three year capital programme recommended in this budget report compared 
to the Council’s existing approved commitments and current plans.  The 
assumptions are based on the budget, but will invariably include some estimates, 
such as the level of Government support, which are not published over a three 
year period. 
 
 2013/14 

Actual 
2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Council tax - band D £0.09 £-4.13 £4.41 £8.39 £8.42 

 
2.8 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rent 
levels. 
 
Similar to the council tax calculation, this indicator identifies the trend in the cost of 
proposed changes in the housing capital programme recommended in this budget 
report compared to the Council’s existing commitments and current plans, 
expressed as a discrete impact on weekly rent levels.   
 

 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Weekly housing rent 
levels 

 
£0.06 

 
£0.09 

 
£0.07 

 
£0.16 

 
£0.16 

 

This indicator shows the revenue impact on any newly proposed changes, 
although any discrete impact will be constrained by rent controls.   
 
 
2.9 HRA Ratios 
 
 2013/14 

Actual 
2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

HRA debt £m 67 67 67 67 67 

HRA revenues £m 16 16 17 17 17 

Ratio of debt to 
revenues (%) 

 
419 

 
419 

 
394 

 
394 

 
394 

 

Page 93



 10

 
 2013/14 

Actual 
2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

HRA debt £m 67 67 67 67 67 

Number of HRA 
dwellings 

 
3,888 

 
3,904 

 
3,905 

 
3,908 

 
3,911 

Debt per dwelling  (£) 17,232 17,162 17,157 17,144 17,131 

 
3.   Borrowing 
 
The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service 
activity of the Council.  The treasury management function ensures that the 
Council’s cash is organised in accordance with the the relevant professional 
codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity.  This will 
involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the 
organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities.  The strategy covers the relevant 
treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the 
annual investment strategy. 
 
3.1 Current portfolio position 

The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2014, with forward 
projections are  summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt (the 
treasury management operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need 
(the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under 
borrowing.  

£’000’s 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

External Debt 
Debt at 1 April  67,750 67,493 67,469 67,456 67,456 

Expected change in Debt (7) (3) 0 0 0 

Other long-term liabilities 
(OLTL) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Expected change in OLTL (250) (21) (13) 0 0 

Actual gross debt at 31 
March  

67,493 67,469 67,456 67,456 67,456 

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 

70,394     71,621 71,123 70,707 70,412 

Under / (over) borrowing 2,901 4,152 3,667 3,251 2,956 

 

Within the prudential indicators, there are a number of key indicators to 
ensure that the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits.  One 
of these is that the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except 
in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the 
estimates of any additional CFR for 2015/16 and the following two financial years. 
This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but 
ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.      

 

  

Page 94



 11

The Section 151 Officer reports that the Council complied with this prudential 
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  
This view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the 
proposals in this budget report. 

 

3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 

The Operational Boundary.  This is the limit beyond which external debt is 
not normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure 
to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt. 

Operational boundary 
£’000’s 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Debt 71,456 71,456 71,456 71,456 

Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total 72,456 72,456 72,456 72,456 

 

The Authorised Limit for external debt. A further key prudential indicator 
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents a 
limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or 
revised by the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt which, while 
not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the 
longer term.   

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control 
either the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, 
although this power has never been exercised. 

2. As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the 
following indicators, as shown below: 

Authorised limit £’000’s 2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Debt 74,456 74,456 74,456 74,456 

Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total 75,456 75,456 75,456 75,456 

 

Separately, the Council is also limited to a maximum HRA CFR through the HRA 
self-financing regime.  This limit is currently: 
 

HRA Debt Limit £’000 2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

Total 74,701 74,701 74,701 74,701 

 

Page 95



 12

 
3.3. Prospects for interest rates 
 
Capita Asset Services has been appointed as the Council’s treasury advisor 
and part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest 
rates.  Appendix 1 draws together a number of current City forecasts for short 
term (Bank Rate) and longer fixed interest rates.  The following table gives the 
Capita Asset Services’ central view.  
 
Annual 
Average % 

Bank Rate 
% 

PWLB Borrowing Rates% 
(including certainty rate adjustment) 

  5 year 25 year 50 year 

Dec 2014 0.50 2.50 3.90 3.90 

Mar 2015 0.50 2.70 4.00 4.00 

Jun 2015 0.75 2.70 4.10 4.10 

Sep 2015 0.75 2.80 4.30 4.30 

Dec 2015 1.00 2.90 4.40 4.40 

Mar 2016 1.00 3.00 4.50 4.50 

Jun 2016 1.25 3.10 4.60 4.60 

Sep 2016 1.25 3.20 4.70 4.70 

Dec 2016 1.50 3.30 4.70 4.70 

Mar 2017 1.50 3.40 4.80 4.80 

Jun 2017 1.75 3.50 4.80 4.80 

Sep 2017 2.00 3.50 4.90 4.90 

Dec 2017 2.25 3.50 4.90 4.90 

Mar 2018 2.50 3.50 5.00 5.00 

 

Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 2008 had been the worst and 
slowest recovery in recent history. However, growth has rebounded during 2013 
and especially during 2014, to surpass all expectations, propelled by recovery in 
consumer spending and the housing market.  Forward surveys are also currently 
very positive in indicating that growth prospects are strong for 2015, particularly in 
the services and construction sectors. However, growth in the manufacturing 
sector and in exports has weakened during 2014 due to poor growth in the 
Eurozone. 

There does need to be a significant rebalancing of the economy away from 
consumer spending to manufacturing, business investment and exporting in order 
for this initial stage in the recovery to become more firmly established. One drag 
on the economy is that wage inflation has been lower than CPI inflation so 
eroding disposable income and living standards, although income tax cuts have 
ameliorated this to some extent. This therefore means that labour productivity 
must improve significantly for this situation to be corrected by warranting 
increases in pay rates. 

In addition, the encouraging rate at which unemployment has been falling must 
eventually feed through into pressure for wage increases, though current views on 
the amount of hidden slack in the labour market probably means that this is 
unlikely to happen in the near future. 

 

Page 96



 13

The US, the main world economy, faces similar debt problems to the UK, but 
thanks to reasonable growth, cuts in government expenditure and tax rises, the 
annual government deficit has been halved from its peak without appearing to do 
too much damage to growth.    

The current economic outlook and structure of market interest rates and 
government debt yields have several key treasury management implications: 

 
• As for the Eurozone, concerns in respect of a major crisis subsided 

considerably in 2013.  However, the downturn in growth and inflation 
during the second half of 2014, and worries over the Ukraine situation, 
Middle East and Ebola, have led to a resurgence of those concerns as 
risks increase that it could be heading into deflation and a triple dip 
recession since 2008.  Sovereign debt difficulties have not gone away 
and major concerns could return in respect of individual countries that do 
not dynamically address fundamental issues of low growth, international 
uncompetitiveness and the need for overdue reforms of the economy (as 
Ireland has done).  It is, therefore, possible over the next few years that 
levels of government debt to GDP ratios could continue to rise to levels 
that could result in a loss of investor confidence in the financial viability of 
such countries.  Counterparty risks therefore remain elevated.  This 
continues to suggest the use of higher quality counterparties for shorter 
time periods; 

• Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2015/16 and 
beyond; 

• Borrowing interest rates have been volatile during 2014 as alternating 
bouts of good and bad news  have promoted optimism, and then 
pessimism, in financial markets.  During July to October 2014, a building 
accumulation of negative news has led to an overall trend of falling rates.  
The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash 
balances has served well over the last few years.  However, this needs 
to be carefully reviewed to avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in later 
times, when authorities will not be able to avoid new borrowing to finance 
new capital expenditure and/or to refinance maturing debt; 

• There will remain a cost of carry to any new borrowing which causes an 
increase in investments as this will incur a revenue loss between 
borrowing costs and investment returns. 

3.4  Borrowing strategy  

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means that 
the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been 
fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances 
and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure.  This strategy is prudent 
as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high. 

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be 
adopted with the 2015/16 treasury operations.  The Section 151 Officer will 

Page 97



 14

monitor interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to 
changing circumstances: 

 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and 

short term rates, e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse 
into recession or of risks of deflation, then long term borrowings will be 
postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short 
term borrowing will be considered. 

 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in 

long and short term rates than that currently forecast perhaps arising 
from a greater than expected increase in the anticipated rate to US 
tapering of asset purchases, or in world economic activity or a sudden 
increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re-appraised 
with the likely action that fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest 
rates are still lower than they will be in the next few years. 

Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision making body at the next 
available opportunity. 

 
Treasury management limits on activity 

There are three debt related treasury activity limits.  The purpose of these are 
to restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby 
managing risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if these are set to be too restrictive they will impair the 
opportunities to reduce costs / improve performance.  The indicators are: 

• Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a 
maximum limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt position 
net of investments; 

• Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure.  This is similar to the 
previous indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates; 

• Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce 
the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for 
refinancing, and are required for upper and lower limits.   

As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the treasury 
indicators, as follows: 

Page 98



 15

 

£,000’s 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Interest rate exposures 

 Upper Upper Upper 

Limits on fixed interest 
rates based on net debt 
 

75,456 75,456 75,456 

Limits on variable 
interest rates based on 
net debt 

8,000 8,000 8,000 

Limits on fixed interest 
rates: 

• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 
 

 75,456 
(15,000) 

 
 

 75,456 
(15,000) 

 
 

 75,456 
(15,000) 

Limits on variable 
interest rates 

• Debt only 
• Investments only 

 
 

  8,000 
(15,000) 

 
 

  8,000 
(15,000) 

 
 

  8,000 
(15,000) 

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2015/16 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 100% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years 0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years 0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years 0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years 0% 100% 

Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2015/16 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 10% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 10% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 10% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 10% 

10 years to 20 years 0% 10% 

20 years to 30 years 0% 10% 

30 years to 40 years 0% 10% 

40 years to 50 years 0% 10% 

 

3.5  Policy on borrowing in advance of need  

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in order 
to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow 
in advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.  
 

Page 99



 16

Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting 
mechanism.  

3.6  Debt Rescheduling 

As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term fixed 
interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by 
switching from long term debt to short term debt.  However, these savings will 
need to be considered in the light of the current treasury position and the size of 
the cost of debt repayment (premiums incurred).  
 
The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:  

• the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings; 

• helping to fulfil the treasury strategy; 

• enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the 
balance of volatility). 

 
Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for 
making savings by running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely 
as short term rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on 
current debt.   
 
All rescheduling will be reported to the Cabinet , at the earliest meeting following 
its action. 

3.7  Municipal Bonds Agency 

It is likely that the Municipal Bond Agency, currently in the process of being set up, 
will be offering loans to local authorities in the near future.  It is also hoped that the 
borrowing rates will be lower than those offered by the Public Works Loan Board 
(PWLB).  This Authority intends to make use of this new source of borrowing as 
and when appropriate. 

Page 100



 17

4  Annual Investment Strategy  

4.1 Introduction: changes to credit rating methodology 

The main rating agencies (Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s) have, through 
much of the financial crisis, provided some institutions with a ratings “uplift” due to 
implied levels of sovereign support. More recently, in response to the evolving 
regulatory regime, the agencies have indicated they may remove these “uplifts”. 
This process may commence during 2014/15 and/or 2015/16. The actual timing 
of the changes is still subject to discussion, but this does mean immediate 
changes to the credit methodology are required. 

It is important to stress that the rating agency changes do not reflect any changes 
in the underlying status of the institution or credit environment, merely the implied 
level of sovereign support that has been built into ratings through the financial 
crisis. The eventual removal of implied sovereign support will only take place 
when the regulatory and economic environments have ensured that financial 
institutions are much stronger and less prone to failure in a financial crisis. 

Both Fitch and Moody’s provide “standalone” credit ratings for financial 
institutions. For Fitch, it is the Viability Rating, while Moody’s has the Financial 
Strength Rating. Due to the future removal of sovereign support from institution 
assessments, both agencies have suggested going forward that these will be in 
line with their respective Long Term ratings. As such, there is no point monitoring 
both Long Term and these “standalone” ratings.  

Furthermore, Fitch has already begun assessing its Support ratings, with a clear 
expectation that these will be lowered to 5, which is defined as “A bank for which 
there is a possibility of external support, but it cannot be relied upon.” With all 
institutions likely to drop to these levels, there is little to no differentiation to be had 
by assessing Support ratings.  

As a result of these rating agency changes, the credit element of our future 
methodology will focus solely on the Short and Long Term ratings of an institution. 
Rating Watch and Outlook information will continue to be assessed where it 
relates to these categories. This is the same process for Standard & Poor’s that 
we have always taken, but a change to the use of Fitch and Moody’s ratings. 
Furthermore, we will continue to utilise CDS prices as an overlay to ratings in our 
new methodology. 

4.2 Investment policy 

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local 
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance 
Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  The Council’s investment priorities will be security 
first, liquidity second, then return. 
 
In accordance with the above guidance from CIPFA , and in order to minimise the 
risk to investments, the Council applies minimum acceptable credit criteria in 
order to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which also enables 
diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. 

Page 101



 18

Continuing regulatory changes in the banking sector are designed to see greater 
stability, lower risk and the removal of expectations of Government financial 
support should an institution fail.  This withdrawal of implied sovereign support is 
anticipated to have an effect on ratings applied to institutions.  This will result in 
the key ratings used to monitor counterparties being the Short Term and Long 
Term ratings only.  Viability, Financial Strength and Support Ratings previously 
applied will effectively become redundant.  This change does not reflect 
deterioration in the credit environment but rather a change of method in response 
to regulatory changes. 
 
The Council’s funds are managed by CPBS with reference to a detailed cash flow 
forecast on a daily basis for the current year. Protocols are in place to govern the 
movement of funds within specific limits.  
 
Further, officers recognise that ratings should not be the sole determinant of the 
quality of an institution and that it is important to contiunally assess and monitor 
the financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the 
economic and political environments in which institutions operate. The 
assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion of the 
markets. To this end the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a 
monitor on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” (CDS) and overlay that 
information on top of the credit ratings. This is fully integrated into the credit 
methodology provided by the advisors, Capita Asset Services  in producing its 
colour codings which show the varying degrees of suggested creditworthiness. 
 
Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and 
other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the 
most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment 
counterparties. 
 
The intention of the strategy is to provide security of investment and minimisation 
of risk. 
 
Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in 
Appendix 3 under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments categories. The 
maximum total investments to any individual financial institution or its parent 
group is £5m. There is also a combined limit of £10m for investments with part-
nationalised banks. 

Page 102



 19

4.3 Creditworthiness policy  
 
This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Capita Asset 
Services.  This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utlilising 
credit ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and 
Standard and Poor’s.  The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with 
the following overlays:  
 

• credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 
countries. 

 
This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit 
outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of 
CDS spreads for which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which 
indicate the relative creditworthiness of counterparties.  These colour codes are 
used by the Council to determine the suggested duration for investments.   The 
Council will therefore use counterparties within the following durational bands:  
 

• Yellow 5 years 
• Dark Pink 5 years for Enhanced money market funds with a credit score  

of 1.25  
• Light Pink 5 years for Enhanced money market funds with a credit score  

of 1.5 
• Purple  2 years 
• Blue  1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK 
 Banks) 
• Orange 1 year 
• Red  6 months 
• Green  100 days  
• No colour  not to be used  

 
The Capita Asset Services creditworthiness service uses a wider array of 
information than just primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, 
does not give undue preponderance to just one agency’s ratings. 
 
Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short Term 
rating (Fitch or equivalents) of F1 and a  Long Term rating of A-.  There may be 
occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally 
lower than these ratings but may still be used.  In these instances consideration 
will be given to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical market 
information, to support their use. 

Page 103



 20

 
All credit ratings will be monitored daily. CPBS is alerted to changes to ratings of 
all three agencies through its use of the Capita Asset Services creditworthiness 
service.  
 

• if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer 
meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment 
will be withdrawn immediately. 

 

• in addition to the use of credit ratings CPBS will be advised of information 
in movements in CDS spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and other 
market data on a weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in 
downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition this 
Council will also use market data and market information, information on 
government support for banks and the credit ratings of that supporting 
government. 

4.4 Country limits 

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from the 
United Kingdom or countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA+ from 
Fitch. The list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of this 
report are shown in Appendix 4.  This list will be added to, or deducted from, by 
officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy. 

4.5 Investment Strategy 

In-house funds.  Investments will be made with reference to the core balance 
and cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates 
for investments up to 12 months).    
 
Investment returns expectations.  Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged 
at  0.5% before starting to rise from quarter 2 of 2015. Bank Rate forecasts for 
financial year ends (March) are:  
 

• 2015/ 2016  1.00% 

• 2016/ 2017  1.50% 

• 2017/ 2018  2.50% 

 

There are downside risks to these forecasts (i.e. start of increases in Bank Rate 
occurs later) if economic growth weakens.  However, should the pace of growth 
quicken, there could be an upside risk. 

Page 104



 21

The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments 
placed for periods up to 100 days during each financial year for the next four 
years are as follows:  
 

2015/16  0.90%   
2016/17  1.50%   
2017/18  2.00%   

    2018/19  2.50% 
 

Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for 
greater than 364 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity 
requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are 
based on the availability of funds after each year-end. 

 
As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the treasury 
indicator and limit, as follows: 
 

Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days 

£’000’s 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Principal sums invested 
> 364 days 

£m 
2,000 

£m 
2,000 

£m 
2,000 

 

For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its business 
reserve instant access and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated 
deposits (overnight to three months) in order to benefit from the compounding of 
interest.   
 

4.6 Investment Risk Benchmarking 

The Council has not adopted any formal benchmarks in this area, as Officers 
believe that decisions on counterparties and maximum investment levels are 
adequate to monitor the current and trend position, and amend the 
operational strategy to manage risk as conditions change.   

4.7   End of year investment report 

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as 
part of its Annual Treasury Report.  

Page 105



 22

5   APPENDICES 
 

1. Interest rate forecasts 

2. Economic background 

3. Treasury Management Practice 1 – Credit and Counterparty Risk 
Management 

4. Approved countries for investments 

5. Treasury management scheme of delegation 

6. The treasury management role of the Section 151 Officer 

 
 
 

Page 106



   

APPENDIX 1 - Interest Rate Forecast 2014 - 2018 as at 5 December 2014 

PWLB rates and forecast shown below take account of the 20 basis point certainty rate reduction effective as of the 1st November 2012. 

Capita Asset Services Interest Rate View

Dec-14 M ar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 M ar-16 Jun-16 Sep-16 Dec-16 M ar-17 Jun-17 Sep-17 Dec-17 M ar-18

Bank Rate View 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 1.25% 1.50% 1.50% 1.75% 2.00% 2.25% 2.50%

3 M onth LIBID 0.50% 0.60% 0.80% 0.90% 1.10% 1.30% 1.40% 1.60% 1.90% 2.10% 2.10% 2.30% 2.40% 2.60%

6 M onth LIBID 0.70% 0.80% 1.00% 1.10% 1.20% 1.40% 1.50% 1.80% 2.00% 2.20% 2.30% 2.50% 2.70% 2.80%

12 M onth LIBID 0.90% 1.00% 1.20% 1.30% 1.40% 1.70% 1.80% 2.10% 2.20% 2.30% 2.40% 2.60% 2.80% 3.00%

5yr PW LB Rate 2.50% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%

10yr PW LB Rate 3.20% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.10% 4.20% 4.20% 4.30% 4.30%

25yr PW LB Rate 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.70% 4.80% 4.80% 4.90% 4.90% 5.00%

50yr PW LB Rate 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.70% 4.80% 4.80% 4.90% 4.90% 5.00%

Bank Rate

Capita Asset Services 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 1.25% 1.50% 1.50% 1.75% 2.00% 2.25% 2.50%

Capital Econom ics 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 1.25% 1.50% - - - - -

5yr PW LB Rate

Capita Asset Services 2.50% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%

Capital Econom ics 2.30% 2.60% 2.80% 3.00% 3.20% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.70% - - - - -

10yr PW LB Rate

Capita Asset Services 3.20% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.10% 4.20% 4.20% 4.30% 4.30%

Capital Econom ics 3.05% 3.25% 3.45% 3.60% 3.80% 3.85% 3.90% 3.95% 4.05% - - - - -

25yr PW LB Rate

Capita Asset Services 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.70% 4.80% 4.80% 4.90% 4.90% 5.00%

Capital Econom ics 3.70% 3.95% 4.05% 4.15% 4.25% 4.35% 4.45% 4.55% 4.60% - - - - -

50yr PW LB Rate

Capita Asset Services 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.70% 4.80% 4.80% 4.90% 4.90% 5.00%

Capital Econom ics 3.80% 4.10% 4.20% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% - - - - -

P
age 107



 

APPENDIX 2 - Economic Background 

UK.  Strong UK GDP quarterly growth of 0.7%, 0.8% and 0.7% in quarters 2, 3 
and 4 respectively in 2013, (2013 annual rate 2.7%), and 0.7% in Q1, 0.9% in Q2 
and a first estimate of 0.7% in Q3 2014 (annual rate 3.1% in Q3), means that the 
UK will have the strongest rate of growth of any G7 country in 2014.  It also 
appears very likely that strong growth will continue through the second half of 
2014 and into 2015 as forward surveys for the services and construction sectors 
are very encouraging and business investment is also strongly recovering.  The 
manufacturing sector has also been encouraging though recent figures indicate a 
weakening in the future trend rate of growth.  However, for this recovery to 
become more balanced and sustainable in the longer term, the recovery needs to 
move away from dependence on consumer expenditure and the housing market 
to exporting, and particularly of manufactured goods, both of which need to 
substantially improve on their recent lacklustre performance.   

This overall strong growth has resulted in unemployment falling much faster 
through the initial threshold of 7%, set by the Monetary Policy Committee 
(MPC) last August, before it said it would consider any increases in Bank Rate.  
The MPC has, therefore, subsequently broadened its forward guidance by 
adopting five qualitative principles and looking at a much wider range of about 
eighteen indicators in order to form a view on how much slack there is in the 
economy and how quickly slack is being used up. The MPC is particularly 
concerned that the current squeeze on the disposable incomes of consumers 
should be reversed by wage inflation rising back above the level of inflation in 
order to ensure that the recovery will be sustainable.  There also needs to be a 
major improvement in labour productivity, which has languished at dismal levels 
since 2008, to support increases in pay rates.  Most economic forecasters are 
expecting growth to peak in 2014 and then to ease off a little, though still 
remaining strong, in 2015 and 2016.  Unemployment is therefore expected to 
keep on its downward trend and this is likely to eventually feed through into a 
return to significant increases in pay rates at some point during the next three 
years.  However, just how much those future increases in pay rates will 
counteract the depressive effect of increases in Bank Rate on consumer 
confidence, the rate of growth in consumer expenditure and the buoyancy of the 
housing market, are areas that will need to be kept under regular review. 

Also encouraging has been the sharp fall in inflation (CPI) during 2014 after 
being consistently above the MPC’s 2% target between December 2009 and 
December 2013.  Inflation fell to 1.2% in September, a five year low.  Forward 
indications are that inflation is likely to fall further in 2014 to possibly near to 1% 
and then to remain near to, or under, the 2% target level over the MPC’s two year 
ahead time horizon.  Overall, markets are expecting that the MPC will be cautious 
in raising Bank Rate as it will want to protect heavily indebted consumers from 
too early an increase in Bank Rate at a time when inflationary pressures are also 
weak.  A first increase in Bank Rate is therefore expected in Q2 2015 and they 
expect increases after that to be at a slow pace to lower levels than prevailed 
before 2008 as increases in Bank Rate will have a much bigger effect on heavily 
indebted consumers than they did before 2008.  

Page 108



 

 

25

The return to strong growth has also helped lower forecasts for the increase in 
Government debt by £73bn over the next five years, as announced in the 2013 
Autumn Statement, and by an additional £24bn, as announced in the March 2014 
Budget - which also forecast a return to a significant budget surplus, (of £5bn), in 
2018-19.  However, monthly public sector deficit figures have disappointed so far 
in 2014/15. 

The Eurozone (EZ).  The Eurozone is facing an increasing threat from weak or 
negative growth and from deflation.  In September, the inflation rate fell further, to 
reach a low of 0.3%.  However, this is an average for all EZ countries and 
includes some countries with negative rates of inflation.  Accordingly, the ECB 
took some rather limited action in June to loosen monetary policy in order to 
promote growth. In September it took further action to cut its benchmark rate to 
only 0.05%, its deposit rate to -0.2% and to start a programme of purchases of 
corporate debt.  However, it has not embarked yet on full quantitative easing 
(purchase of sovereign debt).  

Concern in financial markets for the Eurozone subsided considerably during 2013.  
However, sovereign debt difficulties have not gone away and major issues could 
return in respect of any countries that do not dynamically address fundamental 
issues of low growth, international uncompetitiveness and the need for overdue 
reforms of the economy, (as Ireland has done).  It is, therefore, possible over the 
next few years that levels of government debt to GDP ratios could continue to rise 
for some countries. This could mean that sovereign debt concerns have not 
disappeared but, rather, have only been postponed. The ECB’s pledge in 2012 to 
buy unlimited amounts of bonds of countries which ask for a bailout has provided 
heavily indebted countries with a strong defence against market forces.  This has 
bought them time to make progress with their economies to return to growth or to 
reduce the degree of recession.  However, debt to GDP ratios (2013 figures) of 
Greece 180%, Italy 133%, Portugal 129%, Ireland 124% and Cyprus 112%, 
remain a cause of concern, especially as some of these countries are 
experiencing continuing rates of increase in debt in excess of their rate of 
economic growth i.e. these debt ratios are likely to continue to deteriorate.  Any 
sharp downturn in economic growth would make these countries particularly 
vulnerable to a new bout of sovereign debt crisis.  It should also be noted that Italy 
has the third biggest debt mountain in the world behind Japan and the US.  
Greece remains particularly vulnerable but has made good progress in reducing 
its annual budget deficit and in returning, at last, to marginal economic growth.  
Whilst a Greek exit from the Euro is now improbable in the short term, some 
commentators still view the inevitable end game as either being another major 
right off of debt or an eventual exit.  

There are also particular concerns as to whether democratically elected 
governments will lose the support of electorates suffering under EZ imposed 
austerity programmes, especially in countries like Greece and Spain which have 
unemployment rates of over 24% and unemployment among younger people of 
over 50 – 60%.  There are also major concerns as to whether the governments of 
France and Italy will effectively implement austerity programmes and undertake 
overdue reforms to improve national competitiveness. Any loss of market 

Page 109



 

 

26

confidence in the two largest Eurozone economies after Germany would present 
a huge challenge to the resources of the ECB to defend their debt. 

USA.  The Federal Reserve started to reduce its monthly asset purchases of 
$85bn in December 2013 by $10bn per month; these ended in October 2014, 
signalling confidence the US economic recovery would remain on track.  First 
quarter GDP figures for the US were depressed by exceptionally bad winter 
weather, but growth rebounded very strongly in Q2 to 4.6% (annualised).  The 
first estimate of Q3 showed growth of 3.5% (annualised).  Annual growth during 
2014 is likely to be just over 2%. 

The U.S. faces similar debt problems to those of the UK, but thanks to reasonable 
growth, cuts in government expenditure and tax rises, the annual government 
deficit has been halved from its peak without appearing to do too much damage 
to growth, although the weak labour force participation rate remains a matter of 
key concern for the Federal Reserve when considering the amount of slack in the 
economy and monetary policy decisions.  It is currently expected that the Fed. will 
start increasing rates in mid 2015. 

China.  Government action in 2014 to stimulate the economy appeared to be 
putting the target of 7.5% growth within achievable reach but recent data has 
been mixed. There are also concerns that the Chinese leadership have only 
started to address an unbalanced economy which is heavily dependent on new 
investment expenditure, and for a potential bubble in the property sector to burst, 
as it did in Japan in the 1990s, with its consequent impact on the financial health 
of the banking sector. There are also concerns around the potential size, and 
dubious creditworthiness, of some bank lending to local government organisations 
and major corporates. This primarily occurred during the government promoted 
expansion of credit, which was aimed at protecting the overall rate of growth in the 
economy after the Lehmans crisis. 

Japan.   Japan is causing considerable concern as the increase in sales tax in 
April 2014 has suppressed consumer expenditure and growth.  In Q2 growth was 
-1.8% q/q and -7.1% over the previous year. The Government is hoping that this 
is a temporary blip. 

CAPITA ASSET SERVICES FORWARD VIEW  

Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences weighing 
on the UK. Major volatility in bond yields is likely to endure as investor fears and 
confidence ebb and flow between favouring more risky assets i.e. equities, or the 
safe haven of bonds.  

The overall longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise, due to the 
high volume of gilt issuance in the UK, and of bond issuance in other major 
western countries.  Over time, an increase in investor confidence in world 
economic recovery is also likely to compound this effect as recovery will further 
encourage investors to switch from bonds to equities.   

Page 110



 

 

27

The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is currently evenly 
weighted. However, only time will tell just how long this period of strong economic 
growth will last; it also remains exposed to vulnerabilities in a number of key 
areas. 

The interest rate forecasts in this report are based on an initial assumption that 
there will not be a major resurgence of the EZ debt crisis, or a break-up of the EZ, 
but rather that there will be a managed, albeit painful and tortuous, resolution of 
the debt crisis where EZ institutions and governments eventually do what is 
necessary - but only when all else has been tried and failed. Under this assumed 
scenario, growth within the EZ will be tepid for the next couple of years and some 
EZ countries experiencing low or negative growth, will, over that time period, see 
an increase in total government debt to GDP ratios.  There is a significant danger 
that these ratios could rise to the point where markets lose confidence in the 
financial viability of one, or more, countries, especially if growth disappoints and / 
or efforts to reduce government deficits fail to deliver the necessary reductions. 
However, it is impossible to forecast whether any individual country will lose such 
confidence, or when, and so precipitate a sharp resurgence of the EZ debt crisis.  
While the ECB has adequate resources to manage a debt crisis in a small EZ 
country, if one, or more, of the large countries were to experience a major crisis of 
market confidence, this would present a serious challenge to the ECB and to EZ 
politicians. 

Downside risks currently include:  

• The situation over Ukraine poses a major threat to EZ and world growth if it 
was to deteriorate into economic warfare between the West and Russia 
where Russia resorted to using its control over gas supplies to Europe. 

• Fears generated by the potential impact of Ebola around the world 

• UK strong economic growth is currently mainly dependent on consumer 
spending and the potentially unsustainable boom in the housing market.  
The boost from these sources is likely to fade after 2014. 

• A weak rebalancing of UK growth to exporting and business investment 
causing a weakening of overall economic growth beyond 2014. 

• Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partner - the EU, 
inhibiting economic recovery in the UK. 

• A return to weak economic growth in the US, UK and China causing major 
disappointment in investor and market expectations. 

• A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis caused by ongoing 
deterioration in government debt to GDP ratios to the point where financial 
markets lose confidence in the financial viability of one or more countries 
and in the ability of the ECB and Eurozone governments to deal with the 
potential size of the crisis. 

• Recapitalisation of European banks requiring considerable government 
financial support. 

• Lack of support by populaces in Eurozone countries for austerity 
programmes, especially in countries with very high unemployment rates 
e.g. Greece and Spain, which face huge challenges in engineering 
economic growth to correct their budget deficits on a sustainable basis. 

Page 111



 

 

28

• Italy: the political situation has improved but it remains to be seen whether 
the new government is able to deliver the austerity programme required 
and a programme of overdue reforms.  Italy has the third highest 
government debt mountain in the world. 

• France: after being elected on an anti austerity platform, President 
Hollande has embraced a €50bn programme of public sector cuts over the 
next three years.  However, there could be major obstacles in 
implementing this programme. Major overdue reforms of employment 
practices and an increase in competiveness are also urgently required to 
lift the economy out of stagnation.   

• Monetary policy action failing to stimulate sustainable growth in western 
economies, especially the Eurozone and Japan. 

• Heightened political risks in the Middle East and East Asia could trigger 
safe haven flows back into bonds. 

• There are also increasing concerns at the reluctance of western central 
banks to raise interest rates significantly for some years, plus the huge QE 
measures which remain in place (and may be added to by the ECB in the 
near future).  This has created potentially unstable flows of liquidity 
searching for yield and, therefore, heightened the potential for an increase 
in risks in order to get higher returns. This is a return to a similar 
environment to the one which led to the 2008 financial crisis.  

The potential for upside risks to UK gilt yields and PWLB rates, especially for 
longer term PWLB rates include: - 

• A further surge in investor confidence that robust world economic growth is 
firmly expected, causing a flow of funds out of bonds into equities. 

• UK inflation returning to significantly higher levels than in the wider EU and 
US, causing an increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields. 

Page 112



 

 

29

APPENDIX 3 - Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and 
Counterparty Risk Management 

 

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling denominated, 
with maturities up to maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality 
criteria where applicable. 
 

 
 Minimum ‘High’ 
Credit Criteria 

Use 

Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility 

N/A In-house 

Term deposits – local authorities   N/A In-house 

Term deposits – banks and building 
societies  

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house 

Certificates of deposit issued by banks 
and building societies 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house 

Treasury Bills UK sovereign rating In-house 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

AAA 
In-house buy and 
hold 

Money market funds AAA 
In-house (£5m 
limit for cash flow 
purposes) 

 
Term deposits with nationalised banks and banks and building societies  

 
 
If forward deposits are to be made, the forward period plus the deal period should 
not exceed one year in aggregate.   
 
N.B. buy and hold may also include sale at a financial year end and repurchase 
the following day in order to accommodate the requirements of the Accounting 
Code of Practice. 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max of total 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

UK  part nationalised 
banks 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-
house  

£10m 1 year 

Banks part 
nationalised by AAA 
or AA+ sovereign 
rating countries – non 
UK 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-
house  

£5m 1 year 

Page 113



 

 

30

Accounting treatment of investments.  The accounting treatment may differ 
from the underlying cash transactions arising from investment decisions made by 
this Council. To ensure that the Council is protected from any adverse revenue 
impact, which may arise from these differences, we will review the accounting 
implications of new transactions before they are undertaken. 
 
NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do not 
meet the Specified Investment criteria.  A maximum of £5m will be held in 
aggregate in non-specified investments. 
 
1. Maturities of ANY Period 
 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max %  of 
non-specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Fixed term deposits with 
variable rate and variable 
maturities: -Structured 
deposits 

Sovereign rating  
of AAA or  AA+ 
and minimum 
colour of green on 
our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-house  100% 1 year 

UK Government Gilts 
UK sovereign 
rating 

In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 2 year 

Sovereign bond issues 
(other than the UK govt) 

AAA 
In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 2 year 

Bond issuance issued by a 
financial institution which is 
explicitly guaranteed by  
the UK Government  (eg 
National Rail)  

UK sovereign 
rating 

In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 2 year 

Collateralised deposits 
(see note 1) 

UK  Sovereign 
rating  

In-house  100% 2 year 

 

Page 114



 

 

31

 

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies 
(OEICs): - 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max %  of 
non-specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

 1. Government Liquidity 
     Funds 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house  100% 5 years 

 2. Enhanced Money 
Market Funds with a 
credit score of 1.25 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 5 years 

 3. Enhanced Money 
Market Funds with a 
credit score of 1.50 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 5 years 

4. Bond Funds 
Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 5 years 

 5. Gilt Funds 
Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 5 years 

 

Note 1. as collateralised deposits are backed by collateral of AAA rated local 
authority LOBOs, this investment instrument is regarded as being a AAA rated 
investment as it is equivalent to lending to a local authority. 
 
2.  Maturities in excess of 1 year 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 

Max %  of 
non-
specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Term deposits – UK local 
authorities  

N/A 
In-
house 

100% 5 year 

Term deposits – banks and 
building societies  

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA+ and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house 

100% 5 year 

Certificates of deposit issued 
by banks and building 
societies  

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA+ and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house  

100% 5 year 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

AAA 
In-
house  

100% 5 year 

 

Page 115



 

 

32

Whilst these are maximum limits, under normal circumstances the Section 151 
Officer will ensure lower limits are maintained. The higher limits are required to 
allow flexibility in the movement of funds if a particular issue or circumstance 
arises e.g. global banking crisis. 
 
The maximum total investment to any individual financial institution or its parent 
group is £5m.  
 
 

Page 116



 

 

33

APPENDIX 4 - Approved countries for investments 

 

AAA                      

• Australia 

• Canada 

• Denmark 

• Germany 

• Luxembourg 

• Norway 

• Singapore 

• Sweden 

• Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

• Finland 

• Hong Kong 

• Netherlands 

• U.K. 

• U.S.A. 

 

 

 

Page 117



 

 

34

APPENDIX 5 - Treasury management scheme of delegation 

 

(i) Full council 

• receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, 
practices and activities 

• approval of annual strategy. 

• approval of / amendments to the council’s adopted clauses, treasury 
management policy statement and treasury management practices 

• budget consideration and approval 

• approval of the division of responsibilities as contained in the Financial 
Regulations 

 

(ii) Cabinet and Governance & Audit Committee 

• reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body. 

• receiving and reviewing the annual strategy and making recommendations 
to the responsible body. 

• receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on 
recommendations. 

 

SCRUTINY AND MONITORING 
  
Council delegates the scrutiny and monitoring of the Treasury Management 
function to the Governance and Audit Committee.  As a minimum they will receive 
a Mid Term Treasury report on investment issues and performance. Training will 
be made available for members of the Governance and Audit Committee to 
ensure they have the necessary skills to undertake this role. Recommendations 
will be reported to Cabinet. 
 
The Governance and Audit Committee will also have access to professional and 
independent advice and support as required in order to undertake this role. 

 

Page 118



 

 

35

APPENDIX 6 - The treasury management role of the Section 151 Officer and 
deputy 

The Section 151 Officer responsibilities are as follows: 
 
� managing the Treasury Management function 
 

� recommending treasury management policies and practice for 
approval, reviewing the same regularly and monitoring compliance 

� Ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills 
are maintained by CPBS 

� Receiving and reviewing management information reports from 
CPBS 

� Reviewing the performance of the treasury management function 
 

� Informing Elected members 
 

� Submitting regular treasury management reports to Members 
� Reviewing the treasury management strategy 
� Maintaining an effective internal audit of treasury management and 

liaising with external audit. 
 
Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) is responsible for the 
provision of: 
 

• treasury management strategy statements and practices for approval  

• regular treasury management policy reports 

• budget and budget variations 

• management information reports 

• adequate treasury management resources and skills, and effective division 
of responsibilities within the treasury management function, and; 

• arranging the appointment of external treasury management advisors.  

 

Where the use of particular instant access accounts, notice accounts and 
money market funds has been approved by the Section 151 Officer, CPBS 
treasury officers have delegated authority to withdraw and deposit funds within 
the agreed limits contained in this strategy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Appendix H  

FEES AND CHARGES - Proposals 2015-16 
 
Environmental Health 
 
Activity Policy Proposal  

Licensing The fee will be set locally 
on  cost recovery for the 
service with the exception 
of the statutory set fees 
which are set by central 
government. The authority 
will have a duty to have 
regard to guidance issued 
by the Secretary of State 
which outlines the issues 
that should be considered 
by them when setting the 
fee and what activities the 
fee can and cannot be 
covered within the fee 
setting process. 
 

Fees set to cover costs on fee 
recovery or are set by legislation 
 

Food Safety/ Health and 
Safety Training 

SHDC has the 
responsibility of educating 
the community on food, 
health & safety matters. 
Fees set to cover costs and 
take into account course 
demand and competitors 
fees 
 

Fees set to cover costs. 

Pollution Control Statutory fees are set 
not to make a profit, but to 
ensure businesses are 
operating legally 

Charges in line with policy 

Food Safety Discretionary fees to cover 
costs. Voluntary  
surrender and export fees 
are statutory. Statutory fees 
are set not to make a profit, 
but to ensure businesses 
are operating legally 
 

Charges in line with policy 

Scrap Metal  As per the Scrap Metal 
Dealers Act 2013.The fee 
will be set locally by each 
local authority on a cost 
recovery basis, but local 
authorities will have a duty 
to have regard to guidance 

Charges in line with policy 

Page 121



issued by the Secretary of 
State which outlines the 
issues that should be 
considered by them when 
setting the fee and what 
activities the fee can cover 

Micro Chipping  Discretionary fee set to 
cover costs and encourage 
users of the new service  

Charges in line with policy.  

 
 
 
 
Environmental Services  
 
Activity Policy Proposal  

Cemetery Fees 
(Spalding Special 
Expenses) 

Fees are reviewed annually 
and set by the Council, 
taking into account the 
sensitive nature of this 
service 
 

No change for 2015-16. 

Allotments (Spalding 
Special Expenses) 

Charges to be in line with 
those charged in the 
neighbouring area 
 

No change for 2015-16. 

Provision of Markets Fees to be in-line with 
those charged in the 
neighbouring area 
 

No change for 2015-16. 

Car Parking Charges Service to breakeven over 
a 4 year period and make a 
contribution to the 
Replacement and 
Refurbishment Reserve 
 

No change for 2015-16. 

Bus Departure Charges Charges to bus operators 
only 

Fee levels to remain at 29p per 
departure for 2015/16. 

Excess Charges Fees to be set as a 
deterrent 
 

No change to fees proposed, in 
line with car park charges. 

Garden Waste Sacks Maximise income without 
encouraging fly tipping 

No change to fees. 

Bulky Waste Maximise income without 
encouraging fly tipping 

No change to fees. 

Charges for street 
scene fines 

Charges for fines listed for 
each offence   

Set to cover costs. Includes 
dropping of litter 

 
Community Development 
 
Activity Policy Proposal  

Page 122



Ayscoughfee Gardens 
(Tennis, Putting and Bowls) 
(Spalding Special Expenses) 
 

To increase charges in 
line with inflation and 
review annually 

Fees and charges will be 
increased by between 5% and 
10% for 2015-16. 
 

Ayscoughfee Hall Museum To cover costs and 
match competitor prices 

Existing fees assessed and 
revised where appropriate. 
New public events to be 
booked on ‘price on 
application’ basis. 
 

South Holland Centre To meet income targets 
whilst enabling 
maximum community 
use of the Centre. 

Small rise in some cinema 
tickets after benchmarking 
against competitors.  No 
increase in room hire rates in 
continuing competitive market.  

Halley Stewart Playing Field 
(Spalding Special Expenses) 

To increase charges in 
line with inflation and 
review annually 

No change to fees. 

Castle Field To increase charges in 
line with inflation and 
review annually 

No change to fees. 

Monks House Playing Field 
(Spalding Special Expenses) 

To increase charges in 
line with inflation and 
review annually 

No change to fees. 

Castle Sports Complex and 
Swimming Pool 

Review annually with 
contractor  

No change to fees. 

 
 
Assets and Property 
 

  

Activity Policy Proposal 

Industrial Units A phased  approach to 
increasing fees and 
charges was approved, 
in two lots of 3 years, 
spreading over 6 years 
in total 

No change for 2015-16. In line 
with market competitors  

 
Planning and Building Control 
 
Activity Policy Proposal 

Land Charges Charge in line with 
competitors 

No change to fees and 
charges 

Building Control 
 
 
 

Charge based on 
hourly rate to 
reflect the actual 
cost of each 
project. 

Charges based on hourly rate, 
to cover costs incurred by the 
Council. 
 

High Hedges Charge set by 
ourselves 

Proposal to maintain our 
charge to encourage 

Page 123



submissions. 
 

Building Control Consultancy These are set by 
us, at a cost per 
project as per the 
new fee 
regulations which 
are based on 
hourly rates, as per 
CIPFA guidance. 
Charges based on 
amount per m2, in 
line with the market 
rate activity 
 

Fees are set by SHDC. 
Service to maintain charges 
based on a market rate. 
 

 
 
Housing 
 
Activity Policy Proposal 

General Fund Housing 
Rents 

 Increase in rents in line with 
Government Guidelines  

 

Page 124



www.sholland.gov.uk

South Holland District Council
Corporate Plan 2015-19

Page 125



    2

Welcome to South Holland District Council’s Corporate Plan 2015-2019, the Council’s
vision for the district and it’s priorities for this period.

Our Corporate Plan sets out how we will work with our partners and the community
to ensure that South Holland continues to be a place of choice for people to live,
work, visit and play.

It is based on the information about the area and identifies how we will achieve our
long-term vision, what our key priorities are and how we will deliver the services
our residents want.

South Holland District Council has always been a forward-thinking, entrepreneurial
and innovative authority. We continue to strive for excellence and deliver great value
for money for our residents whilst making the most of the huge opportunities for
economic growth in our district.

To continue to increase the prosperity and the wellbeing of our residents,
whilst striving to protect and enhance our district’s unique and historic character.

Introduction

Our Council

Our priorities

Our ambition

To have pride in South Holland by supporting
the district and residents to develop and thrive

To provide the right services, at the right time and in the right way

To encourage the local economy to be vibrant with continued growth

To develop safer, stronger, healthier and more independent
communities whilst protecting the most vulnerable

Page 126



Surrounded by wide open countryside,
the district of South Holland
encompasses the flat fenlands of South
East Lincolnshire, characterised by big
skies and fertile land that was reclaimed
from the sea over many centuries. 

Once renowned for its tulip industry,
it is now recognised nationally as the hub
of the UK agriculture, food manufacturing
and logistics sectors. South Holland is
a welcoming place of thriving local
communities offering great schools;
a quality of life well above the national
average; broad ranges of high quality
family and starter homes. It is a district
with a unique history and an exciting
future. 

South Holland is well served by road links
- the A16, A17, and A52 all run through
the district, enabling easy access to the
A1 North and South, and the A14 to the
Midlands. The recently upgraded joint line
provides a direct rail link to the East Coast
Mainline at Peterborough, and with
London Kings Cross just over an hour
away by train this ensures the district is
more accessible than ever.

Our traditional market towns and villages
retain the historic character that is unique
to Lincolnshire. The main towns and
population centres of Spalding,
Crowland, Holbeach, Donington, Long
Sutton and Sutton Bridge all feature
strong community identities and activities,
matched by thriving business and
industries.   

    3

Our District

Page 127



    4

South Holland is a popular choice
for individuals, families and business
because of high employment, low crime,
a rich mix of skills, education, and
infrastructure combined with first class
opportunities to live, work and
achieve success. 

The population is expanding healthily
with one of the highest growth rates of
any local authority area in England and
Wales. There are now 89,200 residents
in the area with estimates that the
population will reach 102,000 by 2021. 

The growing population brings with it
opportunities for commercial growth
and development, as well as increasing
demands for service providers. South
Holland has a buoyant economy and
a strong property market with prices
remaining competitive in comparison
to many other areas.

The continued success of major
industries such as agriculture,

horticulture, food processing, packaging
and distribution, together with related
commercial support services, is
testament to the skills base, education
and support for entrepreneurs. 

This success is reflected in an increasing
demand for high quality housing,
commercial developments and business
support facilities. South Holland District
Council is at the forefront of innovative
schemes to develop high quality
affordable homes for purchase,
shared ownership and rent. 

With financial support from South
Holland District Council, superfast fibre
broadband is being rolled out across the
district for the benefit of residential and
business users alike.

The Wash estuary with its wide range of
wildlife, attracts a steady stream of visitors
along with the historically important,
Grade 1 listed Ayscoughfee Hall and
Gardens which dates back to 1450 and
the many architecturally distinctive parish
churches. Spalding’s Springfields
Shopping Centre and the town’s Festival
Gardens are stand out features of the
area’s more modern attractions. 

Thanks to its highly rated quality of life,
the attractive environment, good schools
and strong communities, South Holland
continues to grow and develop as the
place in Lincolnshire to live, visit and
create thriving business.

Page 128



Council priorities for 2015-2019

    5

To develop safer, stronger, healthier and
more independent communities whilst
protecting the most vulnerable

We have…
n Secured in more than £1 million of

funding to the district for projects to
improve community facilities such as
village halls and skate parks,
creating and promoting volunteering
opportunities, and providing advice
on welfare changes and benefits
advice to residents

n Implemented Member Designated
Budgets in April 2011, which have
supported 587 community projects

n Adopted a new Housing Allocations
Policy in June 2013 to focus the
allocation of social housing to those
in the highest need and ensure that
people take up the most suitable
housing option for them

We will…
n Enable the effective planning and

delivery of housing solutions to meet
local needs, influence standards and
provide access to a range of
housing options

n Lead and support the South Holland
Health and Wellbeing Partnership to
address key local health, care and
wellbeing issues

n Work with partners to support older
people to remain active, participative
and independent in the community
in which they live

n Deliver council services that improve
the opportunities for troubled families
and vulnerable residents 

n Ensure that national policies for
protecting children and vulnerable
adults are effectively implemented
across all areas of our business

Page 129



    6

To have pride in South Holland by
supporting the district and residents
to develop and thrive

We have…
n Achieved year on year reductions

in the amount of waste collected
and sent to landfill

n Grown the supply of affordable
housing by building on Council-owned
land as part of a growing ambition to
increase housing supply

n Installed additional bins in public
areas and achieved faster clean up
times by street cleansing teams

n Launched campaigns to involve
local people in cleaning up their area,
including ‘Litter Blitz’ and ‘Pride in
South Holland’ campaigns

n Supported events to celebrate
the London 2012 Olympic and
Paralympic Games, and the
Queen’s Diamond Jubilee

We will…
n Develop and implement a planning

and development structure that
achieves substantial and
continued growth

n Work towards delivery and maintenance
of a 5 year housing land supply

n Lead, enable and co-ordinate
the provision of a range of local
community and leisure facilities
that improve education,
health and wellbeing 

n Improve the efficiency, effectiveness
and community use of the council’s
environmental services

n Work with our partners to reduce
and prevent crime and anti-social
behaviour and protect the community

Page 130



    7

To provide the right services,
at the right time and in the right way

We have…
n Modernised services to include

introducing electronic submissions
for planning and building control
applications and enhanced mobile
and remote working arrangements

n Invested in new refuse collection
vehicles with smart in-cab technology
to improve efficiency of collections

n Implemented a Shared Management
Team between South Holland and
Breckland District Councils, saving
more than £1 million in the first year

We will…
n Ensure that Council services are

accessible, customer friendly and
responsive to residents and
business needs

n Develop the council’s transformation
programme and work with partners
to drive through efficiencies and
achieve resilience

n Develop and implement a commercial
approach to ensure a secure
financial position

n Ensure that the asset base of the
council is managed to its maximum

n Develop our organisations to be
business ready, community focused
and partners of choice 

n Develop and implement a strategy to
develop staff to have the skills needed
to drive the organisation forward

n Ensure that our regulatory services
are consistent and effective and that
the council is compliant legally and
fulfils audit requirements

Page 131



To encourage the local economy
to be vibrant with continued growth

We have…
n Supported and engaged

with businesses through the
‘Grants4Growth’ programme to
award business grants, attract private
investment, create and safeguard jobs
and increase business turnover

n Established a Spalding Town Centre
Management Board and Manager

n Supported new businesses with
reduced introductory rent periods
when taking one of the 50 Council
industrial units in the district

n Awarded Section 106 funding from
planning contributions to projects
in Spalding and Sutton Bridge to
enhance towns in the district

We will…
n Work with our partners to ensure

that the technological infrastructure
is available, accessible and meets
the needs of our communities and
businesses

n Build strong working relationships
with partners to draw in funding
and resources to the district

n Build on the key sector strengths
of South Holland district to retain
and attract business investment

n Grow and maintain local business
opportunities and activities for
local suppliers in the district

n Develop a clear “open for business”
approach across all council services
that promotes and supports
business growth

    8

Page 132



    9

Managing the Council’s finances 2015 - 2016
Expenditure & Income forecast 2015/16

Expenditure:

Income:

Employees

Capital charges

Capital financing
Premises

Transport

Transfer payments
(Incl Housing Benefits)

Supplies & Services

Rents

Fees and charges

Other
Council Tax

Council Tax - Parish Precepts

Collection Fund Balances

Revenue Support Grant

Reserves

Retained
Business Rates

Other Gov't grants                            
Housing Benefits

Subsidy

Drainage Board Levies
& Parish Precepts

Total Expenditure £40,415,000

Total Income & Funding
£40,415,000

Income

Funding

Page 133



    10

Delivering quality and value for money

Rising to the challenge of unprecedented
pressures on spending and continuing
demand for efficiency savings, the
Council has achieved much to protect
local services and reduce costs.

By combining new and more efficient
ways of delivering local services with
finding new sources of income, our
success continues in maintaining the
quality of services at the same time
as reducing local tax levels. 

Our priority in the years ahead is
to ensure we continue to strive for
excellence in both how we manage
your money, and the quality of services
we provide. We will seek to maximise
future income from council assets for use
in meeting the challenge of downward
pressures on government funding
for local authorities.  

Over recent years we have worked
hard to deliver significant savings
and organisational efficiencies. Through
our programme of transformation,
and new commercial partnerships we
are maintaining services at reduced cost
to local taxpayers. A joint company
(Compass Point Business Services Ltd)
formed in partnership with East Lindsey
District Council delivers key services to
both councils including human resources,
ICT, revenues and benefits,
and financial services.  

The savings from this joint venture are
expected to amount to £10m between
both councils, with another £500k annual
savings from the arrangement with
Breckland District Council to share
chief executive and senior management.
These savings have enabled the council
to deliver year on year reductions in
council tax levels every year since 2010,
while all the time maintaining essential
local services.

Page 134



    11

We have 37 councillors representing 18 wards

nThe Conservative group, led by Cllr Gary Porter,
holds the majority, with 25 seats. nThe Independent
group, led by Cllr Angela Newton, hold 12 seats.

Elected members & political management

Cllr Brian Alcock
Crowland and
Deeping St Nicholas

Cllr Angela Harrison
Crowland and
Deeping St Nicholas

Cllr Martin Howard
Holbeach Town

Cllr Rita Rudkin
Holbeach Town

Cllr Simon Booth
Long Sutton

Cllr Andy Tennant
Long Sutton

Cllr David Wilkinson
Long Sutton

Cllr Anthony Casson
Moulton, Weston
and Cowbit

Cllr Rodney Grocock
Moulton, Weston
and Cowbit

Cllr Andrew Woolf
Moulton, Weston
and Cowbit

Cllr James Avery
Pinchbeck and
Surfleet

Cllr Sally-Ann Slade
Pinchbeck and
Surfleet

Cllr Elizabeth Sneath
Pinchbeck and
Surfleet

Cllr Gary Taylor
Spalding Castle

Cllr George Aley
Spalding Monks
House

Cllr Angela Newton
Spalding Monks
House

Cllr Graham Dark
Spalding St John’s

Cllr Roger Perkins
Spalding St John’s 

Cllr Howard Johnson
Spalding St Mary’s

Cllr Gary Porter
Spalding St Mary’s

Cllr David Ashby
Spalding St Paul’s

Cllr Andrew
Miller
Spalding St Paul’s

Cllr Roger
Gambba-Jones
Spalding Wygate

Cllr Christine
Lawton
Spalding Wygate

Cllr Michael
Booth
Sutton Bridge

Cllr Chris Brewis
Sutton Bridge

Cllr Michael
Seymour
The Saints

Cllr Malcolm
Chandler
Whaplode and
Holbeach St John’s

Cllr Robert
Creese
Whaplode and
Holbeach St John’s

Cllr Paul Przyszlak
Crowland and
Deeping St Nicholas

Cllr Jane King
Donington, Quadring
and Gosberton

Cllr Amanda Puttick
Donington, Quadring
and Gosberton

Cllr Peter Coupland
Fleet

Cllr Sarah
Wilkinson
Gedney

Cllr Nick Worth
Holbeach Hurn

Cllr Robert Clark
Donington, Quadring
and Gosberton

Cllr Francis
Biggadike
Holbeach Town

Find out more

To find out more about your councillors, including
contact details and information about which committees
they sit on, visit: www.sholland.gov.uk/council/councillors

Page 135



    12

Harnessing the Advantages
of the Digital Age
Doing business online is now an everyday
activity for the vast majority of UK
residents, providing, as it does, fast
and convenient channels to pay bills,
request services and make purchases. 

Here in South Holland we know from
feedback how quickly customer
expectations are changing. More and
more residents expect our services to offer
straightforward digital access twenty four
hours a day, seven days a week.
We are now working hard to harness
the advantages of the digital age and
provide modern, smooth and fast
customer experiences. 

For all our communities reliable and high
quality digital services help mitigate both
rural and urban isolation, particularly
amongst older age groups where the
ability to maintain regular contact with
friends and family via  email, social media
or Skype can make a big difference to
health and quality of life.

For the council, increasing the availability
of services via digital channels offers
opportunities to continue  reducing service
costs (paid by local taxpayers), and means
we will be able  offer more time to those
people who either want to meet with us
face to face, via phone, or who are unable
to contact us via online channels.

Within our own organisation, the redesign
of services to harness efficiencies and
increase the accessibility offered by new
technology will release funds to keep
council tax low, and further improve the
convenience and ease of access to
services for residents. 

The importance of reaping maximum
benefit from digital channels is highlighted
by the Government’s drive to increase use
of digital technology and so provide a
more efficient service for users; as well as
enabling customers to engage in ways
that are most convenient for them. 

We share this government goal and plan
now to deliver for our communities
through:    

n Developing a new website designed
for the needs of today’s customers
and accessible to everyone, with online
content that is easy to find and useful

n Increasing the range of council services
available online and accessible
24 hours a day, 7 days a week

n Making greater use of social media
such as Twitter and Facebook to
provide up to date information
and news about the full range
of council activity.

Page 136



This document can be made
available in large print form.
If you would be interested

please call Customer Services
on 01775 761161.

This document can be made
available in other formats on

request - translation available. 

Please telephone
01775 761161 and ask to speak

to Customer Services.

Office opening hours:

Mon 8.30am - 5.15pm*

Tue 8.30am - 5.15pm*

Wed 9.00am - 5.15pm*

Thu 8.30am - 5.15pm*

Fri 8.30am - 4.45pm
tel: 01775 761161

fax: 01775 711253

email: Info@sholland.gov.uk

www.sholland.gov.uk

Produced by South Holland District Council 2015

South Holland District Council

Council Offices

Priory Road

Spalding

Lincolnshire PE11 2XE

How to contact us

Translation available
Доступный перевод

Tłumaczenie dostępne

a tradução disponível

Pieejams tulkojums

Vertimas rasti

* Payment office closes 4.45pm

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic Services  
   and the Assistant Director Finance (s151 Officer) 
 
To:    CABINET 13 January 2015 
 
(Author:  Mark Woolerton – Recovery & Support Supervisor) 
 
Subject: Write Offs 
 
Purpose: To recommend writing off irrecoverable debts  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND  
 
1.1 This report reviews irrecoverable debts over £1,050 which require Cabinet approval 

for write off.  A summary of these debts is shown in the table below and they total 
£33,115.40. 

 
1.2 The need to write debt off usually arises due to the debtor being untraceable, 

insolvent, ceased trading with no assets or deceased with insufficient funds 
in the estate.  Where possible all methods of recovery are pursued before 
making the decision to write off. This can include internal recovery action, 
use of debt collection agents, external tracing agents and procedures through 
the Courts. 

 
1.3      A summary of debts requiring approval for write off is given in the following tables. 
 
 
Value 
by 

Debtor 
     £ 

Council 
Tax 
 

    £ 

Business 
Rates 

 
      £ 

Accounts 
Receivable 

 
      £ 

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears 
    £ 

Housing 
Benefit  

Overpayments 
             £ 

 
       TOTAL 

 
              £ 

  1,050 - 
1,500 

2,827.09 - 7,225.20 1,335.48 - 11,387.77 

  1,500 - 
2,000 

3,859.47 - 1,744.28 1,751.19 - 7,354.94 

Over 
2,000 

2,365.70 3,390.59 8,616.40 - - 14,372.69 

Total 9,052.26 3,390.59 17,585.88 3,086.67 - 33,115.40 

Recommendation(s):  
 
a) That the amounts identified in this report are approved for write off. 
 
NOTE: Please raise any queries that you may have about individual write offs, as 
included in the Appendices, with Mark Woolerton at least two working days ahead of 

the scheduled meeting. 

Page 139

Agenda Item 10.



Value Council 
Tax 
 

     £ 

Business 
Rates 

 
     £ 

Accounts 
Receivable 

 
        £ 

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears 
        £ 

Housing 
Benefit 

Overpayments 
              £ 

 
  TOTAL 

 
        £ 

 

2013/14 
Total 
written off 
in that year 

57,044.07 71,854.45 61,866.39 33,363.01 12,403.28 236,531.20 

 

 2014/15 
Previously 
approved 
write offs 

53,534.73 59,711.31 50,333.13 9,509.27 16,711.03 189,799.47 

Write offs 
included in 
this report 

9,052.26 3,390.59 17,585.88 3,086.67 - 33,115.40 

2014/15 
Total  
written off in 
this year so 
far 

62,586.99 
or 0.17% 

of 2014/15 
collectable 

debit 

63,101.90 or 
0.24%of 
2014/15 

collectable 
debit 

67,919.01 

 
 

12,595.94 

16,711.03 or 
1.6% of 

repayable 
overpayments 

222,914.87 

 
 
           Details of the individual debts are shown in the Confidential Appendices as listed 

below: 
 

� Appendix A – Council Tax 
� Appendix B – Business Rates 
� Appendix C – Accounts Receivable (formerly Sundry Debtors) 
� Appendix D – Former Tenant Arrears 
� Appendix E – Housing Benefit Overpayments 

 
1.4 All debts approved for write off will be set against the existing bad debt provisions 

and they can be resurrected in full or in part at any time should new information 
come to light suggesting that they may be recoverable after all.  In every case, we 
believe that all collection options have been exhausted and that there are now no 
realistic prospects of recovery. 

 
 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To approve the recommendation. 
 
2.2 To approve the recommendation with amendments. 
 
2.3 Not to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

Page 140



3.1 All recovery methods available have been considered and where appropriate 
pursued before making the decision to write off.   

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS AND TIMELINES 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 The possible implications have been considered and there are none. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 This report has been written in line with the Constitution. 
 
5.2.2 The Appendices to this report are confidential as they include exempt information 

as described in Schedule 12A Part 1, Paragraph 1 (information relating to any 
individual), Paragraph 2 (information which is likely to reveal the identity of an 
individual) and Paragraph 3 (information relating to the financial or business affairs 
of any particular person [including the authority holding that information]). 

 
5.2.3 The anticipated benefits of publishing information identifying individuals does not 

outweigh the risks of a data protection breach and it is therefore considered that the 
information should remain exempt from publication and public meetings. 

 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 The possible implications have been considered and there are none. 
 
5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 The possible implications have been considered and there are none. 
 
5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 The possible implications have been considered and there are none. 
 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 The proposed write offs will be written off against the existing bad debt provisions.  
 
 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 The possible existence of actual or potential implications has been considered and 

there are none. 
 
5.8 Staffing 

Page 141



 
5.8.1 The possible existence of actual or potential implications have been considered and 

there are none. 
 
                   
  
 
Background papers:  None 
               
  
 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name:  Mark Woolerton 
Direct line: 01775 764631 
Email:   mark.woolerton@cpbs.com 
 
 
Key Decision – No  
 
 
Confidential Appendices attached to this report for consideration: 
 
(Please note that the following appendices are not for publication by virtue of Paragraphs 1 
(Information relating to any individual), 2 (Information which is likely to reveal the identity of 
any individual) and 3 (Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
 
� Appendix A – Council Tax Write Offs 
� Appendix B – Business Rate Write Offs 
� Appendix C – Accounts Receivable (formerly Sundry Debtors) Write Offs 
� Appendix D – Former Tenant Arrears Write Offs 
� Appendix E – Housing Benefit Overpayment Write Offs 
 
 

Page 142



Document is Restricted

Page 143

Agenda Item 13.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	7. Quarterly Performance Overview Report
	Quarter 2 Performance Report

	8. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Draft 2015-16 Estimates
	9. Draft Budget, Medium Term Financial Plan and Draft Corporate Plan
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G
	Appendix H
	Appendix I

	10. Write Off's
	13. Write Offs Appendix (Enclosed)

